STATE OF MICHIGAN

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 9
LANsING : DE ]
JENN!FE{?- L GRANHOLM : STEVEN E. CHESTER
&= RNOR DIRECTOR
D 200G : :
RECF"/ep
CERTIFIED MAIL

APR 1 4 2004

Mr. Russell W. Maier, President and CEO

Michigan Seamless Tube LL.C THOMAS p. WILCZAK
400 McMunn Street :

South Lyon, Michigan 48178

Dear Mr. Maier:;

SUBJECT: Corrective Action Consent Order (Consent Order); Michigan Seamless
Tube LLC (MST); MID 082 767 591

Enclosed please find a fully executed original of the Consent Order between MST and
the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ). The Consent Order
became effective on April 7, 2004, the date of the Chief of the Waste and Hazardous
Materials Division’s signature. Please be advised that the payment into the Trust Fund
addressed in Paragraph 8.10.1.2 is due within thirty (30) days of the effective date of
the Consent Order.

Sincerely,

*

hn Craig, Ch;ef

Enforcement Section
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division
517-373-7923

Enciosure

cclenc: Mr. Paul J. Little, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
Ms. Kathleen L. Cavanaugh, Michigan Department of Attorney General
Dr. Benedict N. Okwumabua, MDEQ '
Ms. Ronda Blayer, MDEQ
Ms. Patricia Slagell, MDEQ
Mr. Gary Tuma, MDEQ

CONSTITUTION HALL « 525 WEST ALLEGAN STREET « PO. BOX 30241 » LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7741
www.michigan.gov = (517) 335-2600



STATE OF MICHIGAN
DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
WASTE AND HAZARDOUS MATERIALS DIVISION

In the matter of:

Michigan Seamless Tube LLC,

a limited liabifity company organized
under the laws of the State of Delaware,
with offices located at 400 McMunn Street,
County of Oakland, City of South Lyon,
State of Michigan

MID 082 767 591 WHMD Order No. 111-02-04

CORRECTIVE ACTION CONSENT ORDER

This Corrective Action Consent Order (“Consent Order”) is being entered into
between Michigan Seamless Tube LLC (“MST") and the Michigan Depértment of
Environmental Quality ("“MDEQ") pursuant to Section 324.11115a of Part 111,
Hazardous Waste Management, of the Michigan Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, MCL 324.101 et seq.
("NREPA”), the rules promuigated under this part, and the authority vested in the
MDEQ as an authorized state under the federal Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act of 1976 ("RCRA”).

I. STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

1.1 In entering this Consent Order, the mutual objectives of the parties are:

a. For MST to conduct RCRA corrective action at all known Waste
Management Units (“WMUs") and Areas of Concern (*AOCs”) as
set forth in Table 1 and newly discovered WMUs and AOCs, as



2.1

necessary, to protect public health, safety, welfare, and the

envirpnment.

- b. For MST to use the applicable cleanup criteria in Part 201,

Environmental Remediation, of the NREPA for corrective action
purposes at known WMUs and AQCs, as set forth in Table 1, and
newly identified WMUs and AOCs for contaminants as defined in
Paragraph 3.4 of this Consent Order and hazardous substances as
defined in Part 201.

C. For the MDEQ to act as the lead agency so that the WMUs and

AOCs can be comprehensively addressed through entry of this
Consent Order. '

d. To perform corrective action in accordance with the RCRA and

make the corrective action Environmentat indicators
demonstrations required by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency (“U.S. EPA”) under the Government Performance and
Resuits Act for control of human exposures and migration of
contaminated groundwater as set forth in Section Vil of this
Consent Order.

it. JURISDICTION

Pursuant to its authority under Section 105 and Part 111 of the NREPA,
the MDEQ has promulgated administrative rules pertinent to the
identification, generation, treatment, storage, disposal, and transportation
of hazardous wastes in Michigan. These rules are set forth in the
Michigan Administrative Code, R 299.9101 — R 299.11107.




2.2

On October 30, 1986, the State of Michigan was granted final
authorization by the Administrator of the U.S. EPA, pursuant to
Section 3006(b) of the RCRA, Title 42 of the United States Code

2.3

24

2.5

Michigan in lieu of the federal program, Title 40 of the Code of Federal
Regulations ("CFR"), Part 272, Subpart X, 51 Federal Register 36804
(October 16, 1986). This authorization is periodically updated to maintain
authorization. Section 3008 of the RCRA, 42 U.S.C. Section 6928,
provides that the U.S. EPA may enforce state regulations in those states

authorized to administer a hazardous waste program.

This Consent Order is issued to MST, the current owner and operator of
the facility, located at 400 McMunn Street, South Lyon, Oaktand County,
State of Michigan (the “Facility”).

MST consents and agrees to the issuance and entry of this Consent Order
and stipulates that the termination of this matter by a final order to be
entered as a Consent Order is proper and acceptable. This Consent
Order, thus, shall be considered a final order of the MDEQ and shall
become effective on the date it is signed by the Chief of the Waste and
Hazardous Materials Division ("WHMD”), delegee of the Director of the
MDEQ.

MST further consents to and agrees not to contest the MDEQ's jurisdiction
and authority to issue this Consent Order and to enforce its terms. In
addition, MST will not contest the MDEQ’s jurisdiction and authority to:
compel compliance with this Consent Order in any subsequent
enforcement proCeed ings, either administrative or judicial; require full or
interim compliance by MST with the terms of this Consent Order: or

impose sanctions for violations of this Consent Order.



2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

MST and the MDEQ agree that the signing of this Consent Order is for
settlement purposes only and does not constitute an admission by MST

that any law has been violated nor is it an admission of any factual

~ allegation or legal conclusion stated or implied in this Consent Order.

Except as otherwise provided in this Consent Order, MST expressly
reserves all rights they may have in law or in equity to maintain or defend

against any claim brought by or against any person.

ilf. DEFINITIONS

Unless otherwise expressly provided herein, terms used in this Consent
Order that are defined in Part 111 or the RCRA or the regulations
promulgated under those statutes will have the definitions given to them in
Part 111 or the RCRA or in such regulations.

WMU as used in this Consent Order means any discernible unit at which
contaminants have been placed at any time, or at which contaminants
have been released, or at which there is a threat of release regardiess of
the intended use of such unit, and which is subject to the corrective action
requirements of Part 111, Sections 15a(1) and (2) and 15b, or

R 299.9629. The term WMU includes the term “Solid Waste Management
Unit” ("SWMU”) as defined by the U.S. EPA in 61 Federal Register 19442
(May 1, 1996).

AOC as used in this Consent Order means those units that méy not meet
the definition of a WMU but which may have released contaminants to the
environment on a nonroutine basis, which may present an unacceptable

risk to public health, safety, welfare, or the environment and are subject to

the corrective action requirements of Part 111.



3.4

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The word “contaminant” as used in this Consent Order shall mean

contaminant as defined in Part 111.

The provisions of this Consent Order shall apply to and be binding upon
MST, the MDEQ, and their successors and assigns.

No change in ownership or corporate or partnership status relating to the
Facility will in any way alter the responsibility of MST under this Consent
Order unless agreed to, in writing, between the MDEQ and MST. Any
conveyance of title, easement, or other interest in the Facility, or a portion
of the Facility, shall not affect the obligations of MST under this Consent
Order. MST will be responsible and liable for any failure to carry out all
activities required of MST by the terms and conditions of this Consent
Order, regardless of use by MST of empioyees, agents, contractors, or
consultants to perform any such tasks. This paragraph will not appiy if the
MDEQ and MST agree that this Consent Order has been terminated as to
the Facility or any relevant portion of the Facility.

MST shall provide a copy of this Consent Order to all contractors,
subcontractors, and consultants retained after the effective date of this
Consent Order to conduct or monitor any portion of the work to be
performed pursuant to this Consent Order within one (1) week after the
effective date of this Consent Order, or within one (1) week after the date
of retention of such person(s), whichever occurs later. Notwithstanding
the terms of any such contract, MST is responsible for compliance with the
terms of this Consent Order.

MST shali give notice of this Consent Order to any successor in interest

prior to transfer of ownership or operation of the Facility and shall notify

-5-



the MDEQ, in writing, no later than ninety (90) days prior to such
scheduled transfer. This written notice shall describe how MST has

assured that, despite the transfer, all corrective measures that are or may

2.1

5.2

5.3

54

be required for the Facility will be implemented and maintained.

V. EINDINGS OF FACT

MST is a person as defined by Section 324.301(g) of the NREPA and
R 299.9106(i).

MST purchased the Facility on October 18, 2002, and is the current owner
and operator of the Facility, located at 400 McMunn Street, South Lyon,
Michigan. Hazardous waste was generated, treated, stored, and disposed
of at the Facility prior to MST's purchase. MST is a generator of
hazardous waste only. MST is a Delaware limited liability company

authorized to do business in Michigan.

The Facility coordinates are 83 degrees, 39 minutes, 45 seconds west

longitude and 42 degrees, 27 minutes, 21 seconds north latitude.

The Facility is located on the southwest side of South Lyon in Oakland
County, Michigan. The Facility is bordered by Ten Mile Road on the north,
McMunn Street on the east, the former Grand Trunk Western Railroad
right-of-way on the south, and Dixboro Road on the west. The Facility
covers approximately 53 acres. The Facility is located immediately to the
north of the Yerkes Drain. Some swampy areas are present along the
northern and western edges of the Facility. Inchwagh Lake and its
surrounding wetlands are located one-haif mile southwest of the Facility.
Residential properties are located to the northeast, east, and southeast.



55

56

5.7

5.8

5.9

According to MST, Michigan Seamiess Tube Company owned and
operated the Facility from 1927 until 1977, at which time it changed its

name to Quanex Corporation (“Quanex”). Quanex owned and operated

- the Facility from approximately 1977 unfil December 3, 1997. Michigan

Speciaity Tube, a division of Vision Metals, Inc. (“Vision Metals”), owned
and operated the Facility from December 3, 1997 until October 18, 2002.
The Facility has always manufactured seamless steel tubing by using hot
and cold mill processes, and generated hazardous and nonhazardous
wastes in the processes, including waste pickle liquor, acid cleaning rinse
water, machine lubricating oils, steel and metal scrap, and commercial
product residues in liners and containers. Process wastewaters were lime

stabilized on-site.

in 1974, Quanex discovered evidence of a release of fuel oil from a below-
grade transfer pipe. Fuel oil from this release was discovered in Yerkes
Drain. The fuel oif release was the subject of ongoing response activity
from 1974 until MST discontinued operation and maintenance of the
passive recovery system, with the MDEQ's approval, on April 14, 2003,

On October 14, 1980, Quanex, then owner and operator of the Facility,
filed a Notification of Hazardous Waste Activity Form with the U.S. EPA
pursuant to Section 3010 of the RCRA. The Facility's U.S. EPA
Identification No. is MID 082 767 591. In its notification, Quanex indicated
that the Facility generated, treated, stored, and disposed of hazardous
waste.

On November 19, 1980, Quanex submitted to the U.S. EPA, Part A of its
RCRA permit application for the Facility.

Prior to November 1988, the lime stabilized waste was discharged into two

(2) surface impoundments where lime-stabilized sludge settled out of



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

solution and effluent was discharged per a National Pollutant Discharge
Elimination System permit to Yerkes Drain. Settled solids were dredged

from the lmpoundments and p!aced in two (2) sludge drying beds from

treatment plant with clarifiers and filter presses. Based on information
currently availabie to the MDEQ, sludge produced after the 1988
installation of clarifiers has been disposed of off-site in a licensed Type i
tandfill. The two (2) surface impoundments presently contain
lime-stabilized sludge from previous operations that has been further
stabilized with fly ash.

On March 29, 1984, a U.S. EPA Consent Agreement and Final Order
("CAFO") was issued to Quanex regarding cessation of hazardous waste
treatment, storage, or disposal except per 40 CFR, Part 265. The CAFO
also ordered that compliance with Consolidated Permit Regulations in
accordance with 40 CFR, Paris 124 and 270, should be maintained just as
if timely submittal of a Notification of Hazardous Waste Activities and

Part A Permit Application in 1980 had occurred. Quanex then pursued an
extension in submitting a Part B application due to the delisting of
lime-stabilized waste pickle liquor sludge from the hazardous waste list as
of December 5, 1984.

On December 6, 1984, Quanex submitted to the U.S. EPA, Part B of its
RCRA permit application for disposal of hazardous waste.

On February 5, 1986, Quanex petitioned the U.S. EPA to delist its pickle

- liquor wastes.

On October 28, 1986, the MDEQ directed Quanex to perform a remedial
investigation (“RI") of its sludge drying beds to determine the extent of soil



514

5.15

5.16

5.17

9.18

and groundwater contamination. In response, Quanex submitted test data

and a petition for Type il designation of the sludge.

On August 5, 1987, Quanex submitied a closure plan for the hazardous
waste container storage area. The plan was approved on September 24,

1987, and the closure certification was approved on February 5, 1990.

On November 2, 1988, Quanex requested an extension for closure of the
surface impoundments and submitted a petition for Type Il designation of
the surface impoundment siudge in July 1989.

On September 5, 1990, a Preliminary Assessment/Visual Site inspection
("PA/VSI”) was conducted by Metcalf and Eddy, Inc., for the U.S. EPA.
Ten (10) SWMUs (hereafter “WMUs") were identified at the Facility at that
time. Table 1, attached as Attachment 1, sets forth the known WMUs and
AQCs as currently identified at the Facility and provides a brief description
of the regulatory status of each. A map identifying the approximate
tocation of the known WMUs and AOCs at the Facility is attached as
Attachment 2.

On April 18, 1995, Quanex submitted an investigation work plan for the
Surface impoundments, the Uncovered Berm Area (a debris pile
associated with the surface impoundments}, and the Sludge Drying Beds,
all as identified in Attachment 1.

On March 7, 1996, the MDEQ approved the closure work plan and an
Interim Measures Corrective Action Implementation Work Plan for the
surface impoundments and the uncovered berm area. In 1998, Vision
Metals placed an engineered clay cap over the southern portion of the two
(2) surface impoundments.



5.19

5.20

5.21

0.22

5.23

5.24

On August 12, 1998, Vision Metals, a Delaware corporation, executed a
Restrictive Covenant on the land pursuant to Section 11115a of Part 111,

to ensure the care, maintenance, monitoring, and long-term integrity of the

~ engineéred Cap placed on the suiface impoundments plifsuanttoan

Interim Measure Corrective Action Implementation Work Plan. The
Restrictive Covenant was recorded on September 3, 1998, and is hereby
incorporated into this Consent Order, by reference, and attached as
Attachment 3.

On August 30, 1999, Vision Metals submitted to the MDEQ a Petition to
Designate High-Volume, Low-Hazard Industrial Waste, seeking to have
the material in the sludge drying beds designated a low-hazard industrial -
waste.

On September 24, 1998, the surface impoundments and the berm area
were certified as closed by the MDEQ. Post-closure monitoring and
maintenance are ongoing pursuant to an amended Sampling and Analysis
Plan ("SAP™) originally approved on August 29, 1996, and last amended
on November 30, 2001.

On November 13, 2000, Vision Metals filed voluntary bankruptcy
proceedings in the United States Bankruptcy Count for the District of
Delaware, being case number 00-4205 (MFW) under Chapter 11 of the
Bankruptcy Code.

On June 14, 2001, Vision Metals recorded a “Notice Regarding Statutory
Obligations Applicable To Property” with the Oakland County Register of

Deeds. (Attachment4).

On May 30, 2002, during soil and groundwater sampling, the presence of

vinyl chloride was detected in Yerkes Drain. Elevated levels of metals

-10-



5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

were also present in soil samples taken from certain other locations

around the Facility.

"On December 17, 2002, MST completed a Baseline Environmental

Assessment (“BEA”) of the Facility pursuant to Part 201 of the NREPA.
The BEA was disclosed to the DEQ on April 16, 2003.

On May 30, 2003, MST posted financial assurance in the form of a Trust
Fund, as set forth in the September Letter.

The Facility has been operated as a hazardous waste management facility
subject to the requirement to have a permit under Sections 11118

and 11123 of Part 111, R 299.9601, R 299.9502, and Section 3004 of the
RCRA, 42 U.8.C., Section 6924. Therefore, the Facility is subject to the
regulations and environmental standards of Part 111 and the rules
promulgated under that part and is subject to the corrective action
requirements of Section 3004(u) of the RCRA, as amended by the
Hazardous and Solid Waste Amendments of 1984, 42 U.S.C.,

Section 6924(u).

This Consent Order shall apply to all known WMUs and AOCs, as set forth
in Table 1, and newly identified WMUs and AOCs identified during the
impllementation of work to be performed, as set forth in Section VIII of this
Consent Order.

Certain wastes and waste constituents found at the Facility may be
contaminants within the meaning of MCL 324.11103(3), R 299.9201 -

R 289.9214, and R 299.9217 - R 299.9226.

There is, has been, or is a potential for a release of contaminants at or
from the Facility.

11 -



5.31

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

MST has agreed to perform actions required by this Consent Order that

are necessary to protect public health, safety, welfare, and the

environment,

Vi. APPROVAL OF SUBMITTALS

For any work plan, proposal, or other document, excluding applications for
permits or licenses, that are required by this Consent Order to be
submitted by MST to the MDEQ for approval, the following process and
terms of approval shall apply. '

Any work plan, proposal, or other document required to be submitted by
this Consent Order shall include all of the information required by the
applicable statute and/or rule and all of the information required by the

applicable paragraph(s) of this Consent Order.

The MDEQ may approve, disapprove, or approve with specific
modifications, the required work plan, proposal, or other document. Upon
MDEQ approval, or approval with modifications, of a work plan, proposal,
or other document, such work plan, proposal, or other document shall be
incorporated by reference into this Consent Order and shall be
enforceable in accordance with the provisions of this Consent Order.

In the event the MDEQ disapproves a work plan, proposal, or _other
document, it shall notify MST, in writing, of the specific reasons for such
disapproval. Subject to the availability of funds in the Trust Fund, as set
forth in Paragraph 8.10 of this Consent Order, MST shall submit, within
thirty (30) days of receipt of such disapproval, a revised WOrk plan,
proposal, or other document that adequately addresses the reasons for
the MDEQ's disapproval.

-12 -



6.5

6.6

6.7

In the event the MDEQ approves with specific modifications, a work plan,
proposal, or ather document, it shall notify MST, in writing, of the specific

modifications required to be made to such work plan, proposal, or other

“document prior to'its inipiementation and the specific reasons for such’

modifications. Subject to the availability of funds in the Trust Fund, as set
forth in Paragraph 8.10 of this Consent Order, the MDEQ may require
MST to submit, prior to implementation and within twenty (20) days of
receipt of such approval with specific modifications, a revised work plan,
proposal, or other document that adequately addresses such
modifications. However, if necessary, MST may request an extension of

time. Such request shall not be unreasonably denied.

Failure by MST to submit any work plan, proposal, or other plan on the
date it was first due, pursuant to the schedules set forth in Section VIli or
the schedules approved as part of a work plan, proposal, or other
document, shall subject MST to stipulated penalties commencing on the
date the work plan, proposal, or other document was due. Failure by MST
to submit an approvable work plan, proposal, or other document within the
applicable time period specified in Paragraphs 6.4 and 6.5 of this Consent
Order shall subject MST to the enforcement provisions of this Consent
Order including, but not limited to, the stipulated penalty provisions
commencing on the date the revised work plan, proposal, or other
document was due and accumulating until an approvable work plan,

proposal, or other document is submitted.

Any delays caused by MST's failure to submit an approvable work ptan,
proposal, or other document when due shall in no way affect or alter
MST’s responsibility to comply with any other deadline(s) specified in this

Consent Order.

-13 -



6.8

7.1

8.1

8.2

No informal advice, guidance, suggestions, or comments by the MDEQ
regarding reports, plans, specifications, schedules, or any other writing
submitted by MST will be construed as relieving MST of the obligation to
obtain written approval if and when required by this Consent Order.

Vil PROJECT COORDINATOR

Unless the MDEQ is otherwise notified in writing, the Project Coordinator
for MST shall be Donald F. Comfort, P.E. The MDEQ Project Coordinator
shall be Mr. Kevin Holdwick, Engineer, unless MST is notified otherwise in
writing. The Project Coordinators shall be responsible for overseeing the
implementation of this Consent Order. To the maximum extent
practicable, all communications between MST and the MDEQ and ali
documents, reports, approvals, and other correspondence concerning the
activities performed pursuant to this Consent Order shall be directed
through the Project Coordinators.

Viil. WORK TO BE PERFORMED

MST agrees to, and is hereby ordered to, perform the acts specified in this
Section VIl in the manner specified and by the dates specified herein, all
subject to the availability of funds in the Trust Fund as set forth in
Paragraph 8.10 of this Consent Order, unless otherwise explicitly stated in
this Section Vill,

All work undertaken pursuant to this Consent Order shall be performed in
a manner consistent with the following: Parts 111 and 201, the RCRA,
and other applicable state and federal laws and their implementing
regulations; all MDEQ-approved work plans, proposals, or other
documents; and relevant MDEQ and U.S. EPA guidance documents.
Such guidance includes, but is not limited to, the Documentation of

-14 -



Environmental Indicator Determination Guidance, relevant portions of the
Model Scopes of Work for RCRA Corrective Action, the U.S. EPA’s risk
assessment guidance, and applicable Part 201 cleanup standards.

8.2.1

822

8.23

MST agrees to address releases or threats of releases of
hazardous waste, hazardous waste constituents, and hazardous
substances at all known WMUs and AOCs, as set forth in Table 1,
and newly discovered WMUs and AOCs.

All sampling and analysis conducted pursuant to this Consent
Order shall be consistent with the Region 5 RCRA Quality
Assurance Project Plan Policy (April 1998) as modified by the
MDEQ and as appropriate for the site and be sufficient to identify
and characterize the nature and extent of all releases as required
by this Consent Order. The MDEQ reserves the right to audit
laboratories selected by MST or require MST, as part of its
response activities, to purchase and have analyzed any
Performance Evaluation samples selected by the MDEQ that are

compounds of concern.

MST agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 20107a of the
NREPA. Nothing in this Consent Order, including Paragraph 8.10,
shall be construed as limiting MST’s obligations to comply with
Section 20107a of the NREPA. Any funds expended to comply
with Section 20107a shall not be eligible for reimbursement from

the Trust Fund established pursuant to Paragraph 8.10.

-15 -



8.3 Interim Response Activities/Interim Measures (“IRA/IM")

8.3.1 On and after the effective date of this Consent Order, MST shall
continue o sampte alt required monitoring wells pursuanttothe
schedule contained in the approved SAP.

8.3.2 On September 8, 2003, the MDEQ approved an MST work plan
dated August 26, 2003, entitled the "Revised IRA/IM Work Plan.”
The Revised IRA/IM Work Plan provides for the investigation of
AOC “A”, the Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area, and investigation
of WMU No. 3, the Three Former Acid Pits. The Revised IRA/IM
Work Plan, as approved, is incorporated into and enforceable under

the terms of this Order.

8.3.3 MST shall immediately implement the approved Revised IRA/IM
Work Plan, if it has not already, and submit a final report within sixty
(60) days after the effective date of this Consent Order, or by
April 15, 2004, which ever is sooner. The final report shall include
a determination, subject to review and approval by the MDEQ, as o
whether the vinyl chloride contamination originates from a WMU at
the Facility. If the source of the vinyl chloride contamination in
Yerkes Drain is from a WMU at the Facility, it shall be considered a
newly identified WMU and MST shall comply with Paragraph 8.3.5.
in the event that MST determines, and the MDEQ agrees, that the
vinyl chloride contamination is not from a WMU at the Facility, MST
shall be exempt from liability for the vinyl chloride contamination to
the extent provided for in Section 20126(1)(c) of Part 201.

8.3.4 MST shall submit to the MDEQ for review and approval, the

following work plans, including schedules for their implementation,
to address the following IRA/IMs:

-16 -



8.3.5

8.3.6

a. an interim measures remedial investigation work plan to

investigate AOC “C”, the Sitewide Groundwater Metals

accordance with the approved work plan;

b. an interim measures work plan and perform interim measures to
ensure compliance with Paragraph 8.5.

c. a work plan for the closure of WMU No. 2, the Two Sludge
Drying Beds, and closure of WMU No. 3, the Three Former Acid
Pits, and undertake the work in accordance with the approved
work plan; and

d. a work plan to investigate AOC "B", the Sitewide Mill scale, and

undertake the work in accordance with the approved work pian.

In regard to any newly identified WMUs or AOCs, beyond those as
set forth in Table 1, MST shall immediately notify the MDEQ
verbally within 24 hours, and in writing within fourteen (14) days
summarizing the immediacy and magnitude of the potential threat
to public health, safety, welfare, or the environment. Within thirty
(30) days of notifying the MDEQ, MST shall propose a schedulé to
submit to the MDEQ, an amended work plan(s), for review and
approval, that identifies additional IRA/IM, that mitigate this threat.
The amended work plan(s) shall be developed and shall comply
with the requirements of Paragraphs 8.3.6 - 8.3.7 of this Consent
Order.

The IRA/IM work plan shall ensure that the IRA/IM is designed to
mitigate any current or potential threat to public health, safety,
welfare, and the environment and shall be consistent with and
integrated into any Remedial Action/Corrective Measures
("RA/CM”) at the Facility. '

-17 -



8.3.7 Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the MDEQ's written approval of
the IRA/IM Work Plan, MST shall commence work and implement
the approved work plan{s) in accordance with the approved

IRA/IM as required by the approved Work Plan(s) and any
associated Operation and Maintenance Plan ("O&M Plan”) until the
appropriate Part 201 cleanup standard has been achieved and
cessation has been approved by the MDEQ or the IRA/IM is
replaced by an MDEQ-approved Remedial Action Plan/Corrective
Measures implementation ("“RAP/CMI").

8.4 RI/RCRA Facility Investigation (“RFI")

8.4.1 MST shall submit to the MDEQ for review and approval, a Current
Conditions Report (“CCR”) within one (1) year after entry of this
Consent Order. The CCR shall support the corrective action
approach used in this Consent Order and summarize the current
conditions at the Facility. The CCR will include, but is not limited to,

the following:

a. asummary of the historic operations and physical setting of
the Facility and a Facility map;

b. a description of conditions at all Facility locations specified in
the PA/VSI and any known past or present locations of
treatment, storage, or disposal of hazardous waste, hazardous
constituents, or hazardous substances for those WMUSs and
AQOCs as set forth in Table 1 or newly discovered potential
WMUs or AOCs; and

-18 -



842

8.5

8.4.3

8.4.4

¢c. a description of all IRA/IM currently being implemented under

approved work plans and any recent sampling data.

“Within sixty (60) days after MST's receipt of the MDEQ's approval

of the CCR, MST shall submit to the MDEQ for review and
approval, an RI/RFI Work Plan to identify the nature and extent of
any releases of hazardous waste, hazardous constituents, and
hazardous substances at or from those WMUs and AOCs as set
forth in Table 1 or any newly identified WMU or AOC at the Facility
that may pose an unacceptable risk to human health or the
environment. The RI/RFI Work Plan shall include a schedule for its
implementation and MST shall implement the RI/RFI Work Plan in

accordance with the approved schedule.
The RI/RFI Work Plan shall:

a. address all known WMUs and AOCs as set forth in Table 1
and any newly identified WMUs and AOCs at the Facility; and

b. provide for the submission of an RI/RFI Report following
completion of the RI/RFI Work Plan. The RI/RF| Report must
include, but is not limited to, a description of the nature and
extent of any releases of hazardous waste, hazardous
constituents, or hazardous substances at or from the Facility.

The RI/RFI Report may be prepared in phases to provide timely

“support for the work required in Paragraph 8.5.

The federal Government Performance and Results Act of 1993,

Section 1116, "Program Performance Reports,” requires that each year

the U.S. EPA submit to the President and the Congress a report on

-19-



program performance for the previous fiscal year. The U.S. EPA has
established a performance plan that requires that certain Environmental

Indicators (“El") of corrective action progress be met. The following El

8.5.1 MST will demonstrate, through submitting one (1) or more El
Report(s) and by performing any other necessary activities

consistent with this section, that:

a. all current human exposures to contamination at or from the
Facility are under controi. That is, for all media known or
reasonably suspected to be contaminated with hazardous waste
or hazardous waste constituents above risk-based levels, for
which there are complete pathways between contamination and
human receptors, significant or unacceptable exposures do not

exist,

b. migration of contaminated groundwater at or from the Facility is
controlled. That is, the migration of all groundwater known or
reasonably suspected to be contaminated with hazardous
wastes or hazardous constituents or hazardous substances
above acceptable levels is controlled to remain within any
existing areas of contamination as defined by monitoring
locations designated at the time of the demonstration. In
addition, any discharge of groundwater to surface water is either
insignificant or shown to be currently acceptable according to an
appropriate interim assessment. Monitoring and measurement
data must be coliected in the fuiure, as necessary, to verify‘ that

migration of any contaminated groundwater is controlled.

-20-



8.6

8.7

c. MST will propose to the MDEQ, consistent with Paragraph 8.7,
any actions necessary to protect public health, safety, welfare,

and the environment from all current and future unacceptable

-~ risks due to releases of hazardous waste or fazardous waste o e

constituents at or from those WMUs and AQOCs as set forth in
Table 1 or newly identified WMUs and AOCs at the Facility.

It the MDEQ determines, based on the results of the RI/RF Report and
other relevant information, that RA/CM are necessary, the MDEQ will
notify MST, in writing, that a Feasibility Study (“FS")/Corrective Measures
Study ("CMS”) is required.

8.6.1 Within sixty (60) days after the MDEQ notifies MST that a FS/CMS
is required, MST shall submit to the MDEQ for review and approval,
a F5/CMS that addresses all WMUs and AOCs at the Facility, as
set forth in the RI/RFI Report. |

8.6.2 The MDEQ may request supplemental information from MST if it
determines that the FS/CMS and supporting information do not
provide an adequate basis for selection of final RAP/CM that will
protect public health, safety, welfare, and the environment from the
release of hazardous waste or hazardous constituents at or from
the Facility. MST will provide such supplemental information in a
timely manner as directed in writing by the MDEQ.

Within sixty (60) days of MST’s receipt of the MDEQ’s approval of any
FS/CMS, MST shall submit to the MDEQ, for review and approval, a

Part 201 RAP/CMI Work Plan.

8.7.1 As part of the development of its RAP/CMI Work Plan, MST must
propose, in accordance with the standards set forth in Part 201,

- 91 -



appropriate risk screening criteria, cleanup objectives, and points of
compliance under current and reasonably expected future land use

scenarios and provide the basis and justification for these

decisions.”

8.7.2

8.7.3

8.74

8.7.5

8.7.6

The RAP/CMI Work Plan must include a detailed schedule for
construction and implementation of the final RA/CM and for
submittal of a Final RA/CM Construction Completion Report. This
schedule will provide that as much of the initial construction work as
practicable will be completed within one (1) year after the MDEQ
approves the final RAP/CMI Work Plan and that ali final RA/CM wil}

be completed within a reasonable period.

The RAP/CMI Work Plan must include an O&M Plan for any
planned ongoing monitoring and maintenance after construction of
the selected final RA/CM.

The MDEQ will provide the public with an opportunity to review and
comment on MST's proposed RAP/CMI Work Plan. Following the
public comment period, the MDEQ will act upon the RAP/CMI| Work
Plan pursuant to Section VI, Approval of Submittals.

Upon approval of the RAP/CMI Work Plan by the MDEQ, MST will
implement the approved Work Plan in accordance with the

schedule therein and consistent with the cleanup criteria set forth in
Part 201.

The RAP/CMI Work Pian must include a revised and updated
Sampling and Analysis Plan.

-2



8.8 In the event of any unplanned monitoring and maintenance required after
construction of the selected final RA/CM, MST must revise and resubmit
the RAP/CMI Work Plan to include an O&M Plan by the due dates

specified by the VIDEQ. MST must impiement-theapproved -G&M-Plarrin—

accordance with the schedule and provisions contained therein.

8.9 The MDEQ and MST recognize that during the course of any RI/RFI or
RAP/CM, WMUs, AQCs, or releases, in addition to those set forth in
Table 1 of this Consent Order, may be identified. In the event that such

areas or releases are identified, MST agrees that:

a. Within thirty (30) days of discovery, MST shall provide written
notification to the MDEQ. The written notification shall include ali

available information pertaining to the release.

b. Based on a review of all of the information, the MDEQ may réquire

corrective action for the newly identified area or release.

¢. MST shali submit a written RI/RF! Work Plan or RAP/CMI Work Plan
(depending on the stage of response activity) to the MDEQ within sixty
(60) days after written notification by the MDEQ: that corrective action
for the release is required. The RI/RFI or RAP/CMI Work Plan shali
include a schedule for its implementation and MST shall implement the
RI/RFI Work Plan in accordance with the approved schedule

8.10 The parties agree that the work performed pursuant to this Consent Order
shall be funded from the then available funds in the Trust Fund
established by MST, and attached to this Consent Order as Attachment 5.
The work in Paragraphs 8.3, 8.4, 8.6, and 8.7 shall be done in the order
listed and as soon as such funds are available in the Trust Fund. The

priority of work may only be changed by written approval of the President

-23-



of MST and the Chief of the WHMD in accordance with Paragraph 15.3 of
this Consent Order.

B0 MST shaii nivaintain financial assurance for corrective action ard

response activities at the Facility and shall be reimbursed for such

corrective action and response activities as.specified in this

paragraph.

8.10.1.1

8.10.1.2

The Trust Fund dated June 6, 2003, or a replacement
trust fund proposed by MST and acceptable to the Chief
of the WHMD, shall be used to finance the corrective
action and response activities at the Facility required
under this Consent Order. The Trust Fund is hereby
incorporated into and made an enforceable provision of
this Consent Order. To the extent, however, that any
funding provision of this Consent Order conflicts with any
of the terms of the Trust Agreement, this Consent Order
shall be binding.

Within thirty (30) days after the effective date of this
Consent Order, MST shall make a payment into the Trust
Fund of $100,000. Thereafter, MST shall make annual
payments into the Trust Fund, on or before each
anniversary of the effective date of this Consent Order.
The payment amount in 2005 shall be $125,000. The
annual amounts to be paid into the Trust Fund in
subsequent years will be determined by the MDEQ
based on the estimated annual costs of completing
corrective action at the Facility provided, however, MST's
required payments for subsequent years will not exceed
$150,000 per year.

-24 -



8.10.1.3 In accordance with the terms of the Trust Fund, the
MDEQ shall agree to disbursements from the then
available funds in the Trust Fund for the actual costs for

corrective action and response activities that have been
conducted as required under this Consent Order.
Requests for disbursements from the Trust Fund by MST
shall be limited to two (2) per calendar year and shall
include a completed Reimbursement Request Form
(Attachment 6). The MDEQ shall, within one hundred
and twenty (120) days of receiving such request for
reimbursement, determine whether the expenditures are
in accordance with the work plan and if so, promptly give
notice to the trustee of the Trdst_ Fund that the request for
disbursement is approved and that the Trustee can make
payment to MST from the Trust Fund.

8.10.2 The MDEQ shall agree to termination of the Trust Fund and to the
distribution of all remaining trust assets, less final trust
administrative expenses, to MST when the MDEQ determines that
no further corrective action or response activities are required by
MST at the Facility and has issued the Final Notice of Termination

pursuant to Section XXI, Termination, of this Consent Order.

8.10.3 MST shall notify the MDEQ, by certified mail, of the
commencement of a voluntary or involuntary proceeding under the
bankruptey provisions of Public Law 95-588, 11 U.S.C.

1 to 151302, naming MST as debtor, within ten (10) days after

commencement of the proceeding.

8.10.4 MST shall be deemed to be without the required financial
assurance in the event of bankruptcy of the trustee of the Trust

-25-



Fund. MST shall also be deemed to be without the required
financial assurance in the event of a suspension or revocation of

the authority of the trustee institution to act as trustee. MST shali

establish other equivalent financial assurance within sixty (60} days
after such an event.

8.11 Determination of No Further Action

8.11.1 After compiletion of and based on the results of the RI/RF| Report
and other relevant information, MST may submit a written request
to the MDEQ if MST wishes to terminate corrective action for a
WMU or AOC identified in Section V of this Consent Crder or
identified during work performed pursuant to this Consent Order.
MST must demonstrate that there have been no releases of
hazardous waste, hazardous waste constituents, or hazardous
substances from the WMU or AOC above applicable cleanup
criteria of Part 201, or that a WMU or AOC has been remediated to
applicable Part 201 generic cleanup standards and, therefore,
poses no threat to public health, safety, welfare, or the

environment.

8.11.2 If, based upon a review of MST's request, pursuant to -
Paragraph 8.11.1 of this Consent Order, the results of the
completed RI/RFI Report, and other relevant informatio_n, the
MDEQ determines that the releases or suspected releases of
hazardous waste, hazardous waste constituents, or hazardous
substances do not exist above the applicable Part 201 generic
cleanup standards or that the WMU or AOC has been remediated
to applicable generic cleanup standards, the MDEQ will approve

the request to terminate corrective action. .

- 26 -



8.11.3 A determination to terminate corrective action shall not preclude the
MDEQ from requiring further corrective action at a later date, if new
information or subsequent analysis indicates that a release or
threat of a release of a hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituent at or from a WMU or a release of a hazardous
substance from an AOC at the Facility may pose a threat to public
health, safety, welfare, or the environment, or if there is a change in
the use of any portion of the Facility such that the Part 201 generic
cleanup criteria upon which the corrective action is based are no

longer applicable.
8.12 Cost Estimate for Corrective Action

8.12.1 MST shall prepare a detailed written cost estimate for any RA/CM
at the Facility in accordance with the requirements of R 289.9712.

8.12.2 MST shali submit the detailed written cost estimate for any RA/CM
to the MDEQ for review and approval in conjunction with any
RAP/CMI Work Plan(s) required by this section.

8.12.3 The MDEQ shall approve the cost estimate for any RA/CM or
provide a written Notice of Deficiency on the cost estimate for the
RA/CM. MST shall modify the cost estimate for any RA/CM in
accordance with the Notice of Deficiency and submit a new cost
estimate for the RA/CM to the MDEQ for approval within thirty (30)
days of receipt of the Notice of Deficiency. MST shall maintain
financial assurance as provided in Paragraph 8.10.1, above. The
Trust Fund established pursuant to Paragraph 8.10.1, above,

becomes an enforceable provision of this Consent Order.

=927 -



8.13

8124

8.12.5

8.12.6

Until the MDEQ notifies MST, in writing, that MST is no longer
required by R 289.9713 to maintain financial assurance for any
RA/CM at the Facility, MST shall adjust any RA/CM cost estimate
for inflation within sixty (60) days prior to the anniversary of the date
of the establishment of the financial instrument(s) used to

demonstrate financial assurance for the RA/CM.

MST shall recalculate any RA/CM cost estimate within thirty (30)
days after the MDEQ has approved a modification of the RAP/CMI
Work Plan. Until the MDEQ notifies MST, in writing, that they are
no longer required to maintain financial assurance for any RA/CM,
MST shall revise the RA/CM cost estimate whenever there is a
change in the RAP/CMI Work Plan, if the change increases the cost
of the RA/CM.

MST shall keep the latest RA/CM cost estimate(s) at the following
location: 400 McMunn Street, South Lyon, Michigan.

Reporting and Other Requirements

8.131

8.13.2

8.13.3

MST will establish a publicly accessible repository for information
regarding site activities.

Within ninety (90) days after the effective date of this Consent
Order, MST must submit a Public involvement/Communications

Plan. MST must comply with the approved plan.

MST will provide semiannual progress reports to the MDEQ
detailing work performed to date, data collected, problems
encountered, project schedule, and percent of the project

completed by the 15th day of January and July.

-98 -



8.13.4 The parties will communicate frequently and cooperate in good
faith to timely respond to submittals and to ensure successful
completion of the requirements of this Consent Order and will
meet on at least a semiannual basis to discuss the work proposed
and performed under this Consent Order.

8.13.5 MST will provide a Final RA/CM Construction Completion Report
documenting all work performed pursuant to the approved
RAP/CMI Work Plan, as required by Paragraph 8.7.2 and in
accordance with the schedule in the approved Work Plan but in

no case later than sixty (60) days following completion of work.

8.13.6 Any risk assessments conducted by MST must estimate human
health and ecological risk under reasonable maximum exposure
for both current and reasonably expected future land use
scenarios. Risk assessments will be conducted in accordance
with appropriate state and federal guidance. MST will utilize
appropriate, conservative screening values when screening to

determine whether further investigation is required.

8.13.7 MST will notify the MDEQ, in writing, at least fourteen (14) days
prior to beginning each separate phase of field work performed
under this Consent Order. At the request of the MDEQ, MST will
provide or allow the MDEQ or its authorized representative to take
split or duplicate samples of all samples collected by MST

pursuant to this Consent Order.

-20 .-



9.1

9.2

IX. ON-SITE AND OFF-SITE ACCESS

The MDEQ and its agents, employees, and representatives are authorized
to enter and freely move about all property at the Facility for the purposes
of, but not limited to, interviewing MST’s personnel and contractors;
inspection of non-privileged records, operating logs, and contracts related
to the Facility; reviewing the progress of MST in carrying out the terms of
this Consent Order; conducting such tests, sampling, or monitoring as the
MDEQ or its Project Coordinator deem necessary; using a camera, sound
recording, or other documentary-type equipment; and verifying the reports
and data submitted to the MDEQ by MST. MST shall permit such persons
to inspect all non-privileged records, files, photographs, documents, and
other writings, including all sampling and monitoring data, which pertain to
work undertaken pursuant to this Consent Order and provide copies
thereof if requested by the MDEQ. Health and safety protocols that are
essential for the prevention of serious injury or death will be followed at all

times.

To the extent that work being performed pursuant to this Consent Order
must be done on property not owned or controlled by MST, MST will use
its best efforts to obtain access agreements necessary to complete work
required by this Consent Order from the present owner(s) or operators of
such property within thirty (30) days of the date that the need for access
becomes known to MST. Any such access agreement will provide for
access by the MDEQ and its representatives. MST will ensure that the
MDEQ'’s Project Coordinator has a copy of any access agreement(s). In
the event that agreements for access are not obtained within thirty (30)
days, MST will notify the MDEQ, in writing, within fourteen (14) days
thereafter of both the efforts undertaken to obtain access and the failure to
obtain access agreements. The MDEQ may, at its discretion, assist MST

in obtaining access.

-30 -



93

94

10.1

11.1

Nothing in this section limits or otherwise affects the MDEQ’s right of
access and entry pursuant to applicable law, inchiding the NREPA and the
RCRA.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit or otherwise affect MST's
liability and obligation to perform corrective action, including corrective

action beyond the Facility boundary, notwithstanding the lack of access.

X. RECORD PRESERVATION

MST agrees to preserve, during the life of this Consent Order and for five
() years after termination of this Consent Order, unless a longer period is
required by Part 111 or its rules: all records and documenis in their
possession or in the possession of their divisions, officers, employees,
agents, contractors, successors, and assigns that relate in any way to this
Consent Order or to hazardous waste management and/or disposal at the
Facility. Upon request from the MDEQ, MST shall make such
nonprivileged records available to the MDEQ for inspection or shall
provide copies of any such records to the MDEQ. MST shall obtain
permission from the MDEQ, in writing, prior to the destruction of any such
records by MST and shall provide the MDEQ with the opportunity to take

possession of any such records.

Xl. REPORTING AND DOCUMENT CERTIFICATION

Unless otherwise specified, reports, correspondence, approvals,
disapprovals, notices, or other submissions relating to or required under

this Consent Order, shall be in writing and shall be distributed as follows:

-31-



a. Three copies of all documents to be submitted to the MDEQ should
be mailed to:
Attention: Ms. Ronda Blayer
Project Coordinator
Hazardous Waste and Radiological Protection Section
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality

P.O. Box 30241
Lansing, Michigan 48809-7741

Hand-deliveries should be made to:

Hazardous Waste and Radiological Protection Section
Waste and Hazardous Materials Division

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Constitution Hall, Atrium North

525 West Allegan Street

Lansing, Michigan 48933

Telephone: 517-241-2108  Fax: 517-373-4797

b. - Documents to be submitted to MST should be sent to:

Attention: Russell W. Maier, President and CEO

Michigan Seamless Tube LLC '

400 McMunn

South Lyon, Michigan 48178

Telephone: 248-486-0111  Fax: 248-434-9610

11.2 A Responsible Official, or designated Project Coordinator, if authorized in

writing by a Responsible Official, shall sign each final document,
certifications of compliance, and documents evidencing that compliance
has been achieved pursuant to Section 324.11151(2) of Part 111. MST
shall include an unsigned certification statement that meets the
requirements specified below in all draft documents submitted to the
MDEQ. The term “Responsible Official” means as foliows: (a) a
president, secretary, treasurer, or vice-president of the corporation in
charge of a principal business function, or any other person who performs
similar policy or decision-making functions for the corporation; or (b) the

manager of one or more manufacturing, production, or operation facilities

-32-



11.3

12.1

employing more than 250 persons, or having gross annual sales or
expenditures exceeding $35 million (in 1987 dollars when the Consumers
Price Index was 345.3), if authority to sign documents has been assigned

or delegated to the manager in accordance with corporate procedures.

The certification required by Paragraph 11.2 of this Consent Order shall

be in the following form:

| certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments
were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance
with a system designed to ensure that qualified personnel properly
gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my
inguiry of the person or persons who manage the system, or those
persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the
information submitied is, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant
penalties for submitting false information, inciuding the possibility of
fine and impriscnment for knowing violations.

Signature:

Name:
Title:
Date:

Xll. FINES, COSTS, AND STIPULATED PENALTIES

Except as provided in Sections Xill, Dispute Resolution, and XIV, Force
Majeure, or uniess there has been a written modification of a compliance
date by the MDEQ pursuant to Section XV, Subsequent Modification, of
this Consent Order, in the event MST fails to meet any requirement set
forth in this Consent Order, the MDEQ may demand and MST shall pay

upon such demand stipulated penalties as set forth below.

-33-



12.1.1 For failure to submit semiannual progress reports by the dates
scheduled in Section VI, Paragraph 8.13.3: $500 per day
for the first thiry (30) days and $750 per day thereafter.

12.1.2  Forfailure to adequately demonstrate that current human
exposures to contamination at or from the facility are under
control on or before August 1, 2005, as required by
Paragraph 8.5.1(a) of this Consent Order: $1,000 per day for
the first thirty (30) days and $2,500 per day thereafter.

12.1.3 For failure to adequately demonstrate that groundwater
migration fs stabilized to remain within any existing areas of
contamination by August 1, 2005, as required by |
Paragraph 8.5.1(b) of this Consent Order: $1,000 per day for
the first thirty (30) days and $2,500 per day thereafter.

12.1.4  For failure to submit the FS/CMS required by Paragraph 8.6.1.
of this Consent Order: $1,000 per day for the first thirty
(30) days and $2,000 per day thereafter.

12.1.5  For failure to submit the RAP/CMI Work Plan as required by
Paragraph 8.7 of this Consent Order within sixty (60) days after
the MDEQ approves any FS/CMS: $1,000 per day for the first
thirty (30) days and $2,000 per déy thereafter.

12.1.6  For failure to implement in accordance with the approved
schedule, the selected final RA/CM as required by
Paragraph 8.7.2 of this Consent Order: $1,000 per day for the
first thirty (30) days and $2,500 per day thereafter.

-34 -



12.2

12.3

12.4

12.1.7  For failure to submit the Final RA/CM Construction Completion
Report as required by Paragraph 8.7.2 in accordance with the
approved scheduled in the Final Remedy Construction
Completion Report: $1,000 per day for the first thirty (30) days
and $2,000 per day thereafter.

12.1.8  For failure to timely submit the Current Conditions Report as
required by Paragraph 8.4.1 of this Consent Order: $500 per
day for the first thirty (30) days and $1,000 per day thereafter.

12.1.9  For failure to submit any document or final report by the date
such document or final report is first due as prescribed in this
Consent Order or for any other failure to perform any other work
or comply with any other provision(s) of this Consent Order:
$500 per day for the first thirty (30) days of delay; $1,000 per
day thereafter.

All penalties shall begin to accrue on the date that complete performance
is due or a violation occurs and shall continue to accrue through the final
day of correction of the noncompliance. Nothing herein shall prevent the
simultaneous accrual of separate penalties for separate violations of this

Consent Order.

All penalties owed to the MDEQ under this Section Xl shali be due within
thirty (30) days after receipt of a written demand from the MDEQ. Such
demand shall describe the noncompliance and shall indicate the amount

of penalties due.
MST shall reimburse the MDEQ for all future oversight costs incurred by

the MDEQ in overseeing the activities conducted by MST pursuant to

Section Vil of this Consent Order. As soon as possible after each

-35-



12.5

12.6

anniversary of the effective date of this Consent Order, the MDEQ wiill
provide MST with a written demand of oversight costs incurred by the
MDEQ. Any such demand shall state with reasonable specificity the

nature of the costs incurred. MST may review the MDEQ's underlying

~ cost documentation, which specifically details the basis for each cost.

Annual billing of oversight costs shall not exceed $10,000 per year. The
State of Michigan may carry forward unreimbursed oversight costs into the
subsequent billing periods if the annual costs exceed the invoice limit of
$10,000. MST shali reimburse the MDEQ for such costs within thirty (30)
days of receipt of a written demand from the MDEQ or receipt of
underlying documentation, whichever occurs Iater, unless MST challenges
the oversight costs pursuant to the dispute resolution procedures set forth
in Section Xll] of this Consent Order. Any oversight costs paid by MST
shall not be deemed to be stipuiated penalties or monetary penalties
under this Consent Order. Oversights costs shall not be reimbursed from

the Trust Fund established pursuant to Paragraph 8.10.

To ensure timely payment of the above penalties and oversight of costs,
MST shall pay an interest penalty to the General Fund of the State of
Michigan each time it fails to make a complete or timely payment. This
interest penalty shall be based on the rate set forth at MCL 600.6013(6),
using the full increment of amount due as principal and shall accrue on the
unpaid balance at the end of the thirty (30} day period after which the
penalty became due until the delinquent payment is finally made in full.

MST shall pay the above stipulated penalties, interest, and oversight
costs, by certified or cashier's check, made payable to the “State of
Michigan” and mailed to the MDEQ, Revenue Control Unif,

P.O. Box 30657, Lansing, Michigan 48309-8157, or hand-delivered to the
MDEQ, Revenue Control Unit, 525 West Allegan Street, 5 Floor, South
Tower, Lansing, Michigan 48933. To ensure proper credit, all payments

- 36 -



12.7

12.8

12.9

made pursuant to this Consent Order must include the Payment
Identification Number furnished in the notice of noncompliance issued
under Paragraph 12.3. All payments shall reference the name of the
Facility, MST's name and address, and the Consent QOrder number.
Copies of the transmittal of payment shall be sent simultaneously to the
MDEQ Project Coordinator.

The payment of stipulated penalties shall not alter in any way MST's
obligation to complete the performance required under this Consent
Order.

MST agrees not to contest the legality of any stipulated penalties
assessed pursuant to Paragraph 12.1, above, or the MDEQ's legal
authority to impose such penalties, except as provided in Section X/, but
reserves the right to dispute the factual basis upon which a demand by the
MDEQ for stipulated penalties is made.

The stipulated penalties set forth in this section do not preclude the MDEQ
from pursuing any other remedies or sanctions that may be available to
the MDEQ by reason of the failure of MST to comply with any of the
requirements of this Consent Order. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
MDEQ and MST agree that any monetary penalties, including stipulated
penalties that the MDEQ seeks for any single and discrete violation of this
Consent Order, shall not exceed the statutory maximum penalty for such
violation as provided in applicable Michigan law. Nothing herein shall
prevent the MDEQ from seeking separate penalties for separate
violations. MST reserves the right to contest and defend against the

MDEQ’s pursuit of any such remedies.

-37 -



13.1

13.2

13.3

Xlll. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Unless otherwise provided in this Consent Order, the dispute resolution
procedures of this section shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve
disputes arising under or with respect to this Consent Order and shall
apply to all provlisions of this Consent Order. However, the procedures set
forth in this section shall not apply to actions by the State of Michigan to
enforce obligations of MST that have not been disputed in accordance
with this section. Engagement of a dispute resoiution between the parties
shall not be cause for MST to delay the performance of any compliance

requirements or response activity.

Any dispute that arises under this Consent Order shall in the first instance
be the subject of informal negotiations between the parties. The period of
negotiations shall not exceed twenty (20) days from the date of written
notice by any party that a dispute has arisen, unless the time period for
negotiations is modified by written agreement between the parties. The
dispute shall be considered to have arisen when one party sends the other
party a written notice of dispute. If agreement cannot be reached on any
issue within this twenty- (20-) day period, the MDEQ shall provide a
written statement of its decision to MST and, in the absence of initiation of
formal dispute resolution by MST under Paragraph 13.3, the MDEQ
position, as outlined in its written statement of decision, shall be binding
on the parties. |

if MST and the MDEQ cannot informally resoive a dispute under
Paragraph 13.2, MST may initiate formal dispute resolution by requesting
review of the disputed issues by the Chief of the WHMD. This written
request must be filed with the Chief of the WHMD within fifteen (15) days
of MST's receipt of the MDEQ’s statement of decision that is issued at the

conclusion of the informal dispute resolution procedure set forth in

-38-



13.4

13.5

Paragraph 13.2. MST’s request shall state the issues in dispute; the
relevant facts upon which the dispute is based; any factual data, analysis,
or opinion supporting its position; and all supporting documentation upon
which MST bases its position. Within fourteen (14) days of the Chief of
the WHMD's receipt of MST’s request for a review of disputed issues, the
Chief of the WHMD will provide a written statement of decision to MST
that will include a statement of his/her understanding of the issues in
dispute; the relevant facts upon which the dispute is based; any factual
data, analysis, or opinion supporting her/his position; and all supporting
documentation relied upon by the Chief of the WHMD'’s review of the
disputed issues. The Chief of the WHMD's review of the disputed issues
may be extended by written agreement of the parties.

The written statement of the Chief of the WHMD issued under

Paragraph 13.3 shall be binding on the parties unless, within fifteen (15)
days after receipt of the MDEQ's written statement of decision, MST files a
petition for judicial review in a court of competent jurisdiction that shalt set
forth a description of the matter in dispute, the efforts made by the parties
to resolve it, the relief requested, and the schedule, if any, within which the
dispute must be resolved to ensure orderly implementation of this Consent
Order. Nothing in this Consent Order affects the limitations on the timing
of judicial review of the MDEQ decision regarding the selection, extent, or

adequacy of any response activity as provided for in Part 201.

An administrative record of the dispute shall be maintained by the MDEQ.
The administrative record shall inciude all of the information provided by
MST pursuant to Paragraph 13.3, as well as any other documents relied
upon by the MDEQ in making its final decision pursuant to

Paragraph 13.3. Where appropriate, the MDEQ shall allow submission of

supplemental statements of position by the parties to the dispute.

-39 .-



13.6 In proceeding on any dispute, MST shall have the burden of
demonstrating on the administrative record that the position of the MDEQ
is arbitrary and capricious or otherwise not in accordance with law. In
proceedings on any dispute initiated by MST, MST shall bear the burden
of persuasion on factual issues.

13.7 Notwithstanding the invocation of dispute resolution proceedings,
stipulated penalties shall accrue from the first day of any failure or refusal
to comply with any term or condition of this Consent Order, but payment
shall be stayed pending resolution of the dispute. Stipulated penalties and
oversight costs shall be paid within thirty (30) days after the resolution of
the dispute. MST shall pay that portion of a demand for payment of
stipulated penalties or oversight costs that is not subject to dispute
resolution procedures in accordance with and in the manner provided in

Section XHl, Fines, Costs, and Stipulated Penalties.

XIV. FORCE MAJEURE

14.1  MST shall perform the requirements of this Consent Order within the time
limits established herein, unless performance is prevented or delayed by
events that constitute a “Force Majeure.” Any delay in the performance
attributable to a “Force Majeure” shall not be deemed a violation of
obligations of MST under this Consent Order in accordance with this
section.

14.2  For the purpose of this Consent Order, “Force Majeure” means an
occurrence or nonoccurrence arising from causes beyond the control of
and without the fault of MST, such as an Act of God, untimely review of
permit applications or submissions by the MDEQ or other applicable
authority, and acts or omissions of third parties that could not have been
avoided or overcome by the diligence of MST and that delay the

performance of an obligation under this Consent Order. “Force Majeure”

-40 -



14.3

14.4

14.5

14.6

does not include, among other things, unanticipated or increased costs,
changed financial circumstances, or failure to obtain a permit or license as

a result of actions or omissions of MST.

MST shall notify the MDEQ by telephone within seventy-two (72) hours of
discovering any event that causes a delay in its compliance with any
provision of this Consent Order. Verbal notice shail be followed by written
notice within ten (10) calendar days and shall describe, in detail, the
antictpated length of delay, the cause or causes of delay, the measures
taken by MST to prevent or minimize the delay, and the timetable by
which those measures shall be implemented. MST shall use its best

efforts to avoid or minimize any such delay.

Failure of MST to comply with the notice requirements of Paragraph 14.3,
above, shall render this Section XIV void and of no force and effect as to
the particular incident involved. The MDEQ may, at its sole discretion and

in appropriate circumstances, waive the notice requirements of

- Paragraph 14.3.

If the parties agree that the delay or anticipated delay was beyond the
control of MST, this may be so stipulated and the parties to this Consent
Order may agree upon an appropriate modification of this Consent Order.
If the parties to this Consent Order are unable to reach such agreement,
the dispute shall be resolved in accordance with Section Xill, Dispute
Resolution, of this Consent Order. The burden of proving that any delay
was beyond the control of MST, and that all the requirements of this
section have been met by MST, is on MST.

An extension of one compliance date based upon a particuiar incident -

does not necessarily mean that MST qualifies for an extension of a

-41 -



subsequent compliance date without providing proof regarding each

incremental step or other requirement for which an extension is sought.

XV. SUBSEQUENT MODIFICATION

15.1  This Consent Order may be amended only by mutual agreement of the
MDEQ and MST. Such amendments shall be in writing, shall be signed
by both parties, shall have as their effective date the date on which they
are signed by the MDEQ, and shall be incorporated into this Consent
Order.

15.2 Any reports, plans, specifications, schedules, and attachments required by
this Consent Order are, upon written approval by the MDEQ, incorporated
into this Consent Order and made an enforceable part hereof. Any
noncompliance with the compliance dates and performance standards of

- MDEQ-approved reports, plans, specifications, schedules, and
attachments shall be considered a violation of this Consent Order and
shail subject MST to the stipulated penalty provisions included in
Section Xl of this Consent Order.

15.3 Excluding Paragraph 8.5, the Project Coordinators can agree, in writing, to
extend any deadline contained in Section VIII, Work to be Performed. An
extension of more than three (3) months or a change in the priorities set
forth in Paragraph 8.10 must also be approved by the President of MST
and the Chief of the WHMD, in accordance with this section of this

Consent Order.

15.4 No informal advice, guidance, suggestions, or comments by the MDEQ
regarding reports, plans, specifications, schedules, or any other writing
submitted by MST will be construed as relieving MST of its obligation to
obtain written approval, if and when required by this Consent Order.

-42 -



16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

XVI. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

This Consent Order is not intended to be nor shall it be construed to be a
permit. This Consent Order does not relieve MST of any obligation to

obtain and comply with any local, state, or federal permits.

The MDEQ expressly reserves all rights and defenses that it may have,
nciuding the right to request that MST perform tasks in addition to those
stated in the Consent Order.

The MDEQ reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities,
rights, and remedies, both legal and equitable, that may pertain to the
failure of MST to comply with applicable law or this Consent Order
including, without limitation, the assessment of penalties under

Section 11151 of Part 111, MCL 324.11151. This Consent Order shall not
be construed as a covenant not to sue, release, waiver, or limitation of any
rights, remedies, powers, and/or authorities, civil or criminal, that the
MDEQ has under Part 111 or any other statutory, regulatory, or common
law enforcement authority of the State of Michigan with respect to the

failure of MST to comply with applicable law or this Consent Order.

The MDEQ reserves the right to perform any portion of the work
consented to herein or any additional site characterization, feasibility
study, and response/corrective actions as it deems necessary to protect
public health, safety, welfare, and/or the environment. If, after thirty (30)
days written notice, MST fails to perform any work or action requested by
the MDEQ, then the MDEQ may exercise its authority under any
applicable state or federal law to undertake any remedial actions at any
time. Nothing herein shall be construed to limit the MDEQ’s right to take
action in the case of an emergency orin any situation where there is an

imminent and substantial hazard to the health of persons or to the natural

-43 -



16.5

16.7

16.8

16.9

16.10

resources or in any situation endangering or causing damage to public
health or the environment. The MDEQ reserves its right to seek
reimbursement from MST for such additional costs incurred by the State of
Michigan as may be provided under applicable law. Notwithstanding
compliance with the terms of this Consent Order, MST is not released
from liability, if any, for the costs of any response actions taken or
authorized by the MDEQ.

The MDEQ reserves the right to pursue any other remedies to which it is
entitled for any failure on the part of MST to comply with the requirements

of Part 111, the RCRA, and the rules promulgated under these statutes.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Consent Order, an
enforcement action may be brought by the MDEQ pursuant to Part 111 or
other statutory authority where the generation, storage, transportation,
treatment, or disposal of hazardous waste at the Facility may present an
imminent and substantial hazard to the heaith of persons or to the natural
resources or is endangering or causing damage to public health or the

environment..

MST consents to enforcement of this Consent Order in the same manner
and by the same procedures for all final orders entered pursuant to
Part 111, MCL 324.11101 - 324.11152.

This Consent Order in no way affects the responsibility of MST to comply

with any other applicable state, federal, or local laws or regulations.
Nothing in this Consent Order is or shall be considered to affect any

liability MST may have for natural resource damages caused by MST's

ownership and/or operation of the Facility. The State of Michigan does not

-44 -



17.1

18.1

19.1

waive any rights to bring an appropriate action to recover such damages
to the natural resources.

XVil. OTHER CLAIMS AND PARTIES

Nothing in this Consent Order shall constitute or be construed as a
release from any claim, cause of action, or demand in law or equity
against any person, firm, partnership, or corporation who is not a party to
this Consent Order for any liability it may have arising out of, or relating in
any way to, the generation, storage, treatment, handiing, transportation,
release, or disposal of any contaminants found at, taken to, or taken from
the Facility.

XVIII. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

All action required fo be taken by MST pursuant to this Consent Order
shail be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of all applicable

local, state, and federal laws and regulations.

XIX. INDEMNIFICATION OF THE MICHIGAN STATE GOVERNMENT

MST shall indemnify and save and hold harmiess the State of Michigan
and its departments, agencies, officials, agents, employees, contractors,
and representatives for any and all claims or causes of action by third
parties arising from or on account of acts or omissions of MST, its officers,
employees, agents, and any persons acting on its behalf or under its
control in carrying out work pursuant to this Consent Order. The State of
Michigan shall not be held out as a party to any contract entered into by or
on behalf of MST in carrying out actions pursuant to this Consent Order.
Neither MST nor any contractor shall be considered an agent of the State
of Michigan.

-45 -



19.2

19.3

19.4

20.1

MST waives any and all claims or causes of action against the State of
Michigan and its departments, agencies, officials, agents, employees,
contractors, and representatives for damages, reimbursement, or set-off of
any payments made or to be made to the State of Michigan that arise from
or on account of any contract, agreement, or arrangement between MST
and any person for performance of work at the Facility, pursuant to this

Consent Order, including claims on account of construction delays.

MST shall indemnify and hold harmiess the State of Michigan and its
departments, agencies, officials, agents, employees, contractors, and
representatives for any and all claims or causes of action for damages or
reimbursement from the State of Michigan solely arising from or on
account of any contract, agreement, or arrangement between MST and
any third person for performance of work at the Facility, pursuant to this

Consent Order, inciuding claims on account of construction delays.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any rights MST may have against the State
of Michigan and its departments, agencies, officials, agents, employees,
cohtractors, and representatives (“Personne!”) for grossly negligent or
willful acts of the State of Michigan and its Personnel which resuit in
claims for personal injury or property damage are specifically preserved.
The State does not waive any defenses to any such actions.

XX. SEVERABILITY

If any provision or authority of this Consent Order or the application of this
Consent Order to any party or circumstances is held by any judicial or
administrative authority to be invalid, the application of such provisions to
other parties or circumstances and the remainder of the Consent Order

shall remain in force and shail not be affected thereby.

- 46 -



21.1

21.2

XXI. TERMINATION

This Consent Order shall remain in full force and effect until expressly
terminated by a written Notice of Termination issued by the Chief of the
WHMD. MST may request that the Chief of the WHMD issue a written
Notice of Termination at any time after achieving compliance with this
Consent Order at the Facility or any relevant portion of the Facility.” A
request for termination shall not unreasonably be withheld. Such a
request shall consist of a written certification that MST is in compliance
with and has completed all obligations of MST under this Consent Order,
including payment of any stipulated penalties required in this Consent

Order. Specifically, this certification shall include:

a. The completion date of all work required and the date any
stipulated penalties and oversight costs were paid;

b, A statement that all required information has been reported to the
Project Coordinator; and

c. Confirmation that all records required to be maintained pursuant to

this Consent Order are being maintained at the designated location.

The Notice of Termination shall act as a determination that MST is in
compliance with and has completed ali obligations of MST under this
Consent Order with respect to all known conditions at the Facility or any
relevant portion of the Facility known or identified through the investigation

undertaken pursuant to this Consent Order.

-47 -



SIGNATORIES

The undersigned CERTIFY they are fully authorized by the party they represent to
enter into this Consent Order to comply by consent and to EXECUTE and LEGALLY
BIND that party to it.

Michigan Se Tube LLC Michigan Department of Environmental Quality

g Steven E. Chester

Director
Title: V%W < CIQZ
Date: (2;//14/ \5/; 200 (“/

By:

ruc mann Chief
Hazardous Materials Division

Date: 4 - ?-’ﬂf

Approved As To Form:

Michael A. Cox
Attorney General

4%%4@«%«—@%/

Kathleen L. Cavanaugh (P38008)

Assistant Attorney General

Environment, Natural Resources, and
Agriculture Division

Michigan Department of Attorney General

Constitution Hall, 5 Floor, South Tower

525 West Allegan Street

l.ansing, Michigan 48933

Date: /%' 7- 0 LI[

-48 -



ATTACHMENT 1




TABLE 1

WASTE MANAGEMENT UNITS, AREAS OF CONCERN,
AND OTHER AREA

Description

| Waste Management Unit

1) Two Closed Hazardous Waste Surface
Impoundments

Two surface impoundments used for on-site
waste water treatment prior to construction of
WWTP. Spent pickle liquor was placed in

-these impoundments and neutralized with

lime. Units were closed in place as of 9/24/98.
A portion of these units is covered with a Type
Il landfill cap; the remainder is covered with
clean fill. :

2) Two Sludge Drying Beds

Two sludge drying beds formerly used to store
non-hazardous sludge from the surface
impoundments. Operated from 1972 to 1987.
MST may submit a petition to designate high-
volume, low hazard industrial waste for closure
of these beds.

3) Three Former Acid Pits

Surface impoundments used for on-site waste
water treatment prior to construction of the
WWTP. Spent pickle liguor was placed in
these pits and neutralized with lime. These
units were closed prior to the institution of the
RCRA program. Historical sampling inthe
area of these acid pits has not revealed the
presence of any relevant chemical compounds
above applicable Part 201 criteria. The acid
pits are being investigated as part of the
MDEQ approved August 26, 2003 IRA/IM
workplan.

4) Former Scrap Yard

This area was used as a b'oneyard foir
discarded equipment prior to 1979, then
covered with sand, gravel, brick and mill scale,

| 8) Uncovered Berm Area

This area is a debris pile associated with the
former surface impoundments. It was closed
with the surface impoundments effective
9/24/98. This unit is covered with a Type I

{ landfill cap.

6) Closed Former Hazardous Waste
Container Storage Unit

Former hazardous waste container storage
area. As this unit was clean closed in 1989,
no further investigation is required with respect
{o the storage activities conducted there.,

7) Ciosed Container Storage Area

Area formerly used for storage of waste zinc
phosphate containers.

8) Neutralization Plant

Part of on-site WWTP where neutralization of

| process waste water occurs. All operations




indoors and in tanks/piping. The MDEQ is not
aware of any releases from this unit.

9) Filter Press : Part of on-site WWTP where water is removed
from sludge generated in treatment of process
waste water. All operations indoors. The
MDEQ is not aware of any releases from this

unit.
10) Former Vapor Degreaser Former 400 galion degreaser operated
between 1957 and 1880.
AREAS OF CONCERN:
Area of Concern | Description
A) Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area Area on the south side of the facility displ-aying

vinyi chloride concentrations in groundwater in |
excess of applicable Part 201 criteria. This
area is being investigated by MST. Unless the
source of the contaminant is determined to be
from a WMU under paragraph 8.3.3 of the

‘| Consent Order, MST must only exercise due
care with respect to this area.

B) Site Mill Scale Waste Mill Scale material placed at or near the
surface at various locations for use as road
base and/or other uses

C) Site Metals Groundwater Contamination Groundwater contamination, at multiple
locations, by metals, predominantly iron and
arsenic

D) Removed Gas and Oil Underground Two 1,000 gallon and one 10,000 gallon tanks

Storage Tanks used to store gas and diesel fuel removed in

1988. and one These tanks were closed in
1988 under then existing regulations. One
20,000 gallon heating oil tank closed in place
in 1976 under then existing regulations. MST
must only exercise due care with respect to
this area.

E) Former Chromium Plating Line Former batch chromium plating. line operated
between 1941 and 1980.

OTHER

| Other Area ' Description

A) Fuel Oil Release Area Area impacted by fuel oil release discovered in
1974. MST must only exercise due care with

respect to this area.




ATTACHMENT 2




xboro Rd.

D

A0G-C--8lta Melals Groundwatsr Contemination

wm._hmmo m:;:ua. Hunn

-

wbabyseeniadas

.. ¥ 8lydge Drying mrn.
WMUZ F,

L a

£ ok T ot ekt

Yo Yorkes rain  FORMER G.TWRR, RIOW

o

: .....,_ﬂ._ Waiig f- -

5 Fomne YVapat Degrems

e

pr o ) e T R Ry T U g YT b

Yarkes Drain R

. Lake ¥o¥ M
i§i J ICHIGAN
Table of Identified Features >IREET (49 M oo we
For Orlentation Purposes Only :.m, Roap, South Lyon, Michigan
1. Administration Offices 14. Cooling Tower "m R ) LAT 42% 27 282" .
2. EDP {Computer) Buiiding 15 Gas and Diese! Storage Tanks [Diked} P2 LONG - 83° 39" 18.8°
3 East Maintenance - Storeroom 76 Sulfuric Acid Tanks {Diked) ‘g _ Facility Sits Map
4. Hot MIll Complex 17. Cooling Ponds . m _ Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC
5 Electrical Shop 18. Wasta Oll Tank (Diked} o " 400 McMunn
g Laboratory 19. Hazardous Waste Storage Building m | | w”ﬁ”_._w_wm_wcﬂ_ﬂ_ngag 48178
W 7. Cafeterla, Women's Restroom  20. Chemical & Drum Storage (R _m s W.m N Revised u:?ﬁwi
W £ a8 Employes Locker Room 21, Loading Dock (Pt} ! i 5 *w_rf
w 2 & Enginsering Offices, Store 22 Acid Recover Building o | freo s g d B :
818 9 g : 3 | [ Liberty Street
=l 2 Room, Machine Shop 23 Wastewater Treatment Building 2 i : A T T s e
m M 10. Guard House 24, Claritiars w ) A L T
e g 1 Fual Oil Storage Tanks 25 GChemical Storage Bullding g
= 12. Neutralization Treaiment Plant 26, PCB Transformer (Diked) w
= 73. Main Enirance 27. EDISON Sub-Station mp
AOG-B--Sile Mill Scals \WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT .
OUTFALL 001

_McMunn Stéet




ATTACHMENT 3




i18914K057 TR

117.00 WISCELLAETUS. RECORTE - . .
$2.00 REMGNNENTATION .c .-
3 SEP % 11 AN,  FELEIFTE 1944 -

Bl

Pals SECORTED. - OAKLAND: CEUNTY -
DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENAMND. 15, (ER/RIGISTER & .

Vision Metals, Inc., a Delaware Corporation, is located at 24 Frank Lloyd Wright Drive,

Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106. Vision Metals, Inc. is the recard owner of land located in _.. L
South Lyen, Qakliznd Coumty, Michigan, specifically desefibed in Extibit A amached (“the TR

Whereas, Vision Metals, Inc. has submitted an Interim Measures Corrective Alction

.

-

Implementaton Work Plan (“IMCAP") under provisions of Part 111, Hazardous Waste
Management, of 1994 P.A. 451, MCLA 324.11115a ¢t scq, as amended (Part 111), received
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality approval of the IMCAP-en Angust 29,1956,
and complies with the fand use-based cleanup criteria provisions of Section 20120a(1)(7) of Part
201, Environmental Remediation, of 1994 P.A. 431, MCLA 324.20120a ¢t scq, as amended (Part
201), for remediation of cnviropmental comamination associated with the Property locared in
South Lyon, Oakland County. The land and the waste management unit located thereon are
herein referred 10 as the “Property™. The following restrictive covenants are executed by

Vision Metals, Inc. as the sol¢ owner of the Property pursuant to Section 111152 of Part 111 to
ensure the care, maintenance, monitoring, and long term integrity of the Property for the -
protection of the health, safety, and welfare of the people of the State of Michigan and the
resources and the covironment of the State of Michigan. R

L

Use of the Property (including use of the land and/or the Waste Management Unit), shall
not disturb the final cover, liners, components of any containment system, or the function
of the monitoring systems on or in the Property.

AN

’ No‘om:, including Vision Metals, Inc., any purchaser of the record owner of the Pfopert].'. .- fata

any purchaser of the Property, or any of their agents, employees, heirs, successors, s VP
lessees, or assignees, shall engage in any development, including any filling. grading, COQX i
excavating, building, drilling, or mining on the Praperty following the completion of the
remediations without obtaining prior writien authorization from the Director of the

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality.

-
—

Vision Mctals, lné,, hereby grants to the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
and its designated representatives the right 1o enter the Property at reasonable times for
the purposes of monitoring compliance with the IMCAP, including the right to tzke
samples, inspect the operation and determine the effectiveness of the come<tive action
measures, and inspect records. oK.- ML



w1 8914P0058

4. Vision Metals, Inc. shall require the mstallauon of permanent markexs that hzr.vc been
approved by the Michigan Department of Eavironmental Quality on each side of the
Property which describe the restricted arca and the nature of the prohibitions specified in
the provisions of paragraph number two above.

5.  Ownership of all or a portion of the Property shall sotbe oonveycd mthom theownerof -
i .. the Property sending written notices to the prospective purchasers(s) of the existence of
these restrictive covenants. Such notice shall state:

(1)  thatthere arc rostrictive covenants on the Property;

(2)  that development on the Property is prohibited without prior written - .
authorization from the Director of the Michigan Departruent of Envuomcntal
Quality;

3) tha! the prospective purchaser(s) must compl;' with the restrictive covenants,
Part 111, and the rules promulgated under Part 111; and

(4)  that the prospective purchaser(s) cannot interfere with the containment or
monitoring systems on or in the Ptopcmr. '

_ Such notice shall include a copy of these restrictive covenants and shall be sent 1o thepmspa:twe
purchasers(s) by certified mail with 2 copy sent to the Director of the Michigan Department of -
Environmental Quality.

NOW THEREFORE Vision Mctals, Inc., 24 Frank Lloyd anht Didve, Ann Arbor, M:eh:gan

" ~48106, pursuant to Section 20120b(4) of Part 201 of 1994 P_A. 451, hereby imposes resrictions”  ; ;1

on the Property and covenants and agrees that:

1. The Owner shall restrict the uses of the Property o those uses compatible with
the limited industrial criteria as defined in Section 20120a(1) of Part 201 of
1994 P.A_ 451, as amended in June 1995, and the IMCAP, or other usc that is
consistent with the assumptions and basis for the cleanup criteria established
pursuant to Section 20120a(1Xi) of Part 201 of 1994 P_A.. 451,

2. The Owmer shall restrict activities at the Property that may interfere with a

2



U 109141 Ua

corrective action, operation and maintenance, monitoring, or other measures
necessary 10 assure the effectiveness and intcgrity of the corrective action.

3. The Owner shall restrict activities. at the Property that may result in exposures
zbave the lovels established in Section 20120a{1)(i) of Part 201 of 1994 P.A. 451.
These activities include those specified in the provisions of paragraph puabertwo . -

on the first page of this Restrictive Covenant. -

A, The Owner shall provide notice to the Michigan Department of Environmernial
Quality of the Ovwner's intent to convey eny interest in the Property 14 days prior
10 consummating the conveyance. A conveyauce of ttle, an easement, or othex
intcrest in the Property shall not be consummated by the Property owner without
adequate and complete provision for compiiance with the terms and conditions-of
this Restrictive Covenant.

5. The Owner shall inctall permanent markers that have been approved by the
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality on each side of the Property
which describe the restricted area and the nature of the prohibitians specified in.
the provisions of number two sbhove and include the liber and page number of this
Restrictive Covenant as recorded in the Ozkland County Register of Deeds.

The state iy eaforee the restrictions set forth in this Restrictive Covenant by legal action in 8
court of appropriate jurisdiction.

“The restrictions shall run with the Property and shall be binding upon sl future owners,
 successors, lessees, or assigns and their authorized sgents, employees, or persons acting vmder
heir direction and cootrol, and shall continne until the Michigan Departmerit of Envirommental - * gz [

S A W

Quality o its successor approves modifications or rescission of this Restrictive Covenant. A
copy of this Restrictive Covenant shall be provided to all future owners, heirs, successors,
' lessees, 2ssigns, and transferees by the person transferring the interest.

" Ifany provision of this Resuictive Coveaant is held ta be invalid bry any court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity of such provision shall not affcet the validity of any other provisions
hereof. All such other provisions shall continuc unimpaired in fuli force and effect.



written pcmnssmn of the Ownex, end represents and certifies.that-he or she is duly a,lnhonzed

wi18914°6060

-

If any provision of this Restrictive Covenant is elso the subject of any law or regulatxon
established by any federal, suate, or local government, the stricter of the two standards shall
prevail.

The undersigned person executing this Restrictive Covenant is the Owner, or has the express
énd has been empowered to execute and deliver this Restrictive Covenant. ~ = A -.

[N WITINESS WHEREOF, the said Owner of the shove described Property has caused this
Restrictive Covenant to be executed on this twelfth of August, 1998.

—y o
T E Lot
Tim L. Hostetler . -
Vice Presidant and Chief Financial Officer
Vision Metals, Inc.
24 Frank Lloyd Wright Drive
Ann Arhor, Michigan 48106

~ Signed in the presence of:

C. Hil _ Jof:lnL Pos

STATE OF MICHIGAN
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW

The forepoing instrument was acknowledged before me this twelfth day of August 1998, by Tim
L. Hostetler, Vice President and Chicf Financial Officer of Vision Metals, Inc,, a Delaware
corporation, on behalf of the corporation. ‘



w1 8914tUbl

OeABRoMNG
Nisiot '{‘{\o}cu\%\"s_f\c. I "NODT G

Lot E. Dersbem
Notary Public
Livingston County, Michigan

‘My Commission :
" Askngin W ¥oaw
Prepared by: Tim L. Hostetler
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
" Vision Metals, Inc. ‘
! 24 Frank Iloyd Wright Drive, P.O. Box 375
-E ; Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106



1891470062

EXHIBIT A .. L
A pant of the Nottheast % and the Northwest % of Section 30, Towat 1 North, Range 7 East, Lyon -
Township, Oakland Couxty, Michigen; being more particularly described as commeticing at the
North % Corner of said Section 30; thence South ¢1°28'00"™East, 970.90 feet, along the North

and South % line of said Section 30, 1o a corner of the subject property; thence continuing South
01°28'00" East, 32.11 feet, along the North and South ¥ line of said Section 30, to the poimt of
beginning; thence North 64°25'05" East, 129.55 fect; thence South 64°29°28" East, 94.64 feet;
thence South 36°34'49" East, 100.12 foct; thence South 19°34'597 West, 49.33 feer; thence

South 77°07' 14~ West, 82.93 feet; thence South §9°37'09" West, 99.03 feet; thence North

65°22'30 West, 75.04 feet; thence North 22 5¢°49" West, 10022 feet; thence North 80°1022"

East 4222 feet, to the point of beginning. All of the sbove containing 0.890 Acres.

Yy,
L at-so-aos-oo('“"/‘
P w Y
p- 21- 80~ 18-004 AW




ATTACHMENT 4




020.8564.1

EGE”ﬂE ugs‘;ao;msm
¥9.00 HISC RECORDING

JAN 0 7 19u7 ;f}oogm ox:a;fgg.n. RECEIPT:
G.W, Catdll Rerisicr s Doots GATLLIA G Qe o¢

NOTICE REGARDING ST ATU'iORY OBLIGATIONS APPLYCABLE TO PROPERTY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That Vision Metals, Inc., a Defaware corporarion whose

Dated this {f day of June, 2001
Signed in the presence of: Signed by:
YA _‘<Lq OO VISION METALS, INC. .

K]S : :
K Q;LAV%%\ By:_Aeva, CNY

e
Name (RQL&(T gmm““j . J Hin

fts: dent

STATE OF MICHIGAN )

County, Michigan

My Commission e ires: T 2

Drafied By and When Recorded Return To: - . L0m E. OERsrEy
o HOTARY PUBLIC LIVINGSTON CO., 44
Daljit S. Doogal, Esq. : MY COMMISEION EXPIRES Jun 31, 2004

Foley & Lardaer
150 W_ Jefferson Avenue, Suite 1000
Detroit, Michigan 48226

Tax Parce] #
Recording Fee: §

C 0 104G ON 1 r2upiey g 4aj0y Wbl a0 1 NP



920175241
C

-

EXHIBIT A
Sinvated in the City of South Lyon, Oaldand County, Michigan, described as:

PARCEL I

Part of the Northeast Y of Section 30 and part of the Southeast ¥i of Section 19, Town 1 Nort
Range 7 East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County, . Michigan, and more particularly described ;
follows: Beginning at the North Y comer of Section 30; thence North 01 degree 13 minutes 00 seconc
East 62.41 fect, thence South 81 degrees 47 minutes 25 seconds East, 276.04 fect; thence South €
degrees 34 minutes 45 seconds East, 332.54 feet: thence North 39 degrees 25 minutes 30 seconds FEas
43.50 feet; thence South 01 degree 10 minutes 45 seconds East, 424.4] feet; thence Easterly 352.42 fee
thence North 198 feet; thence East along South line of “Kmgsley Calkins Addition™, 642.73 feet; thenc
South slong West line of West Street 91025 feet; thence Westerly along Northerly line of Grand Trun
Railroad right of way 1251.25 feet to North and South % line; thence Nocth 01 degree 28 minutes ¢
scconds West, 155052 feet to the point of beginning. Parce] Identification No.- 2 1-30-205-001

PARCEL I:
Part of the Northwest fractional % of Section 30, Town 1 North, Range 7 East, City of Sout

Lyon, Ozkland County, Michigan, and more particularly desaribed as follows: Beginning at a_pain
distant South 01 degree 28 minutes 00 secands East, 976.90 fect From the North % corner; thence Souts

degrees 32 minutes 00 seconds West, 636.20 feet: thence N 6 degret:)ﬁ minutes 30 seconds East
1470.00 feet to the point of begioning. Parcel Identification No.:(21-30-128

PARCEL HI: *34@{2,,-30-'2(’“@7('

PARCEL IV
Lots 1 t0 10, inclusive, Block 9, also al of vacated Lewis Street adfacent ta same, also that part of

“Outlot 37, lying North of Michigan Air Line Railroad right of way, according o the plat thereof as

recorded in liber 3, page 48, of Plats, Ozldand County Records. Parcel Identification No.: 21-30-233.003

More comrmonly known a5 400 McMunn Strect.

§ 0 10LS ON I] vsuprey g kipay WIPEC 300 NV



ATTACHMENT 5




HAZARDOUS WASTE MANAGEMENT TRUST AGREEMENT

TRUST AGREEMENT

This Trust Agreement (the "Agreement") entered into as of 4-3-2003 by and
between Michigan Seamless Tube LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company (the
"Grantor”), Comerica Bank, a Michigan banking corporation having its principal place of
business at 411 W. Lafayette, Detroit, Michigan 48226 (the "Trustee") and the Director,
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (the "Director”) as beneficiary.

RECITALS

Whereas, the Grantor owns property located at 400 McMunn Street in the City of
South Lyon, Oakland County, Michigan (the “Property”) that is governed by the '
provisions of Part 111, Hazardous Waste Management, of the Natural Resources and
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended, and the administrative rules
promulgated thereunder (the "Act”);

Whereas, the Director, the licensing authority, has promulgated administrative
rules applicable to the Grantor, requiring that the owner or operator of a hazardous
waste management facility must provide financial assurance that funds will be available
when needed for the cost of proper corrective action of the facility;

Whereas, the Grantor has elected to establish this Trust Fund to provide all or
part of such financial assurance for the facility identified herein;

Whereas, the Grantor, acting through its duly authorized officers, has selected
the Trustee to be the trustee under this Agreement;

Whereas, the trust operations of the Trustee are regulated and examined by a
state or federal agency and the Trustee has authority to act as trustee: and

Whereas, the Trustee is willing to act as trustee;

Now, therefore, the Grantor, Trustee, and Director agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this Agreement:

(@) The term "Director” means the duly appointed and acting Director of the
Department of Environmental Quality or any successor department or agency or his
authorized representative.

(b) The term "Fiduciary” means any person who exercises any power of control,

management, or disposition, or renders investment advice for a fee or other
compensation, direct or indirect, with respect to any moneys or other property of this



Trust Fund, or has any authority or responsibility to do so, or who has any authority or
responsibility in the administration of this Trust Fund.

(c) The term "Grantor” means the owner or operator who enters into this
Agreement and any successors or assigns of the Grantor.

(d) The term "Trustee" means the Trustee who enters into this Agreement and
any successor Trustee.

Section 2. ldentification of Facilities.

This Agreement pertains to the following facility owned and operated by the
Grantor. The current corrective action cost estimate, or portions thereof, for the facility
covered by this Trust Fund is shown separately:

Michigan Seamless Tube $75,000.00
400 McMunn Street

South Lyon, Michigan 48178

MID082767591

This cost estimate will be revised from time to time by the Grantor as required by
the Act.

Section 3. Establishment of Fund.

- The Grantor and the Trustee hereby establish a trust fund (the "Trust Fund") for
the exclusive use and benefit of the Director as beneficiary, and intend that no other
party shall have access to said Trust Fund without the express written approval and
direction of the Director. ‘

The Trust Fund is established initially as consisting of the cash, which is
acceptable to the Trustee, described in attached Exhibit A. Such property and all other
property subsequently conveyed by the Grantor to the Trustee is collectively referred to
as the Trust Fund, together with all earnings and profits thereon, less any payments or
distributions made by the Trustee pursuant to this Agreement. The Trust Fund shall be
held by the Trustee, in trust, as hereinafter provided.

Section 4. Payments from the Trust Fund

The Trustee shall make payments from the Trust Fund to the Director, the
Grantor, or other persons, as instructed in writing by the Director. The Grantor and
Director shall comply with the provisions of R 299.9704 of the Michigan Administrative
Code for payments from the Trust Fund. The Trustee shall not make any payments
from the Trust Fund without the prior written approval from the Director.



The Trust Fund so established shall be used solely to provide for the payment of
the costs of corrective action at the facility covered by this Agreement; to reimburse the
Grantor for legitimate expenses in carrying out corrective action activities as approved
by the Director; or to disburse to the Grantor excess funds as determined by the
Director not required to be part of this Trust Fund.

If the Director issues a notice of violation or other order to the Grantor alleging
violation of the corrective action requirements, the Director may, after providing the
Grantor 7 days' notice and opportunity for hearing, access the funds in the Trust Fund to
correct the violations, complete corrective action, and maintain the facility in accordance
with the approved plans.

Section 5. Contributions to the Trust Fund.

Contributions to the Trust Fund by the Grantor shall consist of cash, certified
check, and/or direct obligations of the United States of America or the State of
Michigan, or obligations the principal and interest of which are unconditionally
guaranteed by the United States of America or the State of Michigan, or certificates of
deposit of any financial institution to the extent insured by an agency of the United
States of America which certificates of deposit shall mature not later than one year from
the date of deposit.

The Trustee undertakes no responsibility for the amount or adequacy of, nor any
duty to collect from the Grantor, any contributions required to be made by Grantor to the
Trust Fund or for contributions required of the Grantor to discharge any liabilities of the
Grantor as required by the Act or any condition of a license issued pursuant to the Act.

The Trustee shall notify the Director in writing of contributions made to the Trust
Fund by the Grantor.

Section 6. Trustee Management.

The Trustee shall invest and reinvest the principle and income of the Trust Fund,
in accordance with general investment policies and guidelines which the Grantor shall
communicate in writing to the Trustee from time to time, subject, however, to the
provisions of this Agreement. In investing, reinvesting, exchanging, selling, and
managing the Trust Fund, the Trustee or any other Fiduciary shall discharge his duties
with respect to the Trust Fund solely in the best interests of the Director and with the
care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the circumstances then prevailing which
persons of prudence, acting in a like capacity and familiar with such matters, would use
in the conduct of an enterprise of a like character and with like aims, provided that:

(a) Securities or other obligations of the Grantor or any other owner or operator
of the facility, or any of their affiliates as defined in the Investment Company Act of
1940, as amended, 15 U.5.C. 80a-2(a), shall not be acquired or held on behalf of the



Trust Fund, uniess they are securities or other obligations of the United States of
America or the State of Michigan,;

(b) The Trustee is authorized to invest the Trust Fund in time or demand
deposits of the Trustee, to the extent insured by an agency of the United States of
America or the State of Michigan; and

(c) The Trustee is authorized to hold cash while awaiting investment or
distribution uninvested for a reasonable time and without liability for the payment of
interest thereon.

Section 7. Commingling and Investment.

The Trustee is expressly authorized in its discretion and in accordance with the
investment policies and guidelines transmitted to the Trustee by the Grantor pursuant to
Section 6 hereof:

(a) To transfer from time to time any or all of the assets of the Trust Fund to any
common, commingled, or collective trust created by the Trustee in which the Trust Fund
- is eligible to participate, subject to all of the provisions thereof, to be commingled with
the assets of other trusts participating therein so long as such management does not
conflict with the requirements of this Trust Fund; and

(b) To purchase, on behalf of the Trust Fund, shares in any investment company
registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15 U.S.C. 80a-1 et seq.,
including one which may be created, managed, underwritten, or to which investment
advice is rendered or the shares of which are sold by the Trustee or its affiliate. The
Trustee may vote such shares in its discretion.

Section 8. Express Powers of Trustee.

Without in any way limiting the powers and discretion conferred upon the Trustee
by the other provisions of this Agreement or by law, the Trustee is expressly authonzed
and empowered:

(a) To sell, exchange, convey, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any property
held on behalf of the Trust Fund, by public or private sale. No person dealing with the
Trustee shall be bound to see to the application of the purchase money orto i |nqmre into
the validity or expediency of any such sale or other disposition;

(b) To make, execute, acknowledge, and deliver any and all documents of
transfer and conveyance and any and all other instruments that may be necessary or
appropriate to carry out the powers herein granted;

(c) To register any securities held on behalf of the Trust Fund in its own name or
in'the name of a nominee and to hold any security in bearer form or in book entry, or to



cormbine certificates representing such securities with certificates of the same issue held
by the Trustee in other fiduciary capacities, or to deposit or arrange for the deposit of
such securities in a qualified central depository even though, when so deposited, such
securities may be merged and held in bulk in the name of the nominee of such
depository with other securities deposited therein by another person, or to deposit or
arrange for the deposit of any securities issued by the United States of America, or any
agency of instrumentality thereof, with a Federal Reserve Bank, but the books and
records of the Trustee shall at all times show that all such securities are held on behalf
of the Trust Fund; :

(d) To deposit any cash in the Trust Fund in interest- bearing accounts
maintained or savings certificates issued by the Trustee, in its separate corporate
capacity, or in any other banking institution affiliated with the Trustee, to the extent
insured by an agency of the United States of America or the State of Michigan; and

(e) To compromise or otherwise adjust all claims in favor of or against the Trust
Fund.

Section 9. Taxes and Expenses.

All taxes of any kind that may be assessed or levied against or in respect of the
Trust Fund and all brokerage commissions incurred by the Trust Fund shall be paid
from the Trust Fund. All other expenses incurred by the Trustee in connection with the
administration of the Trust Fund, including fees for legal services rendered to the
Trustee, the compensation of the Trustee (to the extent not paid directly by Grantor),
and all other proper charges and disbursements to the Trustee shall be paid from the
Trust Fund.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, it is the express obligation of the Grantor and the
Grantor agrees to pay directly to the Trustee for the benefit of the Trust Fund, on
demand, any and all expenses, costs, and fees (other than taxes and disbursements
pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement) occasioned by virtue of the Trust Fund so as to
maintain the level, amount, and value of the Trust Fund exclusively available for the
purposes for which the Trust Fund has been created; provided further, that should the
Trustee utilize any portion of the Trust Fund for costs, expenses and fees (other than
taxes and disbursements pursuant to Section 4 of this Agreement), the Grantor shall
forthwith add to the Trust Fund an amount equal to the portion of the Trust Fund so
utilized.

Section 10. Annual Valuations.

The Trustee shall annually, at least 30 days prior to the anniversary date of the
establishment of the Trust Fund, furnish to the Grantor and to the Director a written
statement of the current value of the Trust Fund. Any securities in the Trust Fund shall
be valued at market value as of no more than 60 days prior to the anniversary date of
establishment of the Trust Fund.



Section 11. Advice of Counsel.

The Trustee may from time fo time consult with counsel, who may be counsel to
the Grantor, with respect to any question arising as to the construction of this
Agreement or any action to be taken hereunder. The Trustee shall be fully protected, to
the extent permitted by law, in acting upon the advice of counsel.

Section 12. Trustee Compensation.

The Trustee shall be entitled to reasonable compensation for its services as
agreed upon in writing from time to time with the Grantor.

Section 13. Successor Trustee.

The Trustee may resign by written notice to all parties, or Grantor may replace
the Trustee by written notice to all parties. Such resignation or replacement shall not be
effective until Grantor has appointed a successor trustee and the successor trustee
accepts the appointment. If for any reason the Grantor cannot or does not act in the
event of the resignation of the Trustee, the Trustee may apply to a court of competent
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor trustee or for instructions. The successor
trustee shall have the same powers and duties as those conferred upon the Trustee
hereunder. Upon the successor trustee's acceptance of the appointment, the Trustee
shall assign, transfer, and pay over to the successor trustee the funds and properties
then held on behalf of the Trust Fund. The successor trustee shall specify the date on
which it will assume administration of the Trust Fund in writing sent to the Director,
Grantor, and the present Trustee by certified mail 10 days before such change becomes
effective. Any expenses incurred by the Trustee as a result of any of the acts
contemplated by this Section shall be paid as provided in Section 9.

Section 14. Instructions to the Trustee.

All orders, requests, and instructions to the Trustee by the Director shall be in
writing and signed by the Director. All orders, requests, and instructions to the Trustee
by the Grantor shall be in writing and signed by the Grantor. So long as such orders,
requests, and instructions are consistent with the provisions of this agreement, the
Trustee shall act in accordance with such orders, requests, and instructions, and in so
acting will be fully protected to the extent permitted by law. The Trustee shall have the
right to assume, in the absence of written notice to the contrary, that no event
constituting a change or a termination of the authority of any person to act on behaif of
the Grantor or the Director hereunder has occurred. The Trustee shall have no duty to
act in the absence of such orders, requests, and instructions from the Grantor and/or
the Director, except as otherwise provided for herein.



»*

Section 15. Amendment of Agreement.

This Agreement may be amended by an instrument in writing executed by the
Grantor, the Truslee, and the Director, or by the Trustee and the Director if the Grantor
ceases to exist. :

Section 16. Irrevocability and Termination.

Subject to the right of the parties to amend this Agreement as provided in
Section 15, this Trust Fund shall be irrevocable and shall continue until terminated at
the written agreement of the Grantor, the Trustee, and the Director, or by the Trustee
and the Director, if the Grantor ceases to exist. Upon termination of the Trust Fund, all
remaining trust property, less final trust administration expenses, shall be paid to the
Grantor, or if the Grantor ceases to exist, to the Director. '

The parties agree that the purpose of this Trust Fund, which is to fund the
corrective action activities in order to control, minimize, or eliminate, to the extent
necessary to protect human health and the environment, the escape of hazardous
waste or hazardous constituents to the ground or surface waters or to the atmosphere,
is beneficial to the public as a whole. Accordingly, the parties agree that this Trust Fund
is for public welfare purposes and comes within the statutory exception to the rule
against perpetuities set forth in Michigan Compiled Laws §554.381 (Mich. Stat. Annot.
§26.1201).

Section 17. Immunity and Indemnification.

The Trustee shall not incur personal liability of any nature in connection with any
act or omission, made in good faith, in the administration of the Trust Fund, or in
carrying out any directions by the Grantor and/or the Director issued in accordance with
this Agreement. The Trustee shall be indemnified and saved harmless by the Grantor
or from the Trust Fund, or both, from and against any personal liability to which the
Trustee may be subjected by reason of any act or conduct in its capacity as trustee of

" the Trust Fund, including all expenses reasonably incurred in its defense against related

litigation.
Section 18. Choice of Law.

This Agreement shall be administered, construed, and enforced according to the
laws of the State of Michigan.

Section 19. Interpretation.
As used in this Agreement, words in the singular include the plural and words in

the plural include the singular. The descriptive headings for each Section of this
Agreement shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.



In Witness Whereof the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
respective officers duly authorized and their corporate seals to be hereunto affixed and
attested as of the date first above written. The parties below certify that the wording of
this Agreement is identical to the wording specified by the Michigan Department of
Environmental Quality as of the date first above written.

FOR THE GRANTOR

Date: { / 24 /03

Title: President and CEO,
Michigan Seamless Tube LLC.

FOR THE TRUSTEE

Date: Mj _‘36: ZOOB




STATEOF _Michigan )
COUNTY OF pakland )

}SS.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this __ 30 day of
May , 2003, by Russell Maier , the President and CEQ of Michigan
Seamiess Tube LLC, a Delaware Lirmted Liability Company on behalf of Michigan Seamless
Tube LLC, the Grantor named in the foregoing instrument.

County, Michig
My Commission Expires: /2.2 -0 8L

STATE OF )
COUNTY OF )
2 0~
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 2 day of

, 2003, by Felecia Relief, a Trust Officer of Comerica Baunk, a
Michigan b)nking corporation, S?alf of the corporation, the Trustee named in the foregoing

) SS.

instrument.

L. - 'l—rFr'
kpnitel, WONGRETE
County, Michigan My CommiasioR G o 2. 2008

My Commission Expires:

STATE OF ’A% Mf ‘M‘ )

COUNTY OF 7//!/ IQ'ZAm )

) SS.

e

The foregoing instrument was acknoyledged before m 25-3 day of | '
L KL 2003, by(set LEE Brick piaiéhe m:'m/} A1 } of the
M;j igan Department of Environgental Quality, on behalf of the Director named in the foregoing
in ‘

4717 County, Michig
My Commussion Expires.3/5/0

= Y
UEANN MARIE MURPH
N%tary Public,isatatia C:oug:t:',y;l
Acting in Ingham County, ME:
My Comm. Expires March 5



* EXHIBIT A
Trust Assets .

The Trust Fund is established initially as consisting of the following:

$75,000.00 cash

By their signatures below, the parties agree that this Exhibit A is incorporated into and made part

of the Trust Agreement dated __6-3-2003
Date: \%ﬂ / 03
/

Title: President and CEQ,
Michigan Seamless Tube LLC.

FOR THE TRUSTEE

Date: m@u{ ﬁ)} 2002
Lug/ !

ecia Relief

Title: Trust Officer,
Institutional Trust/Client Administration

Date; & —-3-03

By:
Name:
Title:

DT: #237387 v1 (536301 1.DOC) 126587-1



ATTACHMENT 6




» Hazardous Waste Management Trust Fund
Reimbursement Request
Michigan Seamless Tube LLC

Pursuant to the Trust Agreement dated June 6, 2003, Michigan Seamiess Tube LLC, as
Grantor, hereby requests the Department of Environmental Quality, as Beneficiary, to authorize
Comerica Bank, the Trustee, to reimburse Michigan Seamiess Tube LLC for the following
temized costs incurred for the corrective action and remediation of Michigan Seamless Tube
LLC facility located at 400 McMunn Street, South Lyon, Michigan, from Trust Fund Account
Number 02 01 100 0722793:

Unit or Area Activity completed
Start End No.(s) ‘during applicable scheduled Cost, $
Date Date ' funding period
(reference attachments if
necessary)

Total during this period

Relevant inyoices and information to document the above costs are attached.

I hereby certify under the penally of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my
direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly
gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my Inquiry of the person or persons directly
responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and
belief, true, accurate, and complete. | am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false
information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

For Michigan Seamless Tube LLC: Independent Registered Professional
Engineer:

Signature and date - Signhature and date

Name and titie _ Name

Seal:




DRAFT

ORDINANCE ___

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND ARTICLE II OF DIVISION II BEING SECTION 94 OF THE

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SOUTH LYON DEALING WITH WATER
SERVICE WITHIN THE CITY OF SOUTH LYON.

THE CITY OF SOUTH LYON ORDAINS:

Section 1.

The following Sections are hereby adopted, added to Section 94-68 of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of South Lyon and shall read as follows:

Section 94-68. Prohibition on Use of Groundwater.

A, Purpose. The City Council finds that the use of wells for water for human
consumption and the use of wells that may influence the movement of contaminated
groundwater constitute a potential public health risk, This section is intended to protect the
public health, safety and welfare. This section is intended to address, in par, the presence of
contaminated groundwater within impacted areas of the City. This Ordinance requires all water
users withinthe impacted areas, as depicted in Exhibit “A”, to use the rmunicipal city water
service as their sole source of water, requires the City of South Lyon to notify the Michigan
Department of Environmental Quality (“"MDEQ”) at least 30 days prior to amending and/or
repealing this Ordinance, requires the City of South Lyon to file this Ordinance with the Oakland

County Register of Deeds, and provides enforcement mechanisms for violations of this
Ordinance. '

- B, Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following definitions shall apply:

1. “Contaminated groundwater” means groundwater having concentrations
of chemical compounds that exceed the residential drinking water ctiteria
established by the MDEQ by rule or operational memoranda pursuant to

Part 201 of Michigan’s Natural Resources and Environmental Protection
Act, 1994 P.A, 451, as amended.

2. “WRD" means the Water Resources Division of the MDEQ, or its
SUCCESSOr agercy. '

3, “Groundwater” means underground water within the zone of saturation.

4, “MDEQ” means the Michigan Department of Bavironmental Quality, or

ity snccessor agency.
5, “Well” means an opening in the surface of the earth for the purpose of

removing water through non-mechanical or mechanical means for any
purpose. '

#43968436 v2(126587.1)



6.

DRAFT

A reference to any City official shall be deemed a reference to the
individual duly appointed to such position and that individual’s designee.

C. Prohibition. Except as provided in subsection (D), no petson shall install or
utilize, or allow, or pemmit, or provide for the installation or utilization of, a well in the areas of

the City of South Lyon as described on Exhibit “A”.

g e Epny g ey

: ‘ﬁ'xcejﬁzom —‘”A“I';erson ma}r instalt o - -
installation or utilization of, 2 well within the areas descnbed on Exh1b1t “A” if any of the

ii“‘wde for the

following exceptions applies and the requirements of the exceptions are complied with (note that
the person requesting such exception is responsible for developing and providing all of the
information necessary for the City and the MDEQ to consider the request for exception, which
may include but is not limited to a groundwater flow study or chemical analytical data):

L.

#459684345 v (126587.1)

Proof of No Influence. A well determined by MDEQ to not be influenced
or potentially influenced by contaminatéd proundwater and further
determined that the use of that well will remain permanently unaffected by
contaminated groundwater or the future migration of contaminated
groundwater. Proof of such determinations must be delivered to the City,
and Notice of the waiver shall be provided to the person secking the
waiver, the Oakland County Health Department, and the MDEQ. The City
Mayor then tay execute a waiver allowing the use of the well.

Groundwater Monitoring. A well used for groundwater monitoting and/or
remediation as part of response activity approved by the MDEQ or the
United States Environmental Protection Agency, or as part of an
emetgency response action.

Consiruction De-watering. A well used for construction de-watering, if
the following conditions are satisfied: (i} the use of the de-watering well
will not result in unacceptable exposure to contaminated groundwater,
possible cross-contamination between saturated zones, or hydrogeological
effects on contaminated groundwater plumes and (77) the waier generated
by that activity is propetly handled and disposed of in compliance with all
applicable laws, rules, regulations, permit and license requirements, and
orders and directives of any governmental entity or agency of competent
jurisdiction. Any exacerbation caused by the use of the well under this
exception shall be the responsibility of the person operating the
de-watering well, ‘as provided in Part 201 of the Natural Resources and
Environmental protection Act, being MCL 324.20101 to 324.20142.

Processing Activities. A well for nom-contact heating, cooling or
processing activities that is determined by the MDEQ will not cause
unacceptable exposures or the future migration of contaminated
groundwater. Proof of that determination must be delivered to the City
and the City Mayor then may execute a waiver allowing the use of the

R




DRAFT

well for the permitted purposes subject to any terms and conditions that
the MDEQ requires. Notice of the waiver shall be provided to the person

secking the waiver, the Oaldand County Health Department, and the
MDEQ. ‘ |

E.  Sources of Water Supplied for Human Consumption. Except as provided in
subsection D.1., water supply for human consumption in the areas deseribed in Exhibit “A” shall
be delivered only from the City Water System or by the use of bottled water delivered or
purchased in containers vnder conditions approved by the WRD ot other appropriate agency.
For the purposes of this subsection, the term “human consumption” means nse in food or drink
intended for human ingestion, use in food Preparation or food service, nse in the interior of a
dwelling or dwelling unit for honsehold purposes, use in any building for personal washing or

ingestion by irrigation.

E. - Wells Affecting Contaminated Groundwater. No well may be used or installed at
any place in the City if the use, operation or placement of the well will have the effect of causing
the migration of contaminated groundwater located within the areas described in Exhibit “A” to
previously unimpacted groundwater, or adversely impacting any groundwater treatment system,
unless the well is part of an MDEQ or United States Environmental Protection Agency approved

groundwater monitoring or remediation system.

G.  Non-Conforming Wells. Any existing well, the use of which is prohibited by
subsection C, shall be plugged or abandoned in conformance with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations, permit and license requirements, orders and directives of any govermmental entity or
agency of competent jurisdiction, or, in the absence of an applicable law, rule, regulation,
requirement, order, directive, in conformance with the protocol developed consistent with the
American Standards for Testing and Materials standard #D5299-92.

H. Enforcement. The City Mayor or the City Engineer, or the designee of either,
shall be responsible for the enforcement of this section, The MDEQ and Oakland County Health
Department may also enforce this section.

I Penalty, Permit Denigl, Remedies.

1. Misdemeanor. Any violation of this section shall be a misdemeanor
punishable by a fine not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) and
costs of prosscution or by imprisonment in the county jail for not to
exceed ninety (90) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment in the
diseretion of the court. Each act of violation and each day upon which

such violation shall oceur or shall continue shall constitute a separate
offense,

2. Building or Improvement Permit. No permit for building, alteration, or
other required permit for a premises or improvement thereon shall be
issued by the City for any premises found in violation of this section, or
where it is proposed to install or use a well in violation of this section. In

*3=

145963416 v2 (126587.1)



DRAFT

the event of a split or conveyance of property located within the area
described in Exhibit “A”, no occupancy or building permit shall be issued
without the use of the City Water Systen.

Injunctive Relief. The City, the MDEQ and Oskland County Health
Department may further enforce this section by action seeking injunctive
rypell in-violatior-of this-seetion shall-be-deemed-a-nuisatice:

subject to abatement.
I, Miscellaneous.
1. Modification or Repeal. At least thirty (30) days prior to any amendment

or repeal in whole or in part of this section, the City shall notify the
MDEQ of its inteht to so act. Notification shall be sent by registered mail
to the Director of the MDEQ.

Severabzlzzy If any subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this
sechon is held invalid or lidonstitutidngl by any cowrt of ‘goripetent

Jtiridliction, such porhon shafl be deomed a sepatate, distiiict, and

independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portions of this section. The City shall promptly notify the
MDEQ upon the occurrence of any event deseribed in this paragraph,

Noticé i ' )

of Seuth Lyon sh ﬂetify fhe: Oakland C@unty ealth Eepamuent of the
area covered by this ordinance as described in Exhibit “A”, by delivery of
a copy of this ordinance, with attachments and all amendments, to the said

‘.Degmtmm The Clty of Scuth Lyed glso shall file a copy of this

ordinance with the Qakland Cmmty Register of Deeds as an Ordinance
affecting multiple properties no more than thirty (30) days after it becomes
effective.

Section 2.  Repealer,

This Ordinance hereby repeals any ordinances in couflict herewith.

Section 3.  Savings Clause,

That nothing in this Ordinance hereby adopted be construed to affect any just or legal right

or remedy of any character nor shall any just or legal right or remedy of any character be lost,
impaired or affected by this Ordinance.

Section 4,  Severability.

145968436 v2 (1265811}




DRAFT

The various parts, sections and clauses of this Ordinance are declared to be severable. If
any part, sentence, paragraph, section or clause is adjudged unconstitutional or invalid by a court
of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Ordinance shall not be affected,

Section5.  Adoption and Effective Date.

This Ordinance is hereby declared to have been adopted by the Citj/ of South Lyon City
Council at a meeting thereof duly called and held on the dayof_ . and ordered
to be given effect as mandated by Charter and statute.

. Mayor
‘, CityCletk~  ~
Introduction:
Adoption:
Published:
Effective Date:

HASOGRA3G v2 {126587,1)



bty S B, it PRSI ANT L2 et

H45968436 v2 (126587.1}

DRAFT

i
|
E



DRAFT

'GERTIFICATION OF CLERK

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complets copy of an Ordinance adopted
by the City Council on 2017 which was a regular meeting.

I further certify that at said meeting there were present the following Council members;

I further certify that the adoption of said Ordinance was moved by Council member
and supported by the following Council members: _ ‘

I further cestify that the following Council members:

voted for the adoption of said Ordinance and that the following Council members voted against
the adoption of said Ordinance: _ :

- IHurther certify that the following Council member(s)s__ —

abstained from voting.

1 hereby certify that said Ordinance bas been recorded in the Ordinance Book in said City and
that such recording has been authorized by the signature of the Mayor of the City and City Clerk. _

T CityClak

#43968436 v2 (126587 1)



apimgninnn a2 e

EXHIBIT A

That part of the 100 foot wide abandoned Grand Trunk Western Railroad Company right-of-way lying in

the West % of Section 30, Township 1 North, Range 7 East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County,
Michigan.

Bt} 2 (Prox

That part of the 100 foot wide abandoned Grand Trunk Western Railroad Company right-of-way in the

West 300 feet of the East 1/2 of Section 30, Township 1 North, Range 7 £ast, City of South Lyen, Oakland
County, Michigan. :

ALSO DESCRIBED AS:

Part of the North 1/2 of Section 30, Town 1 Narth, Range 7 East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County,

Michigan, being property previously owned by the Grand Trunk Western Railroad Company, being more
particularly described as follows: '

The Westerly 300.00 feet in the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of the following parcel: Commencing at
the Nerthwest corner of said Section 30; thence South 02 degrees 50 minutes 23 secands East, along the
West line of said Section and the centeriine of Dixbaro Road {66 foot wide right of way), 1657.06 feet to
the point of beglnning; thence North 82 degrees 39 minutes 00 seconds East, 280263 feet to the
centerline of McMunn Street {66 foot wide right of way); thence South 03 degrees 39 minutes 33
seconds East, along said centerline, 100.21 feet; thence South 82 degrees 39 minutes 00 seconds West,
2804.07 feet to the West line of said Section and the centerline of Dixboro Road; thence North 02

degrees 50 minutes 23 seconds West, along said centerline and Sectlon line, 100.31 feet to the point of
beginning.

 Tax A0 Nuniber21:30.205:003):

That part of the 100 foot wide abandoned Grand Trunk Western Railroad Company right-of-way in the
East 348.25 feet of the West 1/2 of the West 1/2 of Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 1 North, Range 7
East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County, Michigan.

ALSQ DESCRIBED AS:

Part of the North 1/2 of Section 30, Town 1 North, Range 7 East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County,
Michigan, being property previously owned by the Grand Trunk Wastern Railroad Company, being mora
particularly described as follows: The Easterly 348,25 feet in the West 1/2 of West 1/2 of the Northeast
1/4 of the following parcel: Commencing at the Northwest corner of said Section 30; thence South 02
degrees 50 minutes 23 seconds East, along the West line of sald Section and the centerline of Dixboro
Road {66 foot wide right of way), 1657.06 feet to the point of beginning; thence North 82 degrees 39
minutes 00 seconds East, 2802.63 feet to the centerline of McMunn Street {66 foot wide right of way);




thence South 03 degrees 39 minutes 33 seconds East, along said centerline, 100,21 feet; thance South
82 degrees 39 minutes 00 seconds West, 2804.07 feet to the West line of sald Section and the centerline
of Dixboro Road; thence North 02 degrees 50 minutes 23 seconds West, along said centerline and
Sectian line, 100.31 feet to the point of beginning.

9¢1ty Tax 10 Nuinbier31:30-305 a);

That part of the 100 foot wide abandoned Grand Trunk Western Railroad Company right-of-way lying in

the East % of the West % of the NE % of Section 30, Township 1 North, Range 7 East, City of South Lyon,
Oakland County, Michigan.

iy TeselD Nuiiber 21:20-176-000);

TIN, R7E, SEC 30 PART OF NW FRC 1/4 BEG ATW 1/4 COR, TH N 02-45-17 W 887.35 FT, TH N 82-43-18 E
148479 FT, TH § 03-35-00 1008.94 FT, TH § 87-24-47 W 1494,77 FT TO BEG. 32.38 A,

Froperty s (Probistty Tax 1B Nuriber 21:80-251:011);

PARCEL 1:

Commencing at the center of Section 30, Town 1 North, Range 7 East, Lyon Townshiyp, Oakland County,
Michigan; thence North 0 degrees 07 minutes 10 seconds East 694.1 feet along the North and South %
line of sald Section for a place of beginning; thence continuing along said North and South 1/4 fine North
0 degrees 07 minutes 10 seconds East 315.0 feet; thence North 86 degrees 45 minutes 50 seconds East
305.85 feet along the South line of the Grand Trunk and Western Railroad right of way; thence South 0
degrees 32 minutes 20 seconds West 335.3 feet; thence North 88 degrees 50 minutes 30 seconds West
1.84 feet; thence North 0 degrees 32 minutes 20 seconds East 20,3 feet; thehce South 86 degrees 42

minutes 30 seconds West 30171 feet to the place of beginning, being a part of the Northeast 1/4 of said
Section 30.

PARCEL 2;

A parcel of land in the West 1/2 of the West 1/2 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 1 North,

Range 7 East, City of South Lyon, Oakland County, Michigan, more particularly described as: Beginning at
a point focated by measuring East from the center of said Section 30 along the East and West l/dline a
distance of 640.3 feet: thence due North along the West fine of Lovewel! Park Subdivision 693.1 feet and
which point is at the intersection of said West fine of Loveweli Park Subdivision with the the South line
of Ada Street produced Westerly; thence from the point of beginning due North 362.1 feet; thence
South 85 degrees 45 minutes West 348.25 feet; thence due South 335.3 feet; thence South 89 degrees
50 minutes East 347.3 feet to the paint of beginning.

DESCRIBED ON THE TAX ROLLS AS:

Part of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 30, Town 1 North, Range 7 East, beginning at a point North 00
degrees 07 minutes 10 seconds East 694.10 feet from the center of Section; thence North 00 degrees 07



minutes 10 seconds East 315.00 feet; thence Narth 86 degrees 45 minutes 50 seconds East 305.85 feet;
thence North 86 degrees 12 minutes 00 seconds East 348.25 feet; thence South 00 degrees 27 minutes
00 seconds West 362.10 feet; thence North 89 degrees 23 minutes 00 seconds West 347.3 feet; thence
North 88 degrees 50 minutes 30 seconds West 1,84 feet; thence Nosth 00 degrees 32 minutes 20
seconds East 20.03 feet: thence South 86 degrees 42 minutes 30 seconds West 301.71 feet to the point
of beginning. '

s i e AL T

Praperty 7.(Property 1

T1N, R7E, SEC 30 PART OF NE 1/4 BEG AT NE COR LOT 8 OF 'LOVEWELL PARK' TH N 00-02-40 E 175.30
FT, TH § 86-14-30 W 157.04 FT, TH $ 00-27-00 W 163,40 FT, TH E 158 FTTOBEG0.61 ACI13C.

tty Tax ID.Nurber 21430-252.003);

TAN, R7E, SEC 30 PART OF NE 1/4 BEG AT PT ON SLY LINE GTRR R/W DIST S 86-14-30 W 275 FT FROM W
LINE OF WEST ST, TH S 86-14-30 W 205.26 FT, TH § 00-02-40 W 175.30 FT TO NE COR LOT 8 OF
" OVEWELL PARK’, TH E 478,50 FT, TH N 00-02-40 £ 91.10 FT, TH NWLY 285. '

446045975 vi (126587.1)




——t

sum i deRadder

e pIRoL IR

BalY Oal0msay U] popnpnyAlatol

Uit Saiedold
YRgyxa

{
3
1]

R a0

I o e ,?au.wh..sa.mw_“«..
R L s ST

e




" Map Lo

cafion:

AzCOM

Drawn: pp o ARgzIty
! Approved: EV  Alz8f281T

. Project #: 60273614
BiGIS, a1 B S TIRCHDp

IT-ITT TR R,

G\ 70AE

lon Gontoters {1 ooty «§——+~— Grourdwater Flaw

FGURE1
GROUNDWATER CONTOUR MAP
MAREGH 2047

“Aatial Phglegaphy: GatnnZ0E

@ Monlloring Well. Ground Eleyat
& 5lalf Gauga Shallow Aquifer Guntour « L scatiar Mot Includad In Contours }
B Plazemeter - .._., w.ﬂi__nﬁ ﬂo_uﬁn Zone Contour
Surisoe:Rldlos Foature: o 150 800 800 ° MICHIGAN SEAMLESS TUBE, LLG
- Gujface e o SOUTH LYON, MICHIGAN
Underground Seale in Fest




LIST OF LAND OR RESQURCE USE RESTRICTIONS TO LIMITOR PROHIBIT THE USE OF

GROUNDWATER
Th following fs:a ist of lakid-or yesaurge uss restrictiors 6d & part of
a0, action’to limit of prohib:t thei; ingtha mstallation af drlnki‘ng -and
nor-drin King wate we : d oounfy ardlnan‘__ 85

n At (NREPA), as
ng tine erground-:Stofage Tairiks,

Persons seekmg to'use LRURs that's
21310a(3)(e) of Part 213 to limit. or
to evaluale the nacessnty and app

art 201 or:Section

 $00i as practical,

Ifess the site-spacific

s.involves the

e agencles early in

mine:which LRURS are
i be successfully

)
acceptance aid approval of lacal ard stat
the selection and draffing process, This collak
apprdpriate f e‘zélte-specifc expasure risks:

proval of draﬁ LRURs by
) Final Assessment Report
clion Report under Sectton

Unaeruee a-
20114d Part 201 ora
implemented, or 18t
20121(8) and (9) of
Institutiona! Control i

y#ne District staff arid thig
8} for review ahd
rofr the IC TAPS Team the District's Fleid

in all-the p prews:ons necessary dUe to

the most repiresenta we‘efthe statutes that exists
new LRURs Use of gh'e U '




Bedford

| 10/8/98/34 of

Land and Resource Use Restrictions

_._{Wexford)

Township 10/08/1998
_ (Cathoun) | W&

Cedar Creek -

" Township Unknown 09/10/20

to Limit or Prohibit the Use of Groundwater

15 Facility

Township
(Antrim)

" Centrallake | =~

99-1

Charter
Township of
Brighton
{Livingston)

City of Alperia
_{Alpena)

afftary.LE)

Bt Part 201 and Part 313

Part2130nly e

City of Battle _
¢

‘_ Enacted for mu Iﬁﬁle'r‘é‘s&tri"cted
areas.

, (char_leﬁﬁix_l.‘

City Council

Tooh PRSP T

Ctt{c?: ;I)are 06/02/2014 = City Commlssion Both Part 201 and Part 213,
City of Dowagiac iverame | Gy Coundl | Both Part 201 and Part 213,
o fCass) ; _[__W 25/ 2016 City Manager | Used for Part 111 facility.
City of East B B ' | Both Part 201 and Part 213
Tawas 308 09/20/2004 City Councit releases,
{losco) . . _ . .. 1 . .
City of Evart | . ‘ ' Both Part 201 and Part 213
.. {Osceola) , 2011 4 e 12/19/_2011 , City Councl releases.
City of Frankfort | Ord. D, Article . © I Addresses a Part 213 release
_{Benzie) 12 of Chapter 5. 04! .15_/ 2002 City‘Coqncit only.




| v9z001 |

|

| e5/2172002 1
|l - i

E EE

| 05/11/1995 ¢

| Chaplerts 1|

202-09

[ Part 201 only

Bﬂth Part 2’015ndi=art 213 =

City Council !

| oa/0871907

City Council

| 08/1772009

ity Councll ::iigrresses aPart 214 release

:

ssctloneboa

9/41/2000

City Compisslon

465

08/13/1998

T Addresses a Part 213 Telease
City Commission

ohly and was layered with
othet documentation to be

| aceeptable,

2-14

09/02/2014

City Counell

"Both Part 201 and Part 213,
Used for Part 111 facility,




osmfzmz

-+ 09{29[1993 T

es/oa/2009 | S

04/02/20134

— i

Ho_me

1 07/21/1997 |

§t Ottawa County

Landflll (Countv Owned

?)

“Both Part 201 and Pari 218

1 ﬁéelihélu_ﬁ'és-é" T
srflon Agreement and a
tallatlen Program wuh

'Addresses a Part'213 re‘ e;ése

- only,

Village Council

Addresses a Part 213 release
only.

Villaga Coungl Addresses a Part 213 relaase

-only.

09/14/2015

Village Council

| may be used for Part 201 and

Part 213 releases.

Vi!lagemof L'Anse |

> | 08/a9/1098 °

1 Village Coungn | PETV201 only,

_ (Baraga) | e
Village of . | Addresses & Part 213 reléase
Roseammon 44 01/28/1898 | Village Councit | only,

(Rascommon) R , -
‘ { o Addresses a Part 213 release
Schnulcraft 180 02/18/2002 | Viliage Council | only,

_ {Kalama;qc) L




07;’ 17[2006

¥
{
I
?

Health Code

Health Codé

Declaratian

"restncted zones )

|'Ag Ifer [Se«_:tig_n L 104 and

‘Determination of lmhacted

|- Harold Alexander, Inc. Site

TG







M"{:OM AECOM 616 942 8600

5555 Glenwood Hills Parkway SE, Suite 300 616 840 4396
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49512
WWW.aecom.com

June 5, 2015

Ms. Ronda Blayer

Environmental Engineering Specialist

Office of Waste Management and Radiclogical Protection
Hazardous Waste Section

Constitution Hall

525 West Allegan

P.0Q. Box 30241

Lansing, Ml 48909-7741

Subject: MID 082 767 591
2015 Summary Report
Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC. Site
400 McMunn Street
South Lyon, Michigan 48178

Dear Ms. Blayer:

On behalf of Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC (MST), AECOM is pleased to submit three copies of the
2015 Summary Report for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site.

If you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact Brad Hoare at (616) 940-
4364/brad.hoare@aecom.com or Kristopher Nolan at (616) 940-4272/kris. nolan@aecom.com,

Sincere‘ly,_ %/

Brad Hoare, PG Kristopher J. Nolan, CPG
Project Manager Project Birector

c: Les Whitver, Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC

Matt Bell, Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC
Tom Wilczak, Pepper Hamilton, LLP
File #60273614

P:\60273614v7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary Report\Cover Lir to MDEQ re 2015 Summary Report.docx

tel
fax



A=ZCOM

Environment

Submitted to Submitted by

Michigan Seamiess Tube, LLC. AECOM

400 McMunn Street 5555 Glenwood Hills Pkwy,
South Lyon, Ml 48178 Suite 300

Grand Rapids, Michigan 49512
June 2015




AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site i
&

Table of Contents

EXECULIVE SUIMIMATY ..vvv s cnsecm e cests b e s eessesensesesses o e see e e 1
1 Introduction

1.1 Site BACKGIOUNG ........ ittt e e oo 1-1
1.2 Objactives

21,1 Period of Operation ........cc.coccoeeeeen,

2.1.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

2.13 Time Period of Investigation ..o

21.4 Source INFErmMation ... e
215 WOrK CongUGEE. ..o

2186 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
217 Analytical Results

2171 Soll

218 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required
2.2 Sludge Drying Beds

2.21 Period of OPEFAtON ......i.. ettt eeeeoeeeeoeeoeeoeoeoee
222 Wastes or Materials Managed

223 Time Period of Investigation

224 Source Information ........cooov oo

225 Work Conducted.......cvuecviicc e

228 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
227 Analytical Results

2271 Sail

228 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required
23 Former Acid Pits

2341 Peried of Operation

232 Wastes or Materials Managed
233 Time Period of Investigation
234 Source Information

235 Work Conducted....; .............................................................................................................................................. 2-5
2.3.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
2.37 Analytical Results

2371 Acid Pit #1

23711 Soileiieeii,
2.3.7.1.2 Groundwater

237.2  Acid Pit#2

23720 B0iluuiiiiieir e
2.3.7.22 Groundwater

2373  Acid Pit#3
23731 Soil

PG0273814\7.0_Defiverables\2015 Summary ReportiMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site L
23732 GroUNOWATET ..o et e e n e e e e e e e 26
238 Summary of Exceedances/Action REQUITE ...t s s e 2-7
2.4 LT S Tol =) oI =T O S OR OV P 2-8
2.4.1 = ot I O T a =T -1 (T o T TSP ST P PP SO O TR
242  Wastes or Materials Managed

" Time Period of Investigation.

2.44 SOUIGE IMTOMMBHON ..ottt e et e e e e et e e st e e s e e asstae e s e saeeansasseas s aesms b sins s esransantnenren :
245 BT Ty e T T T 1= o S PSP P PP P SO UUPP PP PTOPTSU PRIt
2486 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared..

247 ANAIVHECA] REBUIES ... et s s b a e e b e e b e s aab e e be s e eabr it
2471 SO0l ettt e
2472 Groundwater

2.4.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required ... 2-8

2.5 R Tee Y e 2 LTy Y O U 2-10

D54 PEHO OF OPEIAHON crrrvrrrervereeesrereereeseeees e eeeesereseeseseeesess e s eeee e eeeessees s eeeerseseeseeeseesressesesereseemeeree 2-10

2.5.2 Wastes or Materials Managed ... 2-10

253 Time Period of Investigation

254 Source Information..................

255 Work Conducted.........ccooocieiiiii e

2.56 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared...... oot e s s reas e ans e in 2-10

. 257 ANAIYHCAI RESUIS ..o bbb e s a s b b 2-10
2571 ] ] O OO 2410
258 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required ... e 2-10
2.6 Closed Farmer Hazardous Waste Container S10raga Unil.. . i ieenssimre s srmre s ea s sem s s i 2-12

2.6.1 Period of OPEIAtioN .....co e e s b b s e e

262 Wastes or Materials Managed

283 Time Period of Investigation...........cccccoeiee

2.6.4 SOUTCE INTOIITIEIION oo e et et e e cs e e e et e e sn e et e er e nsnareenmsnr s enrensmressren

285 LA Ty T T 1 Lo = O PO PSR TOTPROTOOUORPI

266 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared .

2867 Analytical RESUIES ...
2671 Lo U OO SO T ST SO O T OO TURRUSTPR

26.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action ReqUINad ....c...virieor e rm e rrsr et e e e s 2-12

2.7 (08 oL e e g -1 gL Sy da T =T [N 1= - S S PP P U OO

271 Period Of OPEration v e e et et ne e e

27.2 Wastes or Materials Managea . ... et et e e e b e et et a e e e acrne e

273 Time Period of INVestigation .. ..o e ettt bt

274 Source Information

275 Work Conducted.........coeceeiiiciieee e

276 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared.....

277 ANAIVEHEA] REBSUIS ..ottt ettt e e nn s e a s e e e b e e 4ot sre b s e e be < e bee s e et e e b as e s i n e et e nra e e e arin e
2771 1Yo | O P U U S USRI 2-13
2772 LT o TRl g L= = U OSSPSR TSP 2-13

2.7.8 Summary of Exceedances/AGtion REqUIFET ...t st s e e 2-13

P\B0273614\7.0_Dsliverablasi2015 Summary ReportitdST 2015 Summary Repert, Final. DOCX June 2015



AlgcoM 2015 Summary Repart for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site iii

2.8

2.81
282
283
2.84
285
2.8.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared....
287 Analytical Results ............cooveev e,
2.8.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

2.9 Filter Press

2.9.1 Period of Oparation ...,
282 Wastes or Materials Managed

293 Tima Period of Investigation.........

2.9.4 Source Information

295 WOrk Conduct@d......cooecieuieeneii it
2.96 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared.........oooovvvoveverenn. ..

297 Analytical RESUIS .....oooocvin e e e
298 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

210  Former Vapor Degreaser

2.10.1 Period of OPEIAtoN .............coom et
2.10.2 Woastes or Materials Managed
2.10.3 Time Period of Investigation
2.10.4 Source Information ....................

2.10.5 WOrk Conducted. .o,
2106 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
2.10.7 Analytical Results

2071 GrOUNGWELET ....ooiuiiiiccecee ettt e e e et [V 2-17
2.10.8 Summary of Exceadances/Action Required : 2-17
2.1 Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area

21141
2.11.2
2.11.3
2114
2115
2118 Criteria to Which Results Were Gompared
2117 Analytical Results

211.7.1  Groundwater

2.11.8 Summary of Exceedancas/Action Required
2,12 Site Mill Scale

2121 Period of OPEration ........ ... e e
2122 Wastes or Materials Managed
2123 Time Period of Investigation
2.12.4 Source Information
2.12.5 Work Conducted
2128
2127

PAS0273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Repont_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site v

17 s T o | TR 2-22
2.12.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action REqUINEM ... ... e csirre e a s sbar s s sbs e b e es 2-22
2.13  Site Metals Groundwater ComamiNatioN ... e e s e e sttt e s e ettt e ae e e e et eseeeeneeans 2-23

2131 Period of Operation

2132 Wastes or Materials Manage
- 2143.3 - - Time.Period of Investigation,

2.13.4 Source Information

2.13.5 WWOTK CONAUCIE.... e et ee e e e e e aa e et aeesen e e e e e tabeanesaeasanssnsemesmenenrarmreresanten
2.13.6 Criteria to Which Results Were COmMPaTed......c.ccoiv e resieieiee e snr et sssressnssiessessersressssssessesnse ansssreas 2-24
2137 ANAIVHCAE RESUHIS ..o e e e et er e e e e e re e s ab e e e £t e e b e e e e e nae e eae e ta e e ne s 2-24
2ABT GrOUNAWEIET ..o e ettt ea e ettt e e et be s s ea e e e b e sae e s sen s e et e e e nneenreaaaanranas 2-24
2.13.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action REQUIMEA ... ettt et s e e 2-24
214  Removed Gas and Ol Underground SOrage TanKS .o i s res e e isrres s ieesst iersansarssssssssssssissss s siesians 2-25
2.14.1 Period Of OPEIration . ... ettt et ee e e et e e e re e e e e e b ra e h e e snben e e e antensaen
2.14.2 Wastes or Materials Managed -
2.14.3 Time Period of INVestigation ... e et rr e e et s e st e r s s
2.14.4 SoUrCE INTOMMALION (.o e et e b e a et e r e e a e ar e g e s e e e rr e nans
2.14.5 Work Conducted
2148 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared. . ...ttty rae s e s 2-25
2147 ANBIYHICA] RESURS ... e et et r e et e e et e e e e an e e b e et raeeaben st e eree s reeren st senrteenes 2-25
24T S00leiiiie i e e r S AR AR r e aREe e fa A et et e £ bn Rt e R e et aEs s enbse et ares 2-25
214.8  Summary of Exceedances/Action ReqUIred ...t e 2-25
215 Former Chromium Plating LIne.. .o ettt e e ree e c et e e e s bt amean e e aeeanien 2-26
2.151 Period of OPEIEHON ...t e e et re e ke st nr et bbbt e ere e st e 2-26
2.158.2 Wastes or Materials Managed . ... o ris it err s b e st er e s in s e e e e s aarer e e s e e narrarnrreres 2-28
2.15.3 Time Period of Investigation
2.15.4 E2Ye 0] ot T o) o g1 =11 o] o U SO O S OO R U SOOI
2.15.5 WWOTK CONAUCTB. ...t e et r s s st aresme s eec e s b amsam e s ane s sen e e e e nr s aaran
2.15.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
2157 ANAIYHCAI RESUIES ... e ettt ettt e et a e se et e b e et ee 2 et e e ambe g eneen
R LTy B o | S U U TR O ROT TP U T URFURRTI
2.15.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action ReqUITR .........ccoiivi i et me e e e e eamrenees 2-26
218 FUBI O REIBASE ATE ..ot i ettt e e et e g e et e ete e e re e e st e mbe g g ms e e e r e e et s b e s e e e aes s rerr
2.16.1 Periof of OParation .. ... e ettt ettt e e e sar e n et ea et e e et re e e neanabrene
2.16.2 Wastes or Materials Managed..............ccoeev
2.16.3 Time Period of Investigation ..............cooevine
2.16.4 SOUIEE INTOIMAHON . e e e ettt e e e e e e e e s e e e s e e b e e e ete e srae e teeemnabete e areeae
2.16.5 WWOEK CONAUCIEA ..ottt et et e e et e et e e e te s eeetaaa e e sabtaaesaesta s e e sbaesantassasnesensenbnsaneeanns
2.16.6 Criteria fo Which Results Were Compared
2.16.7 ANAIYECA] RESUS L. e e ettt et et e ertae st e et eb e e e e e ane e et e e s e e et e e eeen
2.16.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action REOUIFED ... ..o e ettt et e eeee e en 227
3 SUMMArY AN CONCIUSIONS 1ot iirietiiiariierien e er e e rs o n et es b s he e aaEre o LEe S 1 b o To 08P S S E T8 EEE S0 R AR Sa b ae e b baarnatd Easbatanssaren 31
O T = T T PR 4-1

P:\60273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AI%COM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site

List of Figures

Figure 1.  Site Location Map
Figure 2.  Waste Management Unit & Area of Concern Locations

P\60273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary Repor\MST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AEGOM

2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, L1.C Site

List of Acronyms

AQCs
AST

N :BEA , rmten o

bgs
CACO
CMS/CMI
CcOC
DGPS
DNAPL
FSBL
GSIP
HASP
IDW
IRA/IM
MDEQ
MIOSHA
MST
mv
NRDC
NTU
ORP
PID
PvC
SPLP
580
RDC
RDW
TCLP
TPH
USEPA
UsSCcs
UsT
VAS
VQCs
WMD
WiMUs

Areas of Concemn
Above Ground Storage Tank

vi

Baseling Enviionmental-Site ASSESSITIBMT ~r s e i e

Below ground surface '

Corrective Action Consent Order

Carrective Measures Study / Corrective Measures Implementation
Constituent(s) of Concern

Differential Global Positioning System

Dense nonagueous phase liquid

Facllity Specific Background Level

Ground water Surface Water interface Protection Criteria
Health and Safety Plan

Investigation derived waste

Interim Response Action/ Interim Measure
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Michigan Occupational Safety and Health Administration
Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC

milliVolts

Nonresidential Direct Contact

Nephelometric Turbidity Units
Cxidation-Reduction Potential

Photoionization Detector

Polyvinyl Chioride

Synthetic Precipitation Leaching Procedure
Site Safety Officer

Residential Direct Contact critera

Residential Drinking Water criteria

Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure
Total Petroleum Mydrocarbons

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Unified Soil Classification System
Underground Storage Tank

Vertical aguifer sampling

Volatile organic compounds

Waste Management Division

Waste Management Units

PAB0273614\7.0 Deliverables\2015 Summary RepertMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX

June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site ES-1
+

Executive Summary

Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC (MST} manufacturas steel tubing at an industrial site located at 400 McMunn Street in South
Lyon, Michigan (the Site). The property was usad for the manufacture of seamless steel tubing for over 50 years prior to
MST's asset purchase in 2002. Releases occurred at the Site due to historical waste management practices conducted prior

to the purchase by MST. Prior and current manufacturing processes include hot and cold mill operations, annealing, acid
pickiing, tube lubrication, alkaline cleaning, applying rust inhibitor, and rinsing.

MST and the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (MDEQ) entered into a Corrective Action Consent Order (CACO}
on April 7, 2004. The mutual objectives of MST and the MDEQ that are defined in the CAGO include conducting corrective
actions at waste management units (WMUs) and areas of concern {AQCs} using the applicable cleanup criteria in Part 201,
Environmental Remediation, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (1994 PA 451, as amended) and to
make the corrective action Environmental Indicators demoenstration required by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA). Funding for corrective actions in the CACO is covered under a trust fund set up with the MDEQ. MST has made
the carrective action Environmental Indicators demonstration and continues to make progress on corrective actions at the Site
through ongoing Site characterization activities.

PG0273614\7.0_Peliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report far Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 1-1

1 [ntroduction

MST manufactures seamless steel tubing at an industrial site located at 400 McMunn Street in South Lyon,
Michigan. The Site consists of four parcels comprising a total of 58.65 acres located in the northwest ¥ of the
to the north, McMunn Street to the east, Dixboro Read to the west and Yerkes Drain'to the south. A'Site location’
map is presented as Figure 1.

MST enterad into the CACO agresment with the MDEQ Waste Management Division (WMD) on April 7, 2004
(WHMD Order Na. 111-02-04). The mutual objectives of MST and the MDEQ, as defined in the CACO, include
conducting corrective actions at WMUs and AOCs using the applicable cleanup criteria in Part 201,
Environmental Remediation, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA) (1994 PA 451,
as amended) and to make the corrective action Environmental Indicators demonstration required by the USEPA.
Funding for corrective actions in the CACO is cavered under a trust fund set up with the MDEQ. MST has made
the corrective action Envirenmental Indicators demonstration and continues to make progress on corrective
actions at the Site through ongoing site characterization activities.

As part of the CACO, ten (10) WMUs, five (5) AOCs and one (1} Other Area were identified as having the
potential to release contamination into the environment (Figure 2). This report surnmarizes information derived
from previous investigations regarding each of these units.

1.1 Site Background

The property has been used for the manufacture of seamless steel tubing for over 50 years prior to MST's asset
purchase in 2002. Prior and current manufacturing processes included hot and cold mill operations, annealing,
acid pickling, tube lubrication, alkaline cleaning, appiying rust inhibitor and rinsing.

The presence of volatile organic compounds (VOGCs), primarily chlorinated compounds, and metals in
groundwater were reported in the Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA) conducted on behalf of MST
(Horizon Environmental, 2002). Additional investigations regarding VOCs in groundwater are reported in the
Interim Response Action/Interim Measure {IRA/IM) Investigation Report (Earth Tech, 2004); the Interim Measures
Remedial Investigation Report (Earth Tech, 2005); the Summary Report for 2007 (Earth Tech, Aprit 2008} and
the 2013-2014 Investigation Repart for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site (AECOM, 2014). Investigations
regarding metals are reported in the Investigation Report for Fall 2005 (Earth Tech, 2006); the Investigation
Report for Fall 2006 (Earth Tech, 2007); Summary Report and 2008 Work Plan {Earth Tech, April 2008},
Investigation Report for Fall 2008 (AECOM, 2009b); the Investigation Report for 2009 (AECOM, 2009a); the
2011-2012 Investigation Report (AECOM, 2012) and the 2013-2014 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless
Tube, LLC Site (AECOM, 2014).

1.2 Objectives

The objective of this report is to provide a summary of conditions derived from previcus investigations for each of
the WMUW's and AQC's as defined in the CACO. Each Unit summary includes the following:

-Name of Unit or AOC;

~Period of Operation;

-Wastes or materials managed therein;

-Time period investigation conducted;

-Qutiine of work conducted as part of investigation {type and number of samples for each media);
-Analytical results,

-Criteria to which the analytical results were compared,

-Summary of criteria exceedances/determination as o whether or not corrective action is required; and
-Document(s) providing detailed information regarding Units investigation.

P8027361407.0_Deliverablesi205 Summary Report\MST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015

130, Township~1 North, Range 7 West.~ The Site is-generally-bounded by West Lake-8treet - - - oo



AECOM 2015 Surmnmary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-1

2 Waste Management Unit/Area of Concern Summaries

2.1 Two Closed Hazardous Waste Surface Impoundments

The Two Closed Hazardous Waste Surface Impoundments were used for on-Site wastewater treatment before
the construction of the wastewater treatment plant (Figure 2). They were each 550 feet long and tapered from
125 feet wide to the north to 50 feet wide to the south with a depth that was uncertain but was estimated to be 3
feet in the western impoundment and 7 to 14 feet in the eastern impoundment. During their operation, spent
pickle liquor was placed in these impoundments and neutralized with lime. Sludge was allowed to separate out of
solution and was moved to the Sludge Drying Beds while the effluent was discharged fo Yerkes Drain per a
National Pollutants Discharge Elimination System permit.

211  Period of Operation

The Hazardous Waste Impoundments were operated from1970 to1988.

21.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Non-Hazardous spent pickle liquor stabilized with me and fly ash.

2.1.3 Time Period of Investigation

Two investigations of the Waste Surface Impoundments were conducted in1987 and 1995 (see Section 2.1.8).

21.4 Source Information

» ‘Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamless
Tube (MST) Division” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1993);

» ‘Characterization of the Impoundments, Berm and Sludge Drying Beds” {BLDI, 1995}; and

= ‘“Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube” (Horizon, 2002).

21.5 Work Conducted

In 1987, three sludge samples were collected from the Surface Impoundments and tested for VOCs, cadmium,
copper, lead, nickel, silver, zinc, and leachate extraction procedure (EP) toxicity. In 1995, seven additional soil
borings were drilled at each impoundment to determine the leaching potential of the stabilized minerals to
groundwater as part of the post-closure monitoring. Twenty-two samples were collected from these borings at
various depths for analysis. The leachate samples were laboratory tested for arsenic, barium, cadmium,
chromiurn, copper, lead, selenium, silver, and zinc.

21.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

The 1995 investigation used the then-current Generic Residential Health-Based Drinking Water Criteria taken
from "MERA Draft Interim Operational Memo #8, Revision 47; MDEQ, June 5, 1995.

217 Analytical Results

2171 Soil

VOG scans from 1987 found toluene present at concentrations between 0.09 and 0.14 mg/kg. No metals were
detected above then-current criteria. In 1995, three of the 22 samples collected exceeded the then-current
criteria for lead (22 mg/kg). The samples exceeding the lead criteria were collscted along the southern end of the
Surface Impoundments.

P60273614\7.0_Deliverablesi2015 Summary ReporfWST 2015 Summary Report_final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Repert for Michigan Seamless Tube, L1C Site 2-2

2.1.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Past investigations have indicated that lead, nickel, and selenium potentially could leach from the Surface
Impoundments in concentrations above Part 201 Residential Drinking Water (RDW) criteria. Arsenic and lead
historically have exceeded Part 201 Residential Direct Contact {RDC) criteria for soil.

-In September. 1898, this unit was closed in place and a portion of the Impoundments was covered witha Type Il

landfill cap. The remaining portions of this unit were covered with clean fill.- in August 1998, a Restrictive
Covenant was recorded on the property requiring that 1) the use of the property be restricted to limited industrial
criteria, 2) restrict activities at the Property that may interfere with a corrective action, cperation and Maintenance,
monitoring or other measures necessary to assure the effectiveness and integrity of the corrective action, 3)
aclivities are restricted that may result in exposures above established criteria, 4) the owner shall provide the
MDEQ of the owner's intent to covey any interest in the property 14 days prior to consummating the conveyance
and 5) the owner shall install permanent markers on each side of the property which describes the restricted area
and nature of the prohibitions specified in. This unit is a closed Hazardous Waste Impoundment under the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) and is being monitored under a post-closure plan approved by
MDEQ. No further investigation is required for the Two Closed Hazardous Waste Impoundments.

FAB0273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-3

2.2 Sludge Drying Beds

The Two Sludge Drying Beds are located in the southwest corner of the Site (Figure 2). The North bed
measures approximately 500 feet east to west, 160 feat north to south, and is approximately 9 to 14 feet deep.
The South bed measures 325 feet east to west and 225 feet north to south, with a depth of 7 to 10 feet. During
their operation, these units were used to store non-hazardous, lime-stabilized sludge that was dredged from the
Former Surface Impoundments as part of the on-Site wastewater treatment system. Approximately 100,000
cubic yards of sludge was deposited in the Sludge Drying Beds and is still in place. According to the BEA, and
interviews with Site personnel, no new materials have been added to the Sludge Drying Beds since their closure
in 19849.

2.21 Period of Operation
The Sludge Drying Beds were operated from approximately1970 to 1987.

2.2.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Non-hazardous sludge from spent pickle liquor, stabilized with kme and fly ash.

22.3 Time Period of Investigation
Four investigations at the Sludge Drying Beds were conducted in1982, 1887, 1995, and 1997.

224 Source Information

*  "Quanex Corporaticn, Michigan Seamless Tube Division, South Lyen, Michigan- Sludge Drying Beds.
Letter to the MDNR” (EDI, 1987);

* ‘Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamiess
Tube (MST) Division” (Metcaif and Eddy, 1993);

»  “Characterization of the Impoundments, Berm and Sludge Drying Beds” (BLDI, 1995)

»  “Petition to Designate High-Volume, Low-Hazard Industrial Wasta" {BLDI, 1999);

The following reporis summarized investigations of other WMUs and AOC, but also incidentally produced
information pertaining to the Sludge Drying Beds:

“Investigation Report for Fall 2005" (Earth Tech, 2006) (referenced historical data);

‘Data Package for 2012 Work Plan Field Investigation” (AECOM, 2012b) (referenced historical data);
and

= "2013-2014 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLG Site” {AECOM, 2014) (referenced
historical data).

225 Work Conducted

In 1982, Hydro Research Service completed quadrant sampling from both beds and analyzed those samples for
chromium, lead, nickel and cyanide. The guadrant samples for each of the beds also were composited and
analyzed for total solids, pH and EP toxicity procedure for arsenic, barium, cadmium, chramium, lead, mercury,
selenium, silver, copper, zinc, nickel and cyanide.

In 1987, EDI collacted 27 samples (surface and subsurface) from 11 borings within both beds. The leachate from

these sludge samples was analyzed for arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, lead, mercury, selenium, silver,
copper, iron, manganese, zinc and nittogen-nitrate,

P8027361407.0_Oefiverables\2015 Summary ReporiMST 2015 Summary Repert_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-4

During the 1995 BLD investigation of the Sludge Drying Beds, nine soil samples were collected and analyzed for
total metals. The sludge samples were analyzed for arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead,
selenium, silver, and zinc. The samples were collected at the surface of the Sludge Drying Beds from 0-0.5 feet
below grade. In addition to surface soil samples, 18 samples were collected from intervals ranging between 2-10
feet below grade, and the leachate from the samples was analyzed for the metals listed above.

In 1997, BLDI collected-an-additional eight slidge samples to evaluate the leaching potential for manganese,

molybdenum and sulfate. These samples were analyzed for total metals, and were analyzed using synthetic
precipitation [eaching procedure {(SPLP) and toxicity characteristic leaching procedure (TCLP) for the metals
listed above. ’

During the 2005 Investigation, one monitaring well (MW-05-05} was installed down-gradient of the Sludge Drying
Beds to monitor down-gradient groundwaier conditions,

In 2006, an additional two monitoring wells (MW-08-A/B) were installed down-gradient of the Sludge Drying Bed
since the one well installed in 2005 was destroyed.

In 2012, five additional monitoring wells (MW-12-01 A/B and MW-12-02 A/B/C) were installed down-gradient of
the Sludge Drying Beds to more fully investigate groundwater conditions across the entire shallow aquifer.

In July 2013, two monitoring well clusters (MW-13-01A/B/C/D and MW-13-02A/B/C/D) were installed to the east
of the Sludge Drying Beds for future menitoring of this WMU.

2.2.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
Soil analytical resulis were compared to the then-current Michigan Part 201 NRDWP and GSIP criteria.

2.2.7 Analytical Resuilts

2271 Soil

The soil samples collecied from the Sludge Drying Beds during these investigations indicate that the sludge
contains varying concentrations of metals. Some of these metals have the potential to leach into the
groundwater. Analytical resulis indicated that some of the metals exceed the then-current Non-residential
Drinking Water Protection criteria (NRDWP) and the Groundwater Surface Water Interface Protection criteria
(GSIP).

2.2.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

The Constituents of Concern (COCs) for this WMU are arsenic, chromium, iron, lead, manganese, molybdenum,
nickel, and zinc. No further investigation is required for the Sludge Drying Beds. This unit is now in the CMS/CMI
‘phase of the Corrective Action process. Future monitoring will be covered under the Site Metals Groundwater
Contamination AQC.

F\602736714V7.5_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReporttMST 2045 Summary Repert_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-5

2.3 Former Acid Pits

The Three Former Acid Pits each measured approximately 80 fest long by 80 feet wide and approximately 6 faet
deep. They were used for on-Site wastewater treatment before the construction of the current wastewater
treatment plant (Figure 2). Spent pickle liquor was placed in these pits and neutralized with lime. All three of the
acid pits are currently covered with various construction glements, including buildings, pavement, or clean fill. As
discussed in the “Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment”, the Former Acid Pits “are inactive and
underwent closure prior to existence of formal closure regulations. In an April 1986 Loss of Interim Status Report
— Checklist, prepared by a consultant to the USEPA, these areas were given a status described as having
completed closure in a manner acceptable to the responsible agency and in accordance with the closure plan.
Closure of the units at that time was reported to the MDNR and USEPA” (Metcalf & Eddy, 1993).

2.31 Period of Operation
The Acid Pits were operated from1935 to 1969.

2.3.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Spent pickle liquor siudge stabilized with lime.

233 Time Period of Investigation
Four investigations for the Acid Pits were conducted in1986, 1989, 2004, 2005 and 2014.

2.34 Source Information

s ‘Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamless
Tube (MST) Division” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1983);

» ‘Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC" (Horizon, 2002);

= “IRA/IM Investigation Report for Michigan Seamiess Tube, LLC, South Lyon, Michigan” (Earth Tech,
2004);

» ‘Interim Measures Remedial Investigation Report for 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site”
(Earth Tech, 2005); and

»  "2013-2014 Investigation Report’ (AECOM, 2014).

2.3.5 Work Conducted

The "Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment {RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamless Tube
Division” summarizes a 1886 Groundwater Quality Assessment Program. Historical data from monitoring wells
near two of the Former Acid Pits detected "sodium, barfum, chromium, fluoride, chloride, manganese, and
phenols in repertedly acceptable levels per 40 CFR 26 Appendix lil; iron, arsenic and sulfate in slightly higher
concentrations; and methylene chioride in very high concentrations.” These were explained to be "background
levels, due to unfiliered samples, typical in near surface groundwater or due to error in analytical technigue”
(Metcalf & Eddy, 1993).

Acid pit #2 was investigated in 1988 to evaluate soils in conneation with designing the foundation for the acid
recovery building. Four soil borings were instalied in the area of acid pit #2 and the soil samples were analyzed
for VOCs and EP toxicity for metals.

Acid pits #1 and #2 were evaluated as part of the “Interim Response Action/ Interim Measures (IRA/IM)
Investigation” (Earth Tech, 2004) and the "Interim Measures Remedial Investigation” (Earth Fech, 2005). SB-03-
01/MW-03-02 is located at the site of acid pit #1 (it is also located within the Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area)
and §B-03-03 is located at the site of acid pit #2.

As part of the 2013-2014 investigation, acid pits #2 and #3 were investigated. Two soil borings were completed
in the acid pit #3 area (SB-13-05 and $B-13-06) and a groundwater sample was collected from SB-13-05 to

PG0273514\7.0_Deliverabies\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2615 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 28

evaluate potential metal and VOC groundwater impacts. One soil boring (SB-13-07) was completed in the acid
pit #2 area to evaluate a historical methylene chloride exceedance and SPLP for zinc {equivalent to EP toxicity
analysls).

2.3.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
_The 2004 study used the then-current MDEQ Part 201 Rules Generic Cleanyp Criteria, updated December,

2003. The 2005 study used the then-current Part 201. Criteria updated February 2005 The 2013 samples usad
the then-current Part 201 Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels/Part 213 Risk-Based Screening Levels

revised December 30, 2013.
2.3.7 Analytical Results
2.3.7.1 Acid Pit #1

23.711 Sail

The results of the 1989 EP toxicity analyses indicated that only zinc exceeds the current NRDW criteria. Soil
analytical results indicate that methylene chioride exceeds current NRDWP criteria. The 2004 and 2005
investigations confirmed that the acid pits did not contain elevated concentrations of chlorinated organic
campounds and the chlorinated ethenes detected at the Site are not attributable to a release from acid pits #1
and #2.

Testing in 2003 from SB-03-01 indicated acid pit #1 contained soil exceedances of arsenic and iron for drinking
water protection criteria; chromium, copper, and lead for GSIP criteria; and zinc for both criteria.

2.3.71.2 Groundwater
The groundwater samples from acid pit #1 contained exceedances in iron and selenium.

2.3.7.2 Acid Pit#2

2.3.7.21 Sell

The 2003 soil samples frem SB-03-03 in acid pit #2 contained exceedances in iron and zinc for drinking water
protection and GSIP criteria, respectively. The soil sample from acid pit #2 (SB-13-07) did not contain detectable
concentrations of methylene chloride or SPLP zinc.

23.7.2.2 Groundwater

Groundwater samples contained exceedances of arsenic and iron for drinking water criteria as well as barium
and selenium for GSI ctiteria. Groundwater samples from MW-04-09 at acid pit #2 indicate that it may be a
source of some metals detected in groundwater. Concentrations of iron (77 mg/L), manganese (1.6 mg/L) and
molybdenum (120 ug/L.} in groundwater at acid pit #2 generally were elevated compared to other sample
locations.

2.3.7.3 Acid Pit#3

2.3.7.31  Soil

Soil data from 2013 from acid pit #3 indicate that mercury and silver exceed GSIP,; arsenic and molybdenum
exceed their calculated Facility Specific Background Levels (FSBL) and both the GSIP and NRDWP; iron and
manganese excesded their respective FSBL and the NRDWP criteria; and lead exceeds the NRDWP criterion
and the Non-residential direct contact (NRDC) criterion.

2.3.7.3.2 Groundwater

The groundwater sample collected from $B-13-05 indicated that iron, lead, manganese and molybdenum exceed
the FSBLs and the NRDW criteria,

P:\6027361447.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015



AECCM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamtess Tube, LLC Site 2-7

2.3.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Historical investigations indicate that the Three Former Acid Pits WMU is a potential source of metals in soil and
groundwater. No further investigation is required for the Three Former Acid Pits. This unit is now in the
CMS/CMI phase of the Correcfive Action process. Future monitoring will be covered under the Site Metals
Groundwater Contamination AOC.

PIB0273614v7.0_Deliverablesi2015 Summary ReporttMST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Repoart for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-8

2.4 Former Scrap Yard

The Former Scrap Yard was used as a bone yard for discarded equipment and encompasses an area of
approximately 41,000 square feet (Figure 2). Subsequent to 1979, the area was covered with sand, gravel, brick
and mill scale.

241 Petiod of Operation
The exact date the Former Scrap Yard came into existence is unknown. However, use of this unit was
discontinued in 1979,

2.4.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Discarded equipment and mill scale.

2.4.3 Time Period of Investigation
The Former Scrap Yard was investigated during 2005 to 2006.

2.4.4 Source Information
« ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2006); and

» ‘“Investigation Report for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2007).

245 Work Conducted

During the 2005 investigation, shallow soil samples, 0-2 feet below ground surface (bgs), were taken in the
Former Scrap Yard (HA-05-08 and HA-05-26 through HA-05-31) using a hand auger. All of the samples were
from biased locations that were visually impacted, except for HA-05-26 and HA-05-31. Two monitoring wells
were installed down gradient (MW-05-06 and MW-05-07) of the Former Serap Yard near HA-05-30 and tested for
VOCs. In 2008, a total of 29 shallow soil samples were analyzed for mercury, as well as the two monitoring
wells.

2.4.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Samples were compared to then-current Part 201 cleanup criteria table 2, Part 201 Residential and Commercial |
Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels, from Operational Memoranda #1, February 2005 and January
2008, and FSBLs.

247 Analytical Results

2471 Soil

During the 2005 investigation, VOCs were detected in two soil samples collected from within the Former Scrap
Yard. Styrene was detected at 89 ug/kg in sample HA-05-30, while 1, 1, 1-trichloroethane and trichloroethene
{TCE} were detected at 110 ug/kg and 1,100 ug/kg, respectively, in sample HA-05-32, Mercury was detected in
soil samples HA-05-27 (550 ug/Kg and 480 ug/Kg in a duplicate sample) and HA-05-28 (640 ug/Kg). Subsurface
s0il samples collected in 2006 also exceeded cleanup criteria for metals, with HA-06-27 showing manganese at a
concentration of 6,600 mg/kg, but there were no exceedances for VOCs. The 2006 study conducted analysis for
mercury concentrations. No mercury exceedances were identified in the soil in the Former Scrap Yard and the
groundwater study concluded that further investigation is not recommended.

2.4.7.2 Groundwater

Groundwater samples did not contain any detectable chlorinated ethenes, including TCE, and did not contain any
chlorinated compounds that exceeded Part 201 criteria,

PAB0273614v7.0_Deliverables'2015 Summary ReportST 2015 Summary Repart_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Repart for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 29

248 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

The exceedances in the soil are attributed to the mill scale located in the Former Scrap Yard. No further
investigation is required for the Former Scrap Yard. This unit is now in the CMS/CMI phase of the Corrective

Action process.

The mill scale found in this location is addressed under the Site Mill Scale AOC and future monitoring will be
covered under the Site Metals Groundwater Contamination AQC.

P:80273694\7.0_Deliverahlesi2015 Summary ReportVST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-10

2.5 Uncovered Berm Area

The Uncovered Berm Area is a debris pile associated with the Former Surface Impoundments (Figure 2). 1t
was closed with the Surface Impoundments in 1998 and covered with a Type il landfill cap. This area also is
covered under the 1998 restrictive covenant.

251  Period of Operation - -

it is unknown when the Uncovered Berm Area was in use but it was closed in 1998.

2.5.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Solid wastes, including steel scrap and drum remnants, asscciated with the Former Surface Impoundments
WMU. :

2.5.3 Time Period of investigation

Two investigations of the Uncovered Berm area were conducted in 1987 and 1995,

254 Source Information
» ‘Interim Final Repori for RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA} at Quanex Gorporation- Michigan Seamless
Tube (MST) Divisicn” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1993}
* “Characterization of the Impoundments, Berm and Sludge Drying Beds” {BLDI, 1995).

255 Work Conducted
in 1987, eight berm soil samplas, three stabilized impoundment-studge samples, and one groundwater sample
were taken from this area and testad for VOCs and total and trace metals.

in 1995, eight soil barings were drilled at the Uncovered Berm Area and were used to determine the leaching
potential to groundwater of the stabilized materials within the impoundments to use for post-closure monitoring.
Within these borings, 14 samples were analyzed at varying depths. The leachate samples were laboratory tested
for arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, selenium, silver, and zinc.

25.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared
The 1987 data used the then-current EP Toxicity Allowable Levels.

The 1995 study used the then-current Generic Residential Health-Based Drinking Water Criteria taken from
"MERA Draft Interim Operational Memo #8, Revision 4”; MDEQ, June 5, 1995,

2.5.7 Analytical Results

2571 Soail
The 1987 samples found totuene, 1,1,1-trichloroethane, chromium, and fead in the soil and dried sludge but nane
of the levels exceeded EP toxicity allowable levels.

Eleven of the samples collected in1995 contained exceedances for lead, with two samples {SB-20 and SB-21)
being significantly over generic drinking water criteria at 200 ug/L. and 270 ug/L, respectively. These samples
were located in the southern end of the berm area.

25,8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

In September 1998, this unit was closed in place and covered with a Type [ll landfill cap. In August 1998, a
Restrictive Covenant was issued for the Type |t landfill cap and the clean fifl covering the impoundments
associated with the Uncoverad Berm Area. This unitis a closed hazardous waste impoundment under RCRA

P:6027361407.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportiMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site

and is being monitored under a post closure plan approved by MDEQ. No further investigation is required under
the RCRA Corrective Action process. On-going monitoring of this unit will be part of the overall site monitoring,

P\60273614\7.0_Delverables\20r1 5 Summary ReportST 2015 Summary Reporl_Final. DOCX Jung 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-12

2.6 Closed Former Hazardous Waste Container Storage Unit

This WNMU is a former concrete pad materials storage area. In September 1987, the MDNR appraved final
closure of the Hazardous Waste Container Storage Unit, contingent upon final sampling of the area after removal
of the concrete pad and associated waste materials (Figure 2).

TS Pe;lodofOpérét;an“ T

The Hazardous Waste Container Storage Unit operated from 1884 to 1989,

2.6.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Hazardous spent materials (barium and corrosives).

2.6.3 Time Period of Investigation

An investigation into the Closed Former Hazardous Waste Container Storage Unit was conducted in1989.

2.6.4 Source Information
» “Clean Closure Certification for The Container Storage Area (EDI, 1990);

» ‘interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment {RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamiess
Tube {(MST) Division” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1993) (references historical investigation); and

= ‘investigation Report for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2007)
(references historical investigation).

2.6.5 Work Conducted

In 1988, nine soil samples were collected undernaath the former concrete pad to verify clean closure. These
samples were analyzed for barium, as barium was determined to be the only hazardous waste stored in the
Former Container Storage Unit.

2,6.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

The analytical results from the soil samples collected in 1989 were compared to soil samples from four
background soil borings collected in October 1985 {BG-23, 24, 25, and 26) and four background soil borings that
were collected in December 1988 (BG-27, 28, 29, and 30). Subsequently, these results were compared to the
then-current Generic Residential and Industrial Drinking Water Protection and Groundwater Surface Interface
Protection criteria Part 201 Residential and Commercial | Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels, from
Operational Memoranda #1, January 2006 in the 2007 Investigation Report.

2.6.7 Analytical Results

2,671 Soil

Statistical analysis comparing the analytical results for these soil samples to historical background soil data
showed that the concentration of barium in the verification samples did not exceed the concentration of barium in
the background samples.

2.6.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

In 1989, this WMU was clean closed and the concrete pad was removed under RCRA Part 111 in accordance
with the Closure-Plan approved by the MDEQ. No further investigation is required for the Closed Former
Hazardous Waste Container Storage Unit under the RCRA Corrective Action process.

P:80273614\7.0_Deliverables\?015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-13

2.7 Closed Container Storage Area

Operation of the Closed Container Storage Area began in 1979 (Figure 2). This area historically was used for
the storage of waste oil and drums of spent solvent, as well as empty, used drums. The waste oil was stored in a
10,000-gallon above-ground storage tank (AST) with secondary containment and sump for surface water runoff
and spifl containment. The drums were not stored in the secondary containment structure.

2,71  Period of Operation

The Closed Container Storage Area began operating in1979 and remains in aperation,

27.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Waste oil, drums of spent solvent, and empty drums.

2,7.3 Time Period of Investigation

The Closed Container Storage area was investigated in 2005 and 201 3.

2.7.4 Source information

» ‘“Investigation Repoit for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2006); and
*  “2013-2014 investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2014).

2.7.5 Work Conducted

As part of the 2005 investigation, wells MW-15A and MW-15B were sampled for a short list of VOCs, including
benzene, 1,1,1-trichioroethane, 1,1-dichloroethane, 1,1-dichloroethene, cis-1,2-dichloroethens, trans 1,2-
dichloroethene, trichloroethene and vinyl chloride.

During the 2013 investigation, the Closed Container Storage Area was investigated to determine if this area is a
potential source area for metals and VOCs. Four soil barings were completed {8B-13-01 through SB-13-04) to
evaluate potential subsurface impacts.

2.7.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Groundwater analytical results in the 2005 study were compared to then-current Part 201 Cleanup Criteria Tables
4 and 5 from Operational Memoranda #1, February 2005. The 2013 study used the then-current Part 201
Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels/Part 213 Risk-Based Screening Levels (December 30, 2013
revisian).

2.7.7 Analytical Results

2771 Soil
The soil analytical results from 2013 indicate that selenium exceeds the GSIP criterion of 0.4 ma/kg {(SB-13-01

measured 1.6 mg/kg, SB-13-02 measured 0.79 mg/kg, and $B-13-04 measured 0.44 mg/kg). No other metals or
VOCs exceeded soil criteria.

2.7.7.2 Groundwater

No VOCs were detected in the samples from MW-15A or MW-15B. MW-15A contained 89 ug/L of malybdenum.
WMW-15B contained 310 ug/L. of aluminum, 4,200 ug/L of iron, 280 ug/l. of manganese, and 85 ug/L of
molybdenum; all of which were above the then-current Part 201 Cleanup Criteria.

2.7.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Selenium exceeds the current GSIP criterion. No other metals or VOCs exceed current soil eriteria. No further
investigation is required for the Closed Container Storage Area. This unit is now in the CMS/CMI phase of the

P16027361417.0_Deliverablest2015 Summary ReporttMST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2045 Summary Regort for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-14

Corrective Action process. Future monitoring will be coveraed under the Site Metals Groundwater Contamination
AOC.

P\60273614\7,0_Deliverables\?015 Summary ReporttST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-15

2.8 Neutralization Plant

The Neutralization Plant is part of the current on-site wastewater treatment plant where the neutralization of
procass wastewater occurs (Figure 2).

2.81 Period of Operation

The date the Neutralization Plant began operation in 1969 and was upgraded in 1988. This unit is presently in
operation,

2.8.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

All waste water from the mill including non-hazardous, hazardous and fiquid industrial waste under NPDES permit
No.: MI0001902.

2.8.3 Time Period of investigation

The Neutralization plant has not been investigated.

2.8.4 Source Information

» ‘Interim Final Report for RCRA Fagility Assassment (RFA) at Quanex Caorporation- Michigan Seamless
Tube (MST) Division” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1993).

2.8.5 Work Conducted

No investigative work has been conducted at the Neuwtralization plant.

2.8.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

No data has been collected from the Neutralization Plant.

2.8.7 Analytical Results

There are no documented releases at the Neutralization Plant and no data from past investigations suggest that
the Neutralization Plant has impacted soil or groundwater.

2.8.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

No releases to date therefore, no investigations are required for the Neutralization Plant WMU under the RCRA
Corrective Action process.

P6C273814\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReporfMST 2015 Summary Reporl_Final. DQCX, June 2015



AECCM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 7 2-16

2.9 Filter Press

The Fitter Press is part of the current on-Site wastewater treatment plant. It is used to remove water from sludge
generated in the treatment of process wastewater (Figure 2).

2.9.1..  Period of Operation . ..
The Neutralization plant began operation in1968 and is currently aperating.
2.9.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Waste pickie liquer stabilized with lime.

2.9.3 Time Period of Investigation

No investigations have been conducted at the Filter Press.

294 Source Information

» ‘“Interim Final Report for RCRA Facility Assessment (RFA) at Quanex Corporation- Michigan Seamless
Tube (MST) Division” (Metcalf and Eddy, 1893).

2.95 Work Conducted

No investigations have been conducted at the Filter Press.

2.9.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

No data has been collected from the Filter Press.

2.9.7 Analytical Resulis

All operations pertaining to this WMU are indoors. There are no documented releases at the Filter Press and no
data from past investigations suggest that the Filter Press has impacted soil or groundwater,

2.9.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

No releases to date therefore, no investigations are required for the Filter Press WMU under the RCRA
Caorrective Action process.

PAS0273514\7 .2 _Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportST 2045 Summary Report _Final.DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 217

2.10 Former Vapor Degreaser

The Former Vapor Degreaser (Figure 2) was installed in 1957 to clean tubing made for the aircraft industry from
a specialty metal called Haynes 25. This tubing was made once or twice per year. The cleaner specified in
MST's operations manual for this special cperation was Chlorosthene VG, which is & brand name for 1,1,1-
trichloroethane {TCA). This degreasing operation was used only in connection with the Hanes 25 material, The
TCA degreaser was removed prior to 1980 to aliow for expansion of the hot mill. No other tubing manufactured
at the Site has ever been cleaned with a degreaser in any stage of the manufacturing process, based on
conversations with facility employees.

210.1 Period of Operation
The Former Vapor Degreaser operated intermittently from1957 to 1980,

2.10.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Chloroethene VG, which is a brand name for TCA. TCA naturally biodegrades to either 1, 1-dichloroethane
which, in turn, degrades into chloroethane or to 1,1-dichloroethene and then into vinyl chloride.

2.10.3 Time Period of Investigation

An investigation into the Former Vapor Degreaser was conducted in 2003,

2.10.4 Source Information

= “Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC" {Horizon, 2002); and

*  "IRA/IM Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC, South Lyon, Michigan” {Earth Tech,
2004).

2.10.5 Work Conducted

In 2003, six soil borings were installed to a depth of 25 feet, except for SB-03-03 which was 19 faet deep. SB-03-
05 was drilled through the floor at the location of the Former Vapor Degreaser. Vertical Aquifer Sampling (VAS)
was performed within these horings and tested for VOCs and metals. During this investigation, three new
monitoring wells also were installed.

2.10.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

The 2003 analytical results were compared to the then-current Michigan NREPA, 1994 PA 451, Part 201,
R229.5744 Generic Groundwater Cleanup Criteria.

2.10.7 Analytical Results

2.10.7.1 Groundwater

TCA was only detected {o the southwest (down-gradient) of the degreaser at SB-03-04A (21-25 feet bgs) at a
concentration of 4.0 ug/L and is limited to the area immediately west of the degreaser. Chloroethane was
detected at a concentration of 1,200 ug/L hetween 14 and 18 feet bgs, but was not detected above the reporting
limit of <1 ug/L between 21 and 25 feet bgs. 1,1-dichlorosthane and chloroethane were detected to the south
and southwest of the former degreaser at levels below then-current Part 201 criteria.

210.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

The only VOC exceeding criteria at the Former Vapor Degreaser is chloroethane. Chloroethane was found to
exceed RDW criteria immediately under the location of the Former Degreaser, but has completed degraded
down-gradient io non-detectable levels. Based on amendments to Part 201 for operating facilities subject to
Michigan Occupational Safety and Health Administration {MIOSHA) regulations for indoor air (MDEQ, 2013h),
additional Due Care Obligations are not required for this WMU beyond MST's existing due care obligations

PAG0273614\7.0_Daliverables\2015 Summary ReparfiMST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2075



AECCOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site

regarding the Former Vapor Degreaser WMU. No further investigation is required for the Former Vapor
Degreaser.

P:B0273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReporttMST 2015 Summary Report_Final DOCX

2-18

June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-19

2.11 Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area

The CACO describes the Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area (Figure 2) as an "area an the south side of the
facifity displaying viny! chloride concentrations in groundwater in excess of applicable Part 201 criteria. Unless
the source of the contaminant is determined to be from a WMU under paragraph 8.3.3 of the Consent Order,
MST must only exercise due care with respect to this area.” TCE and its breakdown products, cis-1,2-
dichloroethene, trans-1,2-dichloroethene, 1,1-dichloroethene, and vinyl chforide, have been detected at the Site.
The data collected from historical investigations demonstrates that there are two potential source areas for the
Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area. One includes a possible on-Site TCE source likely associated with incidental
spills, while the second possible source is off-site to the south of Yerkes Drain. The extent of the chlarinated
VOCs in the groundwater has been defined at the MST property. The off-site source has been identified but not
fully defined,

2111 Period of Operation

The Vinyl Chloride Contamination area has not been associated with a specific historical or current Site activity to
date. Therefore, no time period of operation for this AQC has been identified.

2.11.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

The Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area has not been associated with a WMU.

2.11.3 Time Period of Investigation
The Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area was investigated between 2002 and 2008,

2.11.4 Source Information

* ‘Technical Protocol for Evaluating Natural Attenuation of Chlorinated Solvents in Ground Water Issue”
(USEPA, 1998);

» ‘"Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC" (Horizon, 2002);
»  Corrective Action Consent Order (MDEQ, 2004);

* "IRAMIM Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC, South Lyon, Michigan” (Earth Tech,
2004);

¢ ‘Interim Measures Remedial investigation Report for 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site”
{Earth Tech, 2005);

. “Investigation Report for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site"(Earth Tech, 2008);
= ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2007); and
o “Summary Report and 2008 Work Plan for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2008a).

2.11.5 Work Conducted

During the 2002 BEA, vinyl chloride was detected e the south of the facility in MW-8A, TW-2, TW-3, TW-4, and in
a surface sample from Yerkes Drain, while MW-8A also contained an excesdance of cis-1,2-dichloroethylene.
The extent of the TCE plume was further investigated in the 2004 IRA/IM Investigation Report. SB-03-05 was
drilled through the fioor at the location of the Former Vapor Degreaser. It was concluded that the TCE and vinyl
chloride were not atiributable to the operation of the degreaser. Groundwater samples collected at depth {21-25
feet) from soil borings 8B-03-04 and SB-03-01 contained the highest concentrations of TCE and its breakdown
products. Permanent manitoring wells were placed at the locations of these soil borings (MW-03-01 and MW-03-
02, respectively). Groundwater samples from these wells confirmed the presence of TCE and its breakdown

F:\B0273614V7.0_Deliverablesi2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-20

products at the base of the aquifer. In 2004, two new monitoring wells (MW-04-20 and MW-04-21} were installed
south of MW-03-02. In the Fall of 2005, an additional two monitoring wells (MW-05-03 and MW-05-04} were
installed to the southwest and south of MW-04-21. The presance of these wells, and others to the west,
effectively define the extent of the contaminated area.

In order to qualitatively evaluate if natural attenuation is oceurring for these constituents at the Site, the screening

-procedures from-the USEPA’s LTechnical Protocel for-Evaluating-Natural-Attenuation of Chlorinated Solventsin ..o

Ground Water" wére evaluated inthe 2006 Invastigation Report: “This ‘evaluation fourid €vidence that @naerobic
bicdegradation is naturally attenuating TCE into its breakdown products and that monitored natural attenuation
(MNA) may be a feasible approach for the Vinyl Chloride Cortamination Area. As part of the 2007 Investigation
Report, MST researched historical operations to determine if TCE, the parent product of vinyl chloride, was used
at the Site. There is no indication that TCE had been used at any WMU at the Site. Further investigation into this
area in 2008 considered the possibility of dense nonagueous phase liquid (DNAPL) as a contributor to the VOGCs
and used past investigation data to analyze the solubility in water.

2.11.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Analytical data was compared to the then-current Part 201 Residential and Industrial-Commercial Generic
Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels, from Operational Memoranda #1, February 2005.

2.11.7 Analytical Results

TCE naturally degrades to cis-1,2-dichloroethene, trans-1,2-dichloroethene, and 1,1-dichloroethene which, in
turn, degrade ta vinyl chioride. Vinyl chloride further degrades into non-harmful byproducts.

2.11.71 Groundwater

In the 2004 Investigation, groundwater samples collected from SB-03-04 contained 10,000 ug/L of TCE, 650 ug/L.
of ¢is-1,2-dichloroethene, and 7.1 ug/L of vinyl chloride. Groundwater samples collected from S5B-03-01
cantained 350 ugflL of TCE, 5,700 ug/L of cis-1,2-dichloroethene, and 440 ug/L of vinyl chloride. Also, samples
from MW-03-01 contained 8,800 ug/l. of TCE, 4,600 ug/L of cis-1,2-dichloroethene, and 56 ug/L of vinyl chloride
while MVY-03-02 contained 7,900 ug/L of TCE, 5,600 ug/L of cis-1,2-dichloroethene, and 85 ug/L of vinyl chloride.

in the 2005 IMRI Report, MW-04-21 contained 40 ug/L of TCE and 140 ug/L of cis-1,2-dichloroethene with no
detectable trans-1,2dichloroethene or vinyl chioride. MW-04-20 (approximately 100 feet to the west of MW-04-
21) contained no detectable TCE, 200 ug/L of cis-1,2-dichloroethene, and 59 ug/L of vinyl chloride. Additionaily,
additional wells down-gradient (wesi-southwest) from the area were sampled for these VOCs. Maoving west along
the south side of the properiy, the vinyl chloride concentrations were MW-04-14: 530 ug/L, MW-04-12: 180 ug/L,
MW-04-10; <1ug/L, and MW-04-03: <1 ug/L, showing degradation moving down-gradient.

The 2008 Summary Report concluded that interstitial giobules of DNAPL are a potential source for dissclved
phase VOCs in groundwater.

2.11.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Since the TCE and its hreakdown products are not from an associated WMU, the CACO provides that MST must
only exercise due care with respact to these materials. Investigations show a source to be located on MST's
property likely associated with incidental spills, as well as a secondary source south of the Site. MST will
voluntarily underiake MNA testing to document the breakdown of TCE.

P:6027361417.0_Daliverablasi2015 Summary ReporttMST 2045 Summary Report_Final DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-21

2.12 Site Mill Scale

This AOC consists of mill scale that was placed at or near the surface at various locations across the Site as a
road base and for other uses. The mill scale is a by-product of the facility's processes. On average, the mill
scale ranges 1 to 2 feet thick, with some areas being thicker above the soil horizon, and covers approximately
20.6 acres. Mill scale produced during current operations is properly disposed of aff-site.

2121 Period of Operation

Mill scale is a byproduct of the seamless steel tubing manufacturing process. The timeframe in which the mill
scale was used as a road base is unknown.

2.12.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Mill scale {contains arsenic, chromium, iron, lead, manganese, molybdenum, nickel, and zinc)

2123 Time Period of Investigation
The Site Mill Scale was investigated from 2005 to 2012,

2124 Source Information

= “Sampling Strategies and Statistics Training Material for Part 201 Cleanup Criteria” (MDEQ, 2002),

*  ‘Interim Measures Remedial Investigation Report for 2005 at the Michigan Seamiless Tube, LL.C Site”
{Earth Tech, 2005);

= ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site”(Earth Tech, 2008);
» ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” {Earth Tech, 2007);
= "Particulate Soil Inhatation Evaluation, Michigan Seamless Tube Site” (Earth Tech, 2008b);

* “Technical Memorandum Particulate Soil Inhatation Evaluation for Molybdenum, Michigan Seamless
Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2009¢); and

»  "2011-2012 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC. Site’ (AECOM, 2012a).

2125 Work Conducted

For the 2005 IMRI Répoﬂ. a scil investigation was done to support placement of wells for the groundwater
investigation. Twenty-five soil borings were completed and eight samples were tested for the full suite of VOCs,
metals, and SVOCs (SB-04-03, 5B-04-04, SB-04-05, SB-04-06, SB-04-09, SB-04-15, SB-04-21, and $8-04-25).
These borings were sampled at varying depths immediately above the groundwater table (betwaen 3 and 10 fast
bgs), but below the mill scale. ‘

The Investigative Report for Fall 2005 included a Site visit and visual inspection that estimated 455,000 square
feet of soif was impacted with mill scale across the Site, as well as an additional 41,000 square feet in the Former
Scrap Yard. These areas were divided into sections and a shallow soil sample (0-2 feat bgs} was collected from
a biased location (visually impacted by mill scale) within each section. In addition, nine background samples
were collected from undeveloped areas along the north and east property boundaries of the Site.

The Fall 2006 investigation worked to further delineate the extent of the Site Mill Scale. Approximately 70
locations were sampled, with 33 of those being the same locations as the 2005 investigation. The remaining 37
locations were placed along the perimeter of the Mill Scale area in order to delineate tha vertical and latera!
extent of the Mill Scale (Figure 2). At locations within the mill scale area, two soil samples were coliected at each

P80273614\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summiary ReporiMST 2015 Summary Repert_Final. DOCX June 2315



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-22

location; one sample from a six-inch interval just below where mill scale was visibly present and one sample from
a six-inch interval starting one foot below the previous sample. At perimeter locations an additional surface
sample was taken from 0-0.5 feet bgs. At five interior locations, additional deeper samples were taken when the
previous deep sample contained metal exceedances.

_In 2008, the FSBLs were recalculated and updated from those calculated in 2005 to be more representative of

the native soil in areas not impacted by Site operations. The FSBLs were updated for arsenic {14 mg/kg), cobait

{5.9 mg/ka), iron (25,000 mg/ka), manganese (560 mg/kg), and molybdenum (33 mg/kg), FSBLs for nickel (83
mg/kg) and zinc (470 mg/kg) were also calculated. FSBLs were also calculated for subsurface soil for arsenic
{11 ma/kg), cobalt (4.8 mg/kg), iron (20,000 mg/kg), manganese {720 ma/kg), molybdenum (5.9 mg/kg), nickel
(21 mg/kg), and zinc (69 mg/kg).

The 2012 Investigative Report completed the delineation of the Mill Scale north of the Sludge Drying Beds. Also,
ten mill scale samples (MS-11-01 through MS-11-10) were collected and analyzed using SPLP for arsenic,
shromium, cobalt, copper, iron, manganese, malybdenum, nickel and zinc.

Particulate soi! inhalation evaluations ware completed to address the potential particulate soil inhalation exposure
pathway to workers on-Site.

212.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

In the 2005 report, soil samples were compared to the then-current Part 201 cleanup criteria in Table 4,
Residential and Commercial | Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels, from Operational Memoranda #1,
February 2005. Chemicals that did not exceed these criteria were compared to State Default Background Levels
(SDBL's). After FSBLs were calculated, Site data was first compared to these values. If a parameter's
concentration exceeded the FSBL, then it was compared to the Part 201 Criteria.

2127 Analytical Results

21271 Soil

The 2005 IMR! Report found that chemicals in the soil were less than background criteria and criteria for currently
complete exposure pathways for protection of human health. Only molybdenum exceeded background criteria
and RDWP/NRDWP criteria.

During the fall 2005 surface soil investigation, arsenic, cobalt, copper, iron, manganese, mercury, molybdenum,
nickel, and zing all exceeded at least one criterion. The 2012 Investigative Report conclusively defineated the
extent of the Mill Scale and confirmed that it does not extend off Site to property north of the Sludge Drying Beds.
From these investigations, the extent of the Mill Scale has been fully delineated both vertically and horizontally
and it was determined that the Mill Scale is completely contained within MST's property.

The results of the soil inhalation evaluations determined that metal concentrations in soil were below the MDEQ's
particulate soil inhalation criteria (PSIC) for those respective metals and did not pose a risk to the workers on-
Site.

The SPLP results indicate that potential for leaching varies across the Site and is most likely dependent on the
amount, age, and degree of weathering of the mill scale in any one particular area.
2128 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

No further investigation is required for the Site Mill Scale AOC under the RCRA Corrective Action process. This
unit is now in the CMS/CMI phase of the Correciive Action process. Future monitoring will be covered under the
Site Metals Groundwater Contamination AOC.

P80273614\7 0_Deliverables\2016 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-23

2.13 Site Metals Groundwater Contamination

The Site Metals Groundwater Contamination AOGC includes areas at the Site that have groundwater exceading
Part 201 criteria for metals, predominately iron, and areas down-gradient of the Site to the west of Dixboro Road
(Figure 2).

2131 Period of Operation

The Site Metals Groundwater Contamination relates ta various historical operations at the property and hotto a
specific WMU,

213.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

The Site Metals Groundwater Contamination Area has not been associated with a WMU,

213.3 Time Perlod of Investigation

The groundwater contamination at the Site has heen Jnvestlgated since 2004. .

2.13.4 Source Information

+ “IRAAM Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC, South Lyon, Michigan® (Earth Tech,
2004);

» ‘Interim Measures Remedial Investigation Report for 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site”
(Earth Tech, 2005);

» ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamiess Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2006);
» ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LL.C Site” (Earth Tech, 2007);
» *Summary Report and 2008 Work Plan for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (Earth Tech, 2008a);

» ‘“Statistical Analysis of Ground-Water Monitoring Data at RCRA Facilities: Unified Guidance” (USEPA,
2009);

*  "2009 Investigation Report for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2009a);

= ‘Investigation Report for Fall 2008 at the Michigan Seamlass Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2009b);
*  "2011-2012 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC. Site" (AECOM, 2012a);

= "Data Package for 2012 Work Plan Field Investigation” (AECOM, 2012h); and

=« "2013-2014 Investigation Réport for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2014).

2.13.5 Work Conducted

The 2004-2(14 studies have all focused on monitering well installation and groundwater monitoring at different
locations throughout the Site and neighboring areas. Monitoring wells have been continuously added to ensure
accurate delineation of the extent of groundwater contamination both on- and off-Site,

Groundwater FSBLs were calculated for the predominant metals of concern during several of the studies. The
most recent groundwater FSBLs were recalculated for arsenic (18 ug/L), iron {5,372 ug/L), lead (11ug/L),
manganese (274 ug/L), and molybdenum (40 ug/L) during the 2011-2012 investigation. The updated FSBLs
were based on groundwater metal concentrations at 11 background manitoring wells located up-gradient of the

PG027381417.0_Deliverablest2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DGCK June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-24

Site to delineate and assess the metal impacts from the Site, if any, verses naturally occurring metals in
groundwater in the region. These background wells (MW-1B, MW-1C, MW-17A, MW-17B, MW-09-03A, MW-09-
03B, MW-09-03C, MW-09-03D, MW-02-03E, MW-09-05, and MW-09-08) are located on the eastern edge of the
Site property, as well as on adjacent properties to the east of the Site. These background well locations were
selected because the current and historical Site operations ara/were unlikely to have affected soils and

- groundwater in these areas.

In Septeriber 2008, MST conducted pre-softening/ftreatrent and post-softening/treatment residential well -~ -
sampling at 16 homes located to the west of Dixboro Road to further define the groundwater quality and
determine the extent of metals in groundwater down gradient of the Site. Eighty-one records were requested
from the Oakland and Livingston County Health Departments and the MDEQ's Water Bureau under the Freedom
of Information Act to evaluate available residential water quality data for residential water wells Jocated around
the Site. The following year, pressure transducers were used to determine if pumping of City of South Lyon
municipal wells was causing groundwater to flow off-Site to the east.

As part of the investigation conducted in 2013 (supplemental to the 2008 residential investigations), 78 homes in
the down-gradient Greenock Hills Subdivision were surveyed to determine what type of water softening/treatment
systems were present in the homes. Pre-softening/treatment and post-softening/treatment water samples were
collected from 13 of the homes.

2.13.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Groundwater analytical data were compared to the then-current Part 201 RDW, NRDW, and GSl criteria and
calculated FSBLs.

2.13.7 Analytical Results

It is assumed that the clay aquitard found between 112 and 126 feet bgs in several of the deep soil borings in the
central and western portion of the Site is the lower confining boundary of the metals groundwater plume. Lateral
distributions of metal exceedances in groundwater are found across the majority of the Site and off-Site to the
south and west.

2.13.7.1 Groundwater

Of the 81 well guality records requested in 2008, 12 samples contained detections of iron; however, the
conditions of the sampling within the records are unknown and these may not be representative of aquifer
conditions and are expected to be low if the water was filiered or otherwise freated.

It was concluded in the 2008 investigation that the residential water treatment systems removed concentrations of
iron and manganese in groundwater to below Part 201 criteria. As a resuit, iron and manganese in groundwater
is not adversely affecting residents west of the Site. It was also determined that pumping of the City of South
Lyon municipal wells does not encourage off-Site migration of groundwater to the east,

Similar to the 2008 results, the results of the 2013 residential sampling showed that several of the pre-
softening/treatment samples exceeded FSBLs and RDW criteria, but all of the post-softeningftreatment water
samples were below the FSBLs and RDW criteria. Based on the analytical data collected from the homes in the
Greenock Hilis Subdivision, it was determined that a properly working softening /treatment system is capable of
removing the metals of concern to below applicable Part 201 residential cleanup criteria.

Parcels located to the south of the Site are zoned industrial and groundwater concentrations from monitoring
wells present in those areas have been found in other investigations io exceed the FSBLs and NRDW and GSI
criteria for metals.

2.13.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Based on sampling of the groundwater at the Site, it was determined that metals exceed FSBLs, NRDW, and GSI
criteria at varying depths within the aquifer. No further investigation is required for the Site Metals Groundwater
Contamination. This unit is now in the CMS/CMI phase of the Corrective Action process.

P\80273614V7.0_Deliverablesi20 5 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-25

2.14 Removed Gas and Oil Underground Storage Tanks

This AOC (Figure 2) includes two former 1,000-gallon tanks, one 10,000-gallon tank, and one 20,000-gallon
underground storage tank (UST) that were used to store gasoline, diesel fuel, and heating oil during previous
operations.

2.14.1 Period of Operation
Operation of the gas and oil USTs ceased in 1988.

2.14.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Diesel fuel, gasoline, and heating oil

2.14.3 Time Period of Investigation
Three investigations into the gas and ofl USTs were conducted in1976, 1988, and 2002.

2.14.4 Source Information

* ‘Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Searnless Tube, LLC” (Horizon, 2002}).

2.14.5 Work Conducted

The 20,000 gallon storage tank was filled with sand and closed in place in 1978. Great Lakes Environmental
Services and D&B Excavafion excavated and removed the other three storage tanks and contaminated soil in
1888. These tanks were closed and removed under then-existing regulations. Excavated soils were screened
with a photoionization detector and composite samples from the fioor and sidewall of the excavated area were
collacted and submitted for laboratory analysis. :
2.14.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Both excavation samples were compared to the then-current Part 201 cleanup criteria.
2.14.7 Analytical Results

214.71 Soil

Laboratory data sheets were not available for review; howevar, Quanex files indicate results of 53 mg/kg total
petroleum hydrocarbons {TPH}) for the floor sample and 20mg/kg TPH for the sidewall sample.

2.14.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

The USTs in this area were operated before MST's purchase of the property in 2002. Therefore, MST is not
ifable for this AOC, but must exercise due care with respect to this area.

PAS027361407.0_Deliverablest2015 Summary ReporMST 2015 Summary Repori_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 20415 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-26

2.15 Former Chromium Plating Line

The Former Chromium Plating Line was a small, former batch plating line used to plate equipment historically
used by the facility to manufaciure seamiess tube, not for the finished product itself (Figure 2).

2151 Period of Operation

The Chiromium Plating liné was operated from 194116 1980,
2.15.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Chromium

2.15.3 Time Period of Investigation

An investigation into the Former Chromium Plating Line was conducted in 2013.

2.15.4 Source Information

« "Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC” (Horizon, 2002); and
= “2013-2014 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site” (AECOM, 2014).

2.15.5 Work Conducted

Two s0il borings {(SB-13-08 and SB-13-08) were completed to determine if this area is a potential source of
contamination. In addition, one monitoring well (MW-13-03) was installed at the SB-13-09 location to evaluate
groundwater impacts.

2.15.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Analytical results were compared to the then-current Part 201 Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening
Levels/Part 213 Risk-Based Screening Levels {Dacember 30, 2013 revision) Analytical data was also compared
to the established FSBLs.

2.15.7 Analytical Resuits

2.15.7.1 Soil

The samples coilected were tested for VOCs and metals. Soil analytical data from the two soil borings measured
selenium at a concentration of 0.98 mg/kg in SB-13-08 and 1.3 mg/kg in SB-13-09. No VOCs exceeded soil
criteria.

2.15.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

Soil investigation shows an exceedance only in selenium. Groundwater data from MW-13-03 indicate that no
metals or VOCs exceed groundwater criteria. Mo further investigation is required for the Former Chromium
Plating Line AOC under the RCRA Carrective Action process. No further investigation is required for the Former
Chromium Plating Line. This unit is now in the CMS/CMI phase of the Corrective Action process. Future
monitoring wilt be covered under the Site Metals Groundwater Contamination AOC.

P:\B0273514V7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary RepotMST 2015 Suramary Repori_Final. DOCX Juna 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 2-27

2.16 Fuel Oil Release Area

The Fuel Oil Release Area is an area impacted by a fuel oil release from a below grade transfer pipe discovered
in 1974 (Figure 2). The supply for the transfer pipe was two, 500,000 gallon fuel il ASTs in the northwest
portion of the facility. The fuel oil was used for the annealing furnace and boiler before the plant converted to
natural gas. An estimated 250,000 to 500,000 gallons of fuel oil were released. Subsequent to the release, an
active recovery trench was instatled to assist in the removal of the fuel oil. In 2003, the MDEQ approvad the
shut-down of the fuel recovery system.

2.16.1 Period of Operation

The Fuel Ol Release Area relates to an area of impact from various historical operations at the property and not
to a specific WMU.

2.16.2 Wastes or Materials Managed

Fuel Qil.

2.16.3 Time Period of Investigation

Two investigations were conducted in1974 and 2002 to determine the extent and condition of the fuel oil release.

2.16.4 Source Information

» ‘“Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC" (Horizon, 2002).

2.16.5 Work Conducted

Quanex conducted test pitling and groundwater sampling in 1974 to investigate the extent of the release. Oil was
found to be seeping into the Yerkes Drain to the south and a trench interceptor fuel recovery system was
installed. Approximately 282,729 gallons of oil were recovered from the system between 1974 and 1996, after
which no more oil was recovered. In April 2003, the MDEQ approved the shutdown of the fuel recovery systam.

In 2012, the area of the Fuel Oil Release was expanded based on the discovery of soil impacted with fuel ol
during excavation activities for plant expansions, Based upon the proximity to the Fuel Qil Release Area, it was
concluded that this newly discovered impacted soil was part of the original fual oil release. Pursuant to the terms
of the CACO, MST is not liable for this release. This discovery was decumented with a letter of notification to the
MDEQ dated December 10, 2012.

2.16.6 Criteria to Which Results Were Compared

Neone found in historical reports,

2.16.7 Analytical Results

None found in the historical reports. A summary of the excavation activities were summarized in the BEA.

2.16.8 Summary of Exceedances/Action Required

MST must only exercise Due Care with respect to this area.

PAG0Z73514\7.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary Report ST 2015 Summary Report_Final. DOCTX June 2015



AECOM

3 Summary and Conclusions

2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site

The following table summarizes the status of the WMUS, AOCs and Other Areas as defined in the CACO for

the MST facilily:

Waste Management Units

Status

Two Closed Hazardous Waste Susrface
Impoundments

No Furiher tnvestigation. Future monitoring under the Post
Closure Monitoring Program.

Two Studge Drying Beds

No Further Investigation. Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase.
Future menitoring wili be covered under the Site Metals
Groundwater Contamination ACC.

Three Former Acid Pits

No Further Investigation. Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase.
Future monitoring is covered under Site Metals Groundwater
Contamination ACC.

Farmer Scrap Yard

No further Investigation. Metals attributed to Mill Scale on Site.
Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase. Future monitoring is covered
under Site Metals Groundwater Contamination AOC.

Uncovered Berm Area

No Further Investigation. Future monitoring under the Post
Closure Monitoring Program.

Closed Former Hazardous Waste
Container Storage Unit

Unit clean closed. No Further Investigation.

Closed Container Storage Unit

MNo Further Investigation. Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase
Future monitering is covered under Site Metals Groundwater
Contamination AQC.

Neutralization Plant

No Further lnvestigatio_n.

Filter Press

No Further Investigation.

10

Former Vapor Degreaser

No Further Investigation. MST must exercise due care only,

AREAS OF CONCERN

Status

Vinyl Chloride Contamination Area

No Furiher Investigation. Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase.
MST must only exercise due care, but agreed to conduct future
menitering for MNA.

Site Mill Scale

No Further investigation, Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase
Future monitoring will be covered under the Site Metals
Groundwater Contamination AOC.

Site Metals Groundwater Contamination

No Further Investigation. Future Groundwater menitoring to
address AQC.

Removed Gas and Qil Underground
Storage Tanks

No Further Investigation. MST must exercise due care only.

Former Chromium Plating Line

No Further Investigation. Unit now in the CMS/CMI phase
Future monitoring is covered under Site Metals Groundwater
Contamination AQC.

OTHER AREAS

Status

Fuel Oil Release Area

No Further Investigation. MST must exercise due care only.

P:\6027381417.0_Deliverables\2015 Summary ReportMST 2015 Summary Raport_Final. DOCX

3-1

VO 5 T 8 8 Ao A b 4 e 8 B e St D a1

Juns 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 4-1

4 References

AECOM, 2014. 2013-2014 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site. August 2014.

AECOM, 2013a. Waste Management Unit Review and Evaluation Report for the Michigan Seamless Tube,
LLC, Site. January 2013.

AECOM, 2013b. 2013 Work Plan for Site Characterization and Corrective Measures. Michigan Seamless
Tube, LLC. Site. April 2013,

AECOM, 2012a. 2011-2012 Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC. Site. April 2012.

AECOM, 2012b. Data Package for 2012 Work Plan Field Investigation. Michigan Seamiess Tube, LLC. Site,
September 2012.

AECOM, 2009a. 2009 Investigation Report for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site, December 2009.
AECOM, 2009b. Investigation Report for Fall 2008 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site, April 2009,

AECOM, 2008¢. Technical Memorandum Particulate Soil Inhatation Evaluation for Molybdenum, Michigan
Seamless Tube, LLC Site, February 2009,

BLDI, 1999. Petition to Designate High-Volume, Low-Hazard Industrial Waste. Vision Metals, Inc., Michigan
Specialty Tube. August 1999,

BLDI, 1995, Characterization of the Impoundments, Berm and Sludge Drying Bads. June 1995.
Corrective Action Consent Order, 2004. MDEQ, Juns 2004.

Earth Tech, 2008a. Summary Report and 2008 Work Plan for the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLG Site, April
2008.

Earth Tech, 2008b. Particulate Soil Inhalation Evaluation, Michigan Seamless Tube Site, April 2008.
Earth Tech, 2007. Investigation Repaort for Fall 2006 at the Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site. March 2007,

Earth Tech, 2006. Investigation Report for Fall 2005 at the Michigan Seamtess Tube, LLC Site. February
2008.

Earth Tech, 2005. Interim Measures Remedial Investigation Report for 2005 at the Michigan Seamless Tube,
LLC Site. April 2005,

Earth Tech, 2004. IRA/M Investigation Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLG, South Lyon, Michigan.
April 2004.

ED! Engineering & Science, 1920. Clean Closure Certification for The Container Storage Area. September
1890.

EDI Engineering & Science, 1987. Quanex Carporation, Michigan Seamless Tube Division, South Lyon,
Michigan- Sludge Drying Beds. Letter to the MDNR. June 26, 1987.

P160273614V7.0_Deliverablesi?015 Summary RepertMST 2015 Summary Repart_Final DOGK June 2015



AECOM 2015 Summary Report for Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC Site 4-2

Harizon Environmental Corporation, 2002, Baseline Environmental Assessment for Michigan Seamless Tube,
LLC. December 2002,

MDEQ, 2013a. Letter to MST regarding the Corrective Action Status Update and Review; Michigan Seamless
Tube, LLC (MST) MID 082 787 591 March 25, 2013. .

MDEQ, 2013b. Approval of 2013 Work Plan for Site Characterization and Corrective Measures at Mtchlgan
Seamless Tube, LLC (Plan); Michigan Seamless Tube, LLC (MST); MID 082 767 591. May 2013.

MDEQ, 2002. Sampling Sirategies and Statistice Training Material for Part 201 Cleanup Criteria.

Metcalf & Eddy, Inc., 1893, Interim Final Report for RCRA Fadcility Assessment (RFA) at Quanex Corporation-
Michigan Seamless Tube (MST} Division. August 1293

USEPA, 2009. Statistical Analysie of Ground-Water Monitoring Data at RCRA Facilities: Unified Guidance.
EPA/S30/R/09/007. March 2009.

USEPA, 1998. Technical Protocol for Evaluating Natural Attenuation of Chlorinated Solvents in Ground Water
Issue. EPA/S4Q/S-95/504. April 1996.

P:AS0273614\7.0_Delverables\2015 Summary ReportWST 20156 Summary Report_Final. DOCX June 2015



AECOM 2015 Surmary Report for Michigan Seamiess Tube, LLC Site

Figures



e i

Base Map Source: Qakland 1;100,000 Series Topographic Map

N

0 3000 6000 12,000 A
Fest W -..@n E

1" = 6,000 fest 7

S

p_8.5%11.mxd

e lacation_ma

psi2015 Maps\Summary Reporiisit

PAGIS_Dala\GISW ST \Arcma,

AzCOM

Figure 1

Site Location Map

Michigan Seamless Tube, LLG,
Soufh Lyon Michigan

Creator: ERH042915

#50273614 April 2015 a0 KN




R z
NPY 30 . puncifiapun
SLOE pdy ¥iscLEas 3 a5EUNS

m SLEZPOHYE Je1ea) ainjes J9iEpA 3IRUNG

"SI0V

WEEBIAUEA YRy A ¥ s >
o ¥ D7 8GN FERUERS Ve P 2 2 = T = 2ur] saua4

Su0jlEd07 Em,ocoo 10 galy 5 : 3 (00V) wanuon JO eady !
g WU Juawabeuepy sjsepn , ; . # (MIAA) HUN oW aBeuR 2ISERY Vet

Z ainfiq

H WODZVY

v

[







5002 -ajeq AydeBolou ] ey PXUPASISIME 2 LoZURE ST OERDL STXnSdew 21 DS Eeon | SINMSIDIEIEE St

189 Ut 8je0g puroiBapun - b I . ¥19€2208 #j0elord
NYDIHOIW ‘NOAT HLNOS o oo BIBYNG rere ) . “TlilozigEe A3 penouddy
O 'FANL SSTINYIS NYDIHOIN -
SAMER JEIEM a0ELNS Jaeuozely [ B e Liogmeeiy  da umelq
INOJUCT SUOZ PSIEIOS) MOJEYS = == " !
abneg yeis W

EIL LT BPNU] JON LIGHEDOT ,
LL0Z HOUWYIN CIL0D Ul PEPRRU joN vepeooT Inojueg sasnby mogeys—

dYIN HNOLNOD H31YAMANNOYD MO[] ISIBMPUNOID —— (0o J) SINGIUOD uopeal] Jejempuncas 19 BULciuow @
[=t=11 55/ E|

Y
k.

T A




2 B e g e e o el wier SO oy

- . ] ’ punosfuepun ==
i slozintoy [ pioeczooe  [RNEEERENENS LopELILRIY X [ p—
[PTe TPy y— e . (apiw-alg) uoeuEo) Bay LS PAISACIUN

lajempunolsy siejoi el G a.lmeaf Jaep) BoBpnG

Siuaulpunodul-aoeuns e)Sepn
aEog Iy sug g SNOPIEZEH PAsOD OML
aury Bueld WNIWOMD 18Uy 7 PEAdEIDS JAULO

L asnbi ¥ : . ! .. . Slid POy 1o 20ll] g speg Buiig s6pnjs omE,
_ _ , , . UORESYRULPI DOV PUE FINM

suryeauad ——
SU0RE20T [feps Bunopuowy Bpwoze] B ww

afined yels  Wvees




